
City Council Workshop Agenda 
June 14, 2016 

Page 1 of 1 
 
 

 

 
 
 

City Council Workshop Agenda 
Tuesday, June 14, 2016 - 4:30 p.m. 

Smith Room, Harris Community Center 
401 N. Alexander, Belton, Texas 

 
 
 
1. Call to order. 
 
2. Update on South Belton Wastewater Line. 

 
3. Overview of Possible Local Historical Tax Exemption. 

 
4. Presentation/Discussion on the Belton Fire CORPs program. 
 
5. Adjourn. 
 

 
 
 

The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time 
regarding any issue on this agenda for which it is legally permissible. 



South Belton 
Sewer System
Design Update: Alignment Modification

City Council Workshop

June 14, 2016



632

631

633

630

634

636

635

629

637

638

639

64
0

64
1

642

511

624

625

628

626

627

585

586

588
589

590

591

545

546

544

547

543

542

548

592

541

549

540

554

555

552

553

556

557

564

59
3

563

565

567

559

56
9

561

560

568

562

570

571

594

572
573

574

595 575596

597

577

578

539537

535

534

532

598

580 53
1

58
1

582 583 584

599

51
2

600

601

602 603

604

510

605

50
9

606

607

608
609

50
8

610

620

507

613

619

615 612

614

616

617

618

506

50
5

514

515

53
0

51
6

529

52
8

51
7

527

52
6

51
8

51
9

52
0

525

524

521

52
2

52
3

504

623

50
3

622
621

50
2

501

50
0

499

49
8

497

49
6

495

494

49
3

49
2

49
1

49
0

489

488

487

486

579

576

566

558

551

55
0

53
8

513

611

643

644

53
3

64
5

647

536

65
0

48
5

65
1

65
2

467

482
481

480646

479

47
8

477476

475

474

47
3

472

471

470

469

653

468

654

655

65
6

65
7

659

66066
1

466

66
4

58
7

66
5

66
6

649

667

48
3

48
4

668

658

66
9

662

663

67
0

67
1

465

672

673

464

674

675

676
677

67
8

648

463

679

68
0

68
1

682

68
3

684

685

68
6

687

688

689 690 691

69
2

69
3

694

695

696

69
7

698

699

700701

462

702

703

704
705

706

707

70
8

461

709

710

71
1

71
3

460

665

624

491

567

487

49
1

52
7

512

55
6

606

591

509

679

50
1

563

51
1

60
9

596

518

545

644

645

553

61
1

654

486

532

643

67
1

48
3

57
5

487

569

51
8

62
7

58863
2

589

565

611

516

640

61
0

51
0

487

58
4

493

486

618

484

548

62
9

478

559

488

665

547

485

53
4

51
0

623

48
4

64
5

531

544

551

66
9

49
1

55
9

526

55
6

53
0

479

517

588

517

524

48
9

622

635

53
2

544

627

632

630

540

601

679

623

586

484

652

50
4

621

606

60
4

501

53
2

64
9

496

63
6

613

51
5

587

506

621

630

492

607

509

632

49
4

542

483

55
0

616

604

657

576

506

486

514

531

50
0

545

51
9

64
6

591

54
6

508

668

58
1

63
4

628

506

49
4

50
9

614

633
610

583

645

644

62
7

48
5

47
6

557

49
4

556

647 481

479

566

643

560

62
6

619

549

489

482

484

48
4

611

509

570

493

49
7

687

58
3

460

54
6

484

64
7

52
6

528

532

692

623

461

667

543

51
3

59
9

581

624

548

51
6

538

568

635

627

53
6

63
4

589

57
9

50
9

559

542

54
1

51
0

55
9

49
7

530

53
3

54
2

524

612

591

664

57
1

673

58
5

48
9

540

641 49
9

527

507

616

521

487

614

608

568

675

64
4

488

52
5

49
6

534

47
9

642

706

47
6

532

51
4

614

66
9

525

581

522

648

655

52
6

527

593

530

533

57
5

592
513

545

488

618

578

481

543

649

559

556

496

531

507

58
2

516

656

560

61
1

534

49
9

508

466

603

55
9

469

592

548

637

555

64
7

532

648

566

533

641

60
1607

462

609

503

648

619

514

597

587

61
3

60
5

649

552

635

495

557

516

625

589

658

574

616

527

651

500

481

677

497

48
2

645

527

50
7

645

645

639

464

54
1

585

548

566

525

49
2

595

539

55
6

57
2

617

66
7

59
8

49
6

704

646

525

541
528

640

53
4

609

515

550

531

50
1

51
1

614

66
4

612

59
5

531

486

494

634

518

53
6

65
2

497

473

49
4

50
8524

664

617

609

49
4

532

587

63
7

50
0

536

652

556

545

51
7

587

61
7

54350
4

644

50
8

615

584

50
0

659

644

508

617

61
5

54
1

598

550

564

525

586

645

619

484
561

560

587

53
3

65
0

546

479

589

556

624

504

637

489

541

616

534

497

496

626

634

500
581

509

633

626

52
1

612

493

52
1

581

534

66
6

611

636

584

546

566

529

548

50
9

541

496

51
8

513

569

585

584

627

507

655

549

49
5

617

648

670

632

49
4

482

616

48
3

513

540

523

52
5

64
5

676

584

49
6

534

497

57
7

586

482

508

55
5

513

630

583

51
7

593

50
3

541

50
2

648

509

66
8

665

503

49
6

467

590

674

681

65
2

494

51
6

501

57
9

545

54
5

49
4

620

663

529

566

58
8

49
9

632

638

63
8

647

549

534

483

616

56
7

677

500

618

49
4

63
6

61
9

643

535

534

562

621

504

488

70
6

666

58
2

64
6

500

539

524

614

51
1

579

670

61
5

563

61
3

50
1

645

66
5

518

540

61
1

529

498

558

615

50
6

615

496

566

483

49
7

655

549

50
6

55
7

51
4

52
2

587

490

570

551

663

495

46
6

63
1

563

587

542

499

50
8

558

627

516

676

550

636

51
0

484

473

58
6

525

629

53
6559

644

525

580

492

598

48
9

638

607

681

561

49
8

488

558

582

48
7

654

655

701

588

617

542

500

483

49
6

48
6

500

507

592

62
7

595

517

602

493

664

516

53
1

566

518

507

465

52
6

501

540

635

509

554

575

488

618

530

488

66
5

648

616

53
2

652

498

51
2

629

614

511

58
5

500

585

621

561

562

495

644

494

505

487

556

62
8

520

63
7

58
1

537

510

547

587

486

49
4

57
4

559

537

535

57
6

50
0

587

59
1

484

561

634

668

50
8

643

647

585

673

555

556

48
3

466

63
4

567

57
9

627

516

50
5

49
7

57
4

59
4

647

47
9

51
5

683

572

59
4

50
0

506

54
1

57
8

575

50
1

587

48
4

534

591

676

486

599

602

617

491

507

655

50
1

590

583

576

575

57
8

590

50
5

49
1

505

512

61
2

631

499

519

51
9

53
9

583

487

603

483

461

479

50
8

49
0

533

575

581

56
7

662 66
4

479

626

51
3

54
2

551

465

665

466

495

50
3

50
1

589

53
3

50
7

522

49
3

497

48962
8

625

65
1

655

495

609

51
1

527

663

64
3

62
4

48
0

602

610

559

614

657

646

534

572

674

586
540

681

489

503

50
8

538

648

520

568

566

488

576

570

573

50
5

557

56
8

629

650

538

543

577

532

568

626

61
0

483

50
0

49
6

554

532

637 491

577

68
4

520

559

657

50
2

634

486

570

580

59
7

577

586

629

593

677

50
9

491

51
0

537

543

687

497

61
1

61
7

532

542

627

495

656

58
5

504

618

558

484

627

532

561

56
6

534

593

606

583

620

50
6

56
2

535

688

629

48
5

683

481

570

461

562

48
1

460

582

535

534

628

624

539

660

679

591

640

63
1

496

55
0

504

551

644

491

51
0

539

505

570
568

482

61
4

48
0

587

534

487

635

589

484

620

643

57
3

502

619

501

699

510

534

491

624
48

8

557

515

512

482

577

614

50
2

665

500

583

586

51
6

666

560

51
4

60
7

646

485

514

544

508

577

669

486646

494

591

64
4

653

62
2

66
3

653

53
4

553

636

483

47
5

516

48760
4

66
7

502

619

66
5

537

462

567

470

47
9

550

658

495

615

66
5

509

497

688

643

562

581

549

62
8

67
8

612

555

552

483

566

628

665
47

9

67
2

645

634

510

512

539

509

518

50
0

53
6

48
2

490

549

50
9

506

50
7

46
3

535

636

50
9

61
2

594

58
4

618

585

480

607

53
3

67
9

493

524

59
1

488

49
6

614

645

484

605

66
3

648

631

478

565

62
8

55
9

544

51
5

50
2

579

551

49
8

62
9

485

49
5

494

55
5

558

643

51
6

50
2

53
3

510

48
9

526

706

641

635

51
9

511

61
4

54
2

49
9

551

481

704

66
8

60
5

600

533

651

512

514

580

490

666

59
2

48
0

553

509

510

48
1

49
5

630

587

629

528

488

69
0

647

509

518

62
6

51
9

574

548

639

618

597

48
9

584

55
2

501

62
9

561

540

626

582

584

474

482

496

533

585

586

616

51
0

66
5

490

525

636

50
3

462

56
7

609

481

61
5

484

59
4

501

635

612

577

627

67
1

638

51
1

661

57
1

572

53
7

598

590

551

547

553

495

50
7

67
1

66
6

659

534

559

522

622

542

550

505

643

584

664

656

656

58
7

64
4

616 494

555

538 533

607

525

493

500

573

599

472

605

62
1

607

60
3

638

612

495

491

575

536

624

53
6

521

517

577

49
7

572

600

648

558

687

629

536

50
8

50
6

618

473

605

622

601

507

61
7

532

48
7

678

663

592

624

49
6

621

557

505

54
1

489

533

64
9

53
2

490

647

531

675

629

461

617

55
9

57
6

536

54
2

49
6

50
6

634

51
2

635

50
5

570

574

632

606

530

585

54
0

57
0

658

480

49
9488

635

491

500

511

527

597

49
5

684

59
0

533

53
7

58
2

616

523

538

484

501

628

597

622

648

541

544

666

648

589

538

58
6

523

515

573

585

517

48
5

465

519

62
9

558

66
5

543

62
1

461

495

55
3

64
4

499

63
0

573

51
4

501

558

49
7

568

623

558

495

611

616

488

48
3

493

670

465

558

632

52
7

503

60
7

55
5

61
3

59
0

668

648

66
6

666

490

48
7

590

50
6

51
0

462

534

621

67
0

55
6

536

49
3

540

615

622

511

666

588

58
3

466

66
0

543

48
0

647

59
2

539

60
8

504

471

51
6

533

555

56
7

582

625

641

625

544

50
2

571

487

488

488

491

579

532

61
4

588

664

573

550

542

484

541

50
5

68
3

49
6

587

689
540

581

598

53
8

62
0

549

515

556

554

61
1

505

659

52
8

588

49
7

626

637

63
3

591

665

623

643

588

575

484

588

682

645

484

507

623

559

52
4

507

620

513

518

619

628

584

568

633

574

525

602

543

55
7

463

584

582

634

492

63
4

53
2

513

642

55
3

534

650

633

561

57
6

511

495

496

66
8

48
5

605

521

576

512

543

65
1

561

539

590

663

634

532

553

650

596

574

512

52
6

50
5

50
7

529

499

55
7

53
4

551

483

507

54
8

49
0

55
9

48
1

663

66
5

49
9

58
2

485

492

68
0

706

588

562

50
0

566

63
1

651

587

552

636

532

621

630

56
1

640

53
9

62
5

611

50
4

561

583

549

48
7

538

651

486

582

635
506

51
1

466

588

625

627

499

492

619

614

557

613

53
1

50
2

651

53
2

515

61
4

622

51
0

479

614

59
0

639

541

540

51
2

522

538

489

53
2

486

49
3

569

586

618

518

648

676

53
3

607

581

511

589

489

565

677

593

642

491

507

51
0

479

481

495

48
5

50
6

501

51
0

475

525

608

494

495

63
4

670

59
9

540

60
7

54467
8

55
6

633

48
4

54
6

648

505

576

547

48
5

580

62
6

572

555

53
7

608

512

550

592

509

621

500

50
9

491

580

48
0

500

65
3

49
1

630

515

543

599

509

628

579

534

614

495

615

51
0

663

63
7

462

50
9

515

54
4

534

663

559

589

707

627

476

508

47963
0

508

544

61
9

601

524

462

605

53
7

496

59
1

628

50
3

56
9

478

562

53
6

641

507

66
3

67
4

49
3

53
1

572

57
4

65
5

48
3

516

49
8

549

595

553

487

61
0

672

476

664

589

508

612

560

658

619

48
9

631

68
8

552

544

587

494

493

644

66
4

499

498

461

53
5

517

614

51
6

533

500

53
3

588

49
4

566

543

526

59
5

485

50
7

523

614

65
0

643

595

689

513

66
5

468

532

646

47
5

612

555

633

655

687

497

529

702

63
0

613

676

482

617

551

66
9

66
2

51
8

559

494

57
3

619
648

580

487

58
7

506

556

622

561

587

664

547

66
5

48
3

614

60
0

54
8

591

639

59
4

478 516

557

545

578

627

599

501

512

532

491

66
7

628

554

512

572

624

613

566

57
9

616

546

590

514

60
2

648

643

66
4

531

48
5

59
2

489

490

642

503

532

511
604

633

519

599

582

49
9

562

580

579

591

52
2

520

61
9

533

492

515

499

605

55
9

474

668

581

514

634

462

485

481

527618

586

51
4

557

640

59
0

542

540

53
4

52
0

583

490

585

517

53
7

649

50
5

51
8

561

556

663

648

66
7

52
8

578

61
8

560

535

61
4

64
5

61
4

475

545

53
4

565

482

614

508

642

653

549

645

55
5

591

665

477

542

512

610

564

519

53
0

553

M
itc

he
ll 

Br
an

ch

I 35

2nd

Interstate 35

Ih 35

Lo
op

 1
21

Pearl

Old US Hwy 81

Connell

Hellums

Ta
hu

ay
a

Lampasas

G
ro

ve

M
es

qu
ite

E

Lampasas Shady

Frontage

Pat

Toll Bridge Rd

Sh
an

kl
in

Driveway

Bi
rc

h

Elmer King

To
pa

z

Au
ct

io
n 

Ba
rn

Resthaven Cemetery

R
am

pD
og

w
oo

d

Exit 290

Twin Oaks

Loop

Exit 289A

Ramp

Au
ct

io
n 

Ba
rn

Pa
t

Ih 35

Lo
op

 1
21

Ramp

Ramp

Fr
on

ta
ge

Old US Hwy 81

R
am

p

Ramp

I 35

Interstate 35

¯

0 500 1,000

Feet

SOUTH BELTON
SEWER PROJECT

EXHIBIT B
SEWERSHED MAP

Legend
Sewershed Boundary

Ex. WW

Ex. Water

COB Contours
Basin ID

Calc,
Basin
Design
Flow
(MGD)

Basin
Gross
Area
(ac.)

§̈¦35

MAY 2016

207 0.39

Basin D

142 0.24

Basin E

705 2.00

Basin C

316 0.91

Basin A

100 0.19

Basin B

DISCLAIMER: CONTOURS ON THIS EXHIBIT WERE PROVIDED BY THE CITY OF BELTON AND ARE SHOWN FOR INFORMATIONAL
PURPOSES ONLY.  THEY DO NOT REPRESENT AN ON-THE-GROUND SURVEY AND MAY NOT BE COMPLETE, ACCURATE OR CURRENT.



C

A

D

E

B

I 35

2nd

Ih 35

Pearl

Interstate 35

Wall

Connell

FM
 436

D
ecker

U
S H

w
y 190

Frontage

Miller

Elm
 G

rove

Old US Hwy 81

E

Shady

Loop 121

Lampasas

M
esquite

O
ld U

S H
w

y 190

G
rove

Lampasas Shady

M
agnolia

C
ac

ti

Pat

Tahuaya

Liberty Hill

Toll Bridge Rd

Shanklin

Avenue Q

Avenue O

Herrington

Mary Jane

Kelly

Capitol Way

Avenue P

Birch

Oleta

Tremont

Beal

Ash

Ray

Driveway

Avenue R

Concho

Avenue I

Dog Ridge

Walker

Live O
ak

Brooking

Savage

Topaz

Exit 293A

Ave

FrancesResthaven Cemetery

Jordan

R
am

p

Avenue J

G
eneral W

 H
 W

alker

Lindsey

Exit 292

Avenue D

W
hitley's

D
ogw

ood

Avenue T

Auction Barn

Fairway

Glenn

Ellen

R
en

ee

State Hwy 317

U
nnam

ed Street

Exit 290

Exit 289B

Penelope

Freedom

Sharon

Avenue

Highway

Connecting Road

Loop

Exit 289A

Shanklin

E

Ramp

Driveway

Driveway

E

E

R
am

p

Ramp
Miller

Interstate 35

M
agnolia

Avenue O

Frontage

Ramp

Ra
m

p

U
nnam

ed Street

E

I 35

Avenue P

Avenue P

Exit 290

Driveway

Frontage

Ih 35

Avenue O

Pearl

Avenue R

Auction Barn

Loop 121

U
S H

w
y 190

Avenue R

Pat

Ramp

Driveway

Old US Hwy 81

¯

SOUTH BELTON
SEWER PROJECT

EXHIBIT N
Recommended Option

SHANKLIN LS
Q=3.31 MGD

NOT TO SCALE

12"

12
"

18"(2) - 8"

8"

24"

24"

MAY 2016

Legend

Ex. WW

Ex. Water

Prop. Gravity Main

Prop. Force Main

Potential Lift Station

Sewershed Boundary



April Recommended Alignment 
 Two bores under IH-35

 One lift station vs. two

 Minimizes costs, property acquisition, electrical needs, and 
start-up efforts

 Moved southern bore 500 feet to the north; minimizing 
depth of gravity sewer line from Basin A to B by 20 feet

 Reduces service area by 20 acres (can be served with small lift 
station or grinder pump)

 Approx. $6,635,000 in Total Construction Costs

 Events and Actions Since April

 Right of Entry Requests for Survey 

 Discussions with Property Owners

 Further evaluations of line sizing and capacities

 Offloading of existing lift stations



C

A

D

E

B

I 35

2nd

Ih 35

Pearl

Interstate 35

Wall

Connell

F
M

 4
3
6

D
e
cke

r

U
S

 H
w

y
 1

9
0

F
ro

n
ta

g
e

Miller

E
lm

 G
ro

ve

Old US Hwy 81

E

Shady

Loop 121

Lampasas

M
e
sq

u
ite

O
ld

 U
S

 H
w

y
 1

9
0

G
ro

v
e

Lampasas Shady

M
a
g

n
o
lia

C
a
ct

i

Pat

Tahuaya

Liberty Hill

Toll Bridge Rd

S
h
a
n
klin

A
ve

n
u
e

 Q

A
ve

n
u

e
 O

Herrington

A
ve

n
u
e
 I

Mary Jane

Kelly

Capitol Way

A
v
e
n
u

e
 P

B
irch

Oleta

Beal

Tremont
Ray

Ash

Driveway

A
ve

n
u
e

 R

Concho

Walker

Dog Ridge

L
ive

 O
a
k

Brooking

S
a
v
a
g
e

To
p
a
z

Exit 293A

A
ve

FrancesResthaven Cemetery

Jordan

R
a
m

p

A
ve

n
u

e
 J

G
e
n
e
ra

l W
 H

 W
a
lk

e
r

L
in

d
se

y

Exit 292

Avenue D

W
h
itle

y
's

D
o
g
w

o
o
d

A
v
e
n
u

e
 T

A
u

c
tio

n
 B

a
rn

Fairway

Glenn

Ellen

R
e

n
e

e

State Hwy 317

U
n

n
a
m

e
d
 S

tre
e
t

Exit 290

Exit 289B

Penelope

Freedom

Sharon

A
ve

n
u
e

Highway

Connecting Road

Loop

Exit 289A

S
h
a
n
k
lin

E

Ramp

R
am

p

D
rivew

ay

Driveway

E

E

R
a

m
p

Miller

Interstate 35

M
a

g
n
o
lia

A
ve

n
u

e
 O

F
ro

n
ta

g
e

R
am

p

U
n
n
a
m

e
d
 S

tre
e
t

E

I 35

A
v
e
n

u
e
 P

A
venue P

Exit 290

Driveway

F
ro

n
ta

g
e

Ih 35

A
ve

n
u
e
 O

Pearl

A
ve

n
u
e
 R

Ram
p

Auction Barn

Loop 121

U
S

 H
w

y 1
9
0

A
v
e
n
u

e
 R

P
a
t

Ramp

Driveway

Old US Hwy 81

¯

SOUTH BELTON
SEWER PROJECT

EXHIBIT N
Recommended Option

SHANKLIN LS
Q=3.31 MGD

NOT TO SCALE

12"

1
2
"

1
8
"

(2) - 8"

8"

24"

24"

MAY 2016

Legend

Ex. WW

Ex. Water

Prop. Gravity Main

Prop. Force Main

Potential Lift Station

Sewershed Boundary



New Alignment 
• ONE bore under IH-35

• Still one lift station

• Removed gravity line south of lift station to Lampasas River 
from scope; however, the lift station will be designed to 
allow for this flow in the future (Deduct of ~$1,255,000)

• Added 2,000 LF of sewer line on west side of IH-35 up to 
Shanklin Road – final alignment on this segment is TBD 
(Addition of ~$570,000)

• Approx. $5,950,000 in Total Construction Costs 

• Net Cost Savings of approx. $685,000

• Staff recommends updated alignment to move forward into 
the Final Design Phase. 



Moving Forward
I. Decision on the final alignment

A. Revise report June 2016

II. Design Phase Services June 2016 – November 2016

A. Surveying  June 2016

B. Plans and specs, OPCC, permitting, SUE’s, geotechnical, 
environmental & archaeological evaluations 

C. Submittals: 30%, 60%, 95%, and Final Design Sets, with updated 
OPCC’s at each stage

D. Parcel exhibits for rights-of-way/easements 

III. Completed Design to Council December 2016

A. Secure Funding 

IV. Bid Phase Services TBD (1 Month)

V. Construction Phase TBD (8-12 Months)



 

 

MEMO 
 

DATE: May 25, 2016 

TO:  Sam Listi, City Manager 

C:  Brandon Bozon, Director of Finance   

FROM: Erin Smith, Director of Planning 

RE:  Historic Preservation Tax Exemption 

 

Many cities in Texas incentivize historic preservation through local property tax exemptions.  The City of 

Belton currently has a Façade Improvement Grant Program for downtown commercial buildings and a tax 

abatement policy for authorized facilities in the Downtown Development District.  However, there are 

currently no incentives in place for historic residential properties.  There are over 300 residential 

properties in local historic districts that would benefit from an historic preservation tax exemption.  Both 

the FIG program and tax abatement policy have been extremely successful in encouraging investment 

downtown.   A tax exemption program for historic properties would extend those benefits to residential 

areas and promote investment in historic neighborhoods as well.      
 

Most historic preservation tax exemption programs in Texas cities offer tax incentives for the following: 

 Major renovation/restoration of historic properties; 

 Ongoing maintenance to prevent or address blight or deterioration; and/or 

 Historic designations. 

 

Creation of a tax abatement program for major renovations will encourage investment in historic Belton 

properties.  The threshold for substantial improvements would be 25% of the pre-improvement assessed 

value of the structure.  An ad valorem tax exemption will create an abatement for up to five years on 

increases in City of Belton property taxes resulting from an approved renovation to a historic building.  

The exemption would only apply to City taxes, it will not apply to Bell County, Clearwater U.W.C.D., or 

BISD school taxes.   

 

The tax exemption would be available for designated local landmarks and historically significant 

properties within local historic districts that undergo a substantial rehabilitation.  Substantial rehabilitation 

includes improvements that extend the life of a building such as roof, foundation, and siding work; 

electrical, plumbing, and HVAC system work; other structural work; and interior work.  

 

The overall goal is to encourage investment in historic properties through a tax exemption program 

without creating a large tax burden on the City.   City taxes will still be received on the pre-improvement 

assessed value, and the property owner will benefit by not paying taxes on the increase in their property 

value for five years.  This historic preservation tax exemption program will promote repair and 

maintenance to historic properties to preserve Belton’s historic building stock.  By preserving Belton’s 

historic built environment, the entire community benefits from improved property values, neighborhood 

revitalization, and overall quality of life.  

 

Adoption of an ordinance establishing this historic tax exemption program will be necessary for 

implementation.  



Date: 

To: 

From: 

Subject: 

Memo 
June 2, 2016 

Sam Listi 

Bruce Pritchard 

Belton Volunteer Fire Department Transition (Update) 

Since the latest Fire CORPS memo was sent on February 22, 2016, there have been some 
changes made to the program as well as some updates I would like to inform you of. 

The departure of Assistant Fire Chief Kris Morgan in April left me as the only remaining 
volunteer in the department, and I have since updated all of the volunteer bank accounts to 
include only my name. The land located on Loop 121 remains under the Belton Volunteer Fire 
Department name and requires no updates. The P.O. Box information remains intact as long as 
the volunteer fire department is active. However, upon changing the name to "Belton Fire 
CORPS," the P.O. Box will be discontinued and moved to the City of Belton mailing address. 
We are now ready to move forward with the name change. 

A Fire CORPS committee of six members has been established. They are currently working on 
developing and creating class schedules, agendas, brochures, and other necessary documents for 
the program. As we prepare for promoting the Fire Corps we will use the July 4th parade as a 
media outlet in hopes to receive interest in the program. 

We are hoping to have our first class in the late fall of this year. The first class will be held over 
a four-week timespan with actual classes taking place on Thursday nights. The majority of the 
classes will be held at the Harris Center, where rooms have already been reserved, and the fire 
stations. After the completion of this inaugural class, program evaluations and feedback from 
participants will be used to improve and expand the program. In addition to this Fire CORPS 
class, we also intend to host a "mini fire camp" for younger children before school resumes in 
2017, and we anticipate receiving support from the Fire CORPS graduates in promoting and 
teaching the classes during this camp. 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
June 14, 2016 

Page 1 of 3 
 
 

 
 
 

City Council Meeting Agenda 
Tuesday, June 14, 2016 - 5:30 p.m. 

Wright Room, Harris Community Center 
401 N. Alexander, Belton, Texas 

 
 
Pledge of Allegiance. The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag will be led by 
Councilmember Jerri Gauntt. 
 
Texas Pledge. The Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag will be led by Fire Chief 
Bruce Pritchard. 
 

“Honor the Texas flag; I pledge allegiance to thee Texas, one state under 
God, one and indivisible.” 

 
Invocation. The Invocation will be given by Pat Munoz, Pastor of Dunamis Baptist 
Church. 
 
 
1. Call to order. 
 
2. Public Comments. 
 
3. Recognitions: 
 

A. Receive recognition from Leadership Belton for Generous Guardian sponsorship 
of the Belton Police Memorial. 
 

B. Texas Association of Municipal Information Officer’s TAMI Award for the RUOK? 
Program. 

 
4. Receive a presentation on the budget process and offer input on key policies and 

initiatives. 
 
 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
June 14, 2016 

Page 2 of 3 
 
 

Consent Agenda 
 
Items 5-6 under this section are considered to be routine by the City Council and may 
be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be 
removed from the Consent Agenda prior to voting, at the request of any 
Councilmember, and it will be considered separately. 
 
5. Minutes of May 24, 2016, City Council Meeting 
 
6. Consider appointments/reappointments to the following boards and commissions: 
 

A.  Parks Board 
B.  Zoning Board of Adjustment 

 
Planning and Zoning 
 
7. Consider authorizing the purchase of 3.546 acres of land from Don and Billie 

Cameron for Lake-to-Lake Road right-of-way. 
 
8. Consider a preliminary/final plat for Cameron Hills II, a 19.393 acre tract of land, 

located on the north side of Sparta Road, west of Lake to Lake Road right-of-way 
and west and south of Dawson Ranch, Phases 5 and 6. 

 
9. Consider authorizing a Façade Improvement Grant to Liberty Church of Bell 

County, 302 East Central Avenue. 
 
10. Consider authorizing a Façade Improvement Grant to Cedon Realty, 209 East 

Central Avenue. 
 
Miscellaneous   
 
11. Consider a Resolution establishing a policy regarding annexation of land into the 

Belton city limits. 
 
12. Consider a resolution authorizing the City Manager to sign an Advance Funding 

Agreement with the Texas Department of Transportation for Phase II of the 
Chisholm Trail Hike and Bike Facility funded through the Transportation 
Alternatives Program, and authorize a local funding share. 
 

13. Consider award of bid and authorizing the City Manager to execute a construction 
contract for the River Fair Road Widening Project, and any change orders 
associated with the contract, not to exceed the amount authorized under state law. 

 
14. Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute an amended professional 

services agreement to design Phase I and Phase II improvements to the Temple-
Belton Wastewater Treatment Plant. 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
June 14, 2016 

Page 3 of 3 
 
 

 
15. First Reading – Set Public Hearing - Consider ordinances granting a one year 

extension with two additional one-year automatic extensions, unless rescinded by 
City, of a franchise to operate and maintain a non-emergency ambulance transfer 
service within the public streets and highways of the City of Belton: 

 
A.  Acadian EMS 
B. Scott & White EMS 
C. Serenity EMS, LLC, dba Ameristat Ambulance 

 
Executive Session 
 
16. Executive Session pursuant to the provisions of the Texas Open Meetings Act, 

Chapter 551, Govt. Code, Vernon's Texas Codes Annotated, in accordance with the 
authority contained in Section 551.071, consultation with attorney. 

 
The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time 
regarding any issue on this agenda for which it is legally permissible. 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
June 14, 2016 

Page 1 of 4 
 
 

 
OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER 
 
 

City Council Meeting Agenda 
Tuesday, June 14, 2016 - 5:30 p.m. 

Wright Room, Harris Community Center 
401 N. Alexander, Belton, Texas 

 
 
Pledge of Allegiance. The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag will be led by 
Councilmember Jerri Gauntt. 
 
Texas Pledge. The Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag will be led by Fire Chief 
Bruce Pritchard. 
 

“Honor the Texas flag; I pledge allegiance to thee Texas, one state under 
God, one and indivisible.” 

 
Invocation. The Invocation will be given by Pat Munoz, Pastor of Dunamis Baptist 
Church. 
 
 
1. Call to order. 
 
2. Public Comments. 
 
3. Recognitions: 
 

A. Receive recognition from Leadership Belton for Generous Guardian spon-
sorship of the Belton Police Memorial. 
 

B. Texas Association of Municipal Information Officer’s TAMI Award for the 
RUOK Program. 

 
4. Receive a presentation on the budget process and offer input on key policies 

and initiatives. 
 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
June 14, 2016 

Page 2 of 4 
 
 

Director of Finance Brandon Bozon will update the Council on the revised Budget 
process and will seek input and direction in preparation of the FY 2017 budget. 

 
Consent Agenda 
 
Items 5-6 under this section are considered to be routine by the City Council and 
may be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item 
may be removed from the Consent Agenda prior to voting, at the request of any 
Councilmember, and it will be considered separately. 
 
5. Minutes of May 24, 2016, City Council Meeting 
 
 A copy of the minutes is attached. Recommend approval. 
 
6. Consider reappointments to the following boards and commissions: 
 

A.  Parks Board 
 

Recommend reappointment of Josh Pearson and Daniel Bucher for another two 
year term on the Parks Board. 

 
B.  Zoning Board of Adjustment 

 
Recommend reappointment of David Jarratt and Lewis Simms for another two 
year term on the Zoning Board of Adjustment. 
 

Planning and Zoning 
 
7. Consider authorizing the purchase of 3.546 acres of land from Don and Billie 

Cameron for Lake-to-Lake Road right-of-way. 
 

See Staff Report from City Manager Sam Listi. Recommend approval of purchase 
of land for Lake-to-Lake Road right-of-way based on revised letter of agreement. 

 
8. Consider a preliminary/final plat for Cameron Hills II, a 19.393 acre tract of 

land, located on the north side of Sparta Road, west of Lake to Lake Road 
right-of-way and west and south of Dawson Ranch, Phases 5 and 6. 

 
See Staff Report from Director of Planning Erin Smith. P&ZC unanimously 
recommended approval, and Staff concurs with their recommendation. 

 
9. Consider authorizing a Façade Improvement Grant to Liberty Church of Bell 

County, 302 East Central Avenue. 
 

Please see the enclosed staff report from Director of Planning Erin Smith.  
Recommend approval of Façade Improvement Grant as indicated. 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
June 14, 2016 

Page 3 of 4 
 
 

10. Consider authorizing a Façade Improvement Grant to Cedon Realty, 209 East 
Central Avenue. 

 
Please see the enclosed staff report from Director of Planning Erin Smith. The 
Historic Preservation Commission unanimously recommended grant approval on 
June 9, 2016, and Staff concurs. Recommend approval of Façade Improvement 
Grant as indicated. 

 
Miscellaneous   
 
11. Consider a Resolution establishing a policy regarding annexation of land into 

the Belton city limits. 
 

Please see enclosed staff report from Director of Planning Erin Smith. Recommend 
authorizing the Resolution establishing an Annexation Policy. 

 
12. Consider a resolution authorizing the City Manager to sign an Advance 

Funding Agreement with the Texas Department of Transportation for Phase II 
of the Chisholm Trail Hike and Bike Facility funded through the 
Transportation Alternatives Program, and authorize a local funding share. 
 
Please see enclosed staff report from Grants/Special Projects Coordinator Aaron 
Harris. Recommend authorizing the City Manager to sign the Advanced Funding 
Agreement, and authorize a local funding share, as presented. 
 

13. Consider award of bid and authorizing the City Manager to execute a 
construction contract for the River Fair Road Widening Project, and any 
change orders associated with the contract, not to exceed the amount 
authorized under state law. 

 
Please see enclosed staff report from Director of Internal Services/City Engineer 
Angellia Points. Recommend authorizing the City Manager to execute construction 
contract as presented. 

 
14. Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute an amended professional 

services agreement to design Phase I and Phase II improvements to the 
Temple-Belton Wastewater Treatment Plant. 

 
Please see enclosed staff report from Director of Internal Services/City Engineer 
Angellia Points. Recommend authorizing the City Manager to execute amended 
professional services agreement as presented. 

 
15. First Reading – Set Public Hearing - Consider ordinances granting a one year 

extension with two additional one-year automatic extensions, unless 
rescinded by City, of a franchise to operate and maintain a non-emergency 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
June 14, 2016 

Page 4 of 4 
 
 

ambulance transfer service within the public streets and highways of the City 
of Belton: 

 
A.  Acadian EMS 
B. Scott & White EMS 
C. Serenity EMS, LLC, dba Ameristat Ambulance 

 
Per the City Charter, franchise agreements require two readings of the ordinance. 
Recommend approval of the franchise renewal ordinances on first reading and set 
second reading and public hearing for June 28, 2016. 

 
Executive Session 
 
16. Executive Session pursuant to the provisions of the Texas Open Meetings 

Act, Chapter 551, Govt. Code, Vernon's Texas Codes Annotated, in 
accordance with the authority contained in Section 551.071, consultation with 
attorney. 

 
The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time 
regarding any issue on this agenda for which it is legally permissible. 



Belton City Council Meeting 
May 24, 2016 – 5:30 P.M. 

 
The Belton City Council met in regular session in the Wright Room at the Harris 
Community Center with the following members present: Mayor Marion Grayson, Mayor 
Pro Tem David K. Leigh and Councilmembers Craig Pearson, Dan Kirkley, Jerri Gauntt 
and Paul Sanderford. Councilmember Guy O’Banion was absent. Staff present included 
Sam Listi, John Messer, Gene Ellis, Amy Casey, Brandon Bozon, Erin Smith, Bruce 
Pritchard, Chris Brown, Aaron Harris, Angellia Points, Matt Bates, Kim Kroll and Paul 
Romer. 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag was led by Mayor Marion Grayson, the 
Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag was led by Director of Library Services Kim 
Kroll, and the Invocation was given by Rebecca Fox Nuelle, Pastor of First Presbyterian 
Church. 
 
 
1. Call to order. Mayor Marion Grayson called the meeting to order at 5:34 p.m.  
 
2. Public Comments. There were none. 
 
3. Proclamations and Recognitions: 
 

Present $2,000 Scholarship from Waste Management, Inc. to Taryn Cook. 
 
Grants and Special Projects Coordinator Aaron Harris congratulated Miss Cook on 
her accomplishments and presented her with a $2,000 check from Waste 
Management, Inc. 

 
Consent Agenda 

 
Items 4-10 under this section are considered to be routine by the City Council and 
may be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item 
may be removed from the Consent Agenda prior to voting, at the request of any 
Councilmember, and it will be considered separately. 
 
4. Minutes of previous meetings: 

 
A. May 10, 2016, City Council Workshop 
B. May 10, 2016, City Council Meeting 
 

5. Consider appointments/reappointments to the following boards and 
commissions: 

 
A. Ethics Commission  - all members were reappointed 
B. Planning and Zoning Commission – reappointed Rae Schmuck, Brett 

Baggerly, Ben Pamplin, Eloise Lundgren and Joel Berryman. 
 



Belton City Council Meeting 
May 24, 2016 – Page 2 
 

  

6. Consider designating signatories for safe deposit box at the City’s depository 
bank. 

 
7. Consider a resolution authorizing the City’s participation in Texas CLASS, an 

AAAm rated local government investment pool, as authorized by Section 
2256.016 of the Public Funds Investment Act, Texas Government Code, and 
the City of Belton’s Investment Policy. 

 
8. Consider a resolution authorizing the City’s Participation in the TexPool 

Prime, an AAAm rated local government investment pool, as authorized by 
Section 2256.016 of the Public Funds Investment Act, Texas Government 
Code, and the City of Belton’s Investment Policy. 

 
9. Consider a resolution authorizing continued participation with the Steering 

Committee of Cities served by Oncor and authorizing the payment of 11 cents 
per capita to the Steering Committee to fund regulatory and legal proceedings 
and activities related to Oncor Electric Delivery Company, LLC. 

 
10. Consider a resolution approving a change in the rates of Atmos Energy 

Corporation, Mid-Tex Division, as a result of settlement between Atmos and 
the Atmos Texas Municipalities under the rate review mechanism and finding 
the rates set by the attached tariffs are just and reasonable. 

 
Mayor Pro Tem David K. Leigh thanked Director of Finance, Brandon Bozon, for 
researching additional investment pools in which to invest the City’s funds as interest 
rates have improved.  
 
Upon a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Leigh and a second by Councilmember Craig 
Pearson, the Consent Agenda items were unanimously approved upon a vote of 6-0.  
 

Planning and Zoning 
 
Councilmember Pearson abstained from this item and left the room. 
 
11. Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Agricultural to 

Commercial-1 Zoning District with a Specific Use Permit for mini-storage 
warehouses at 4980 West Highway 190 Service Road, an 8.073 acre tract of 
land, located on the north side of U.S. Highway 190, east of George Wilson 
Road and west of Wheat Road. 
 
Director of Planning Erin Smith stated that this 8.073 acre property is currently 
zoned Agricultural, and a zoning change to Commercial-1 with a Specific Use Permit 
is proposed to allow for mini-storage warehouses.  
 
Mrs. Smith said that the applicant is proposing to remodel an existing house and 
construct a 1,250 square feet addition for a total of 2,450 square feet of space for 



Belton City Council Meeting 
May 24, 2016 – Page 3 
 

  

the mini-storage office. The existing structure is masonry, and the addition will be a 
combination of masonry and stucco in compliance with the City’s Design Standards.  
 
The applicant is proposing to provide five parking spaces by the office and will 
comply with the parking requirements for mini-storage warehouses in all respects. 
Mrs. Smith stated that the internal private driveways will be asphalt, and the 
entrance to the mini-storage warehouses from the US Highway 190 service road will 
be 26 feet wide and paved with asphalt. She added that TXDOT must approve the 
proposed driveway location prior to construction of the office addition and mini-
storage warehouses.  
 
Mrs. Smith explained that the applicant is proposing 664 storage units in a variety of 
sizes which will be constructed in phases. The applicant is proposing to construct a 
6 feet tall wrought iron fence with masonry columns spaced every 50 linear feet 
between the mini-storage units and office building, and along the eastern and 
western property line in the front of the property. She added that the applicant is 
proposing to screen the mini-storage area with a 6-foot tall wooden privacy fence 
along the western and eastern sides of this property.  
 
The first row of mini-storage units, which is the only area visible from US Highway 
190, will have stone on the façade facing US Highway 190. The remaining three 
sides of the exterior on the first row of mini-storage units and all exterior sides on all 
other units will be baked-on metal. Mrs. Smith said that the applicant is also 
proposing to retain all of the existing trees on the front of this property by the office 
building and will install new landscaping along the 6-foot tall wrought iron fence, 
between the office and the mini-storage units and around the office and parking 
area. She added that the western portion of the front of this property is reserved for 
future commercial development.       
       
Mrs. Smith said that the Planning and Zoning Commission met on May 17, 2016, 
and unanimously recommended approval of this zone change with conditions, and 
Staff concurs with the recommendation. 

 
Mayor Grayson opened the public hearing on this item. Seeing no one wishing to 
speak for or against the item, she closed the public hearing. 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Leigh asked if there would be a need for any new water meters. 
Mrs. Smith said that they may want one for irrigation, but that has not been 
requested at this time. 
 
Upon a motion by Councilmember Dan Kirkley and a second by Mayor Pro Tem 
Leigh, item 11 was approved upon a vote of 5 ayes, 0 nays and 1 abstention. 
 
Councilmember Pearson returned to the meeting. 
 



Belton City Council Meeting 
May 24, 2016 – Page 4 
 

  

12. Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Single Family-1 to 
Retail Zoning District at 105 Lake Road, a 1.263 acre tract of land, located on 
the south side of Lake Road, west of Main Street and east of Commerce Street. 

 
Director of Planning Erin Smith stated that the applicant has submitted this zone 
change to allow for retail development in conjunction with the Future Land Use Plan 
that identifies this area as Retail/Neighborhood Service. According to the Zoning 
Ordinance, a retail store or personal service establishment shall provide one parking 
space per 200 square feet of gross floor area. Site development considerations will 
include parking to meet the retail use and cross access connections with the 
adjoining properties – McGuire Tire and Bush’s Chicken. 
 
Mrs. Smith stated that, after careful review of the City’s Design Standards and the 
applicability of this use among surrounding properties, this requested zone change 
appears to be reasonable in this location. She added that the Planning and Zoning 
Commission met on May 17, 2016, and unanimously recommended approval of this 
zone change with conditions. Staff concurs with the recommendation. 
 
Mayor Grayson opened the public hearing on this item. Seeing no one wishing to 
speak for or against the item, she closed the public hearing. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Leigh asked if the property will include a drive or will it be accessed 
from the adjoining properties’ driveways. Mrs. Smith stated that TXDOT has 
reviewed the property, and because a driveway already exists, the property owner 
will not be required to remove it. Mr. Leigh asked if there was a possibility to make a 
wider driveway that tied in with one of the adjoining properties’ driveways. The 
property owner, Brad Dusek, stated that he had met with TXDOT on the site, and he 
was told that TXDOT wanted the driveway to be in the middle of the property along 
Lake Road. He said that its location will also depend on the development of the 
property. 

 
Upon a motion by Councilmember Jerri Gauntt and a second by Councilmember 
Pearson, item 12 was approved upon a vote of 6-0.  
 

13. Consider a final plat for River Place Estates, Phase IX, Section 2, a 6.195 acre 
tract of land, located north of River Fair Boulevard, east of Red River Road, 
and west of North Main Street. 

 
Director of Planning Erin Smith explained that this single family subdivision, contains 
23 lots, and is proposed as River Place Estates, Phase IX, Section 2. The 
preliminary plat for River Place Estates, Phase IX, containing 53 lots, was approved 
by Council on April 28, 2015, and the final plat for Phase I was approved on August 
25, 2016. This final plat submittal for Section 2 complies with the Subdivision 
Ordinance final plat submittal requirements in all respects.  
   
Mrs. Smith said that Trinity Drive will function as a minor collector and will contain a 
5-foot sidewalk along the east side with a 10-foot public utility easement directly 



Belton City Council Meeting 
May 24, 2016 – Page 5 
 

  

adjacent to the property line. She reminded Council that on August 25, 2015, an 
amendment to the Sidewalk Standards was approved that required sidewalks along 
both sides of collector streets. When the policy was changed, Council also approved 
a resolution listing subdivisions and associated collector streets, where plats had 
already been submitted, that would be exempt from this new sidewalk requirement. 
Trinity Drive was included; therefore, only one sidewalk side is required.   
 
Mrs. Smith stated that a second means of egress is required when there are more 
than 30 residential lots in a proposed subdivision. There are 30 lots in Section 1 and 
23 lots proposed in Section 2. In August 2015, Council approved the final plat for 
Section 1 with the condition that a second means of egress must be constructed in 
Section 2. She explained that the applicant is proposing to create a 15-foot wide fire 
access easement extending from River Fair Boulevard to Barton Creek Road. The 
Fire Marshal has reviewed this proposal and finds it acceptable for emergency 
access. Mrs. Smith added that any future phases will be required to provide a 
permanent second means of access for this subdivision.        
 
According to the Subdivision Ordinance, each residential subdivision is required to 
dedicate sufficient and suitable parkland and/or payment of fees-in-lieu of required 
parkland. Mrs. Smith said that, during the preliminary plat review, the developer 
proposed to pay a fee-in-lieu of $6,000 for the 30 lots in Section 1. The developer is 
now proposing to pay an additional $4,600 for the 23 lots in Section 2, for a total of 
$10,600. She added that when the next phase of River Place Estates is proposed, 
Staff will work with the developer to find a suitable neighborhood park location, and 
the $10,600 in funds can be utilized for land acquisition for a neighborhood park 
and/or parkland improvements. 
 
Mrs. Smith said that, at their meeting on May 17, 2016, the Planning and Zoning 
Commission unanimously recommended approval of this final plat with conditions, 
and Staff concurs with their recommendation. 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Leigh asked when the City receives the parkland fee from the 
developer. Mrs. Smith responded that it is required before the construction plans are 
released. 
 
Upon a motion by Councilmember Paul Sanderford and a second by 
Councilmember Kirkley, item 13 was approved upon a vote of 6-0.  

 
The Mayor stated that she would read items 14 and 15 together, and they would be 
presented together as well since they are related. 
 
14. Consider a preliminary/final plat for Cameron Hills II, a 19.393 acre tract of 

land, located on the north side of Sparta Road, west of Lake to Lake Road 
right-of-way and west and south of Dawson Ranch, Phases 5 and 6.  

 
15. Consider authorizing the purchase of 3.546 acres of land from Don and Billie 

Cameron for Lake-to-Lake Road right-of-way. 



Belton City Council Meeting 
May 24, 2016 – Page 6 
 

  

City Manager Sam Listi stated that acquisition of the Cameron property represents 
the last private property parcel needed in the city limits for the future Lake-to-Lake 
Road project. At Council’s direction, management has recommended ROW 
acquisition for nearly 20 years, through subdivision plats and purchases as needed. 
He said that in 2015 the alignment was finalized with TXDOT after much discussion. 
 
Mr. Listi added that, with the alignment, a need for a local access road connecting 
Lake to Lake Road with Sparta Road was identified. An overpass will go over Sparta 
Road and the railroad tracks, and a spur will be needed to access Lake to Lake 
Road. This need will be addressed through the acquisition of the Cameron property. 
He said that the Camerons accepted the City’s offer which includes: 
 
• Purchase of the 3.546 acres for $95,700 based on the appraisal; 
• Plat of the Cameron property, since our acquisition is creating a subdivision; 
• Extension of a 2-inch water line to provide domestic water service for the two 

Cameron residences and set two meters on Sparta Road; 
• Relocation of an access gate to the new Cameron property line; and 
• Installation of a looped water line and fire hydrant utility system improvement 

connecting to the existing 16-inch line when the connector road between Sparta 
and Lake-to-Lake Road is built in the future. 

 
The total cost of the acquisition is $103,239 which includes the land and remaining 
recording, water line and gate costs. Mr. Listi explained that funds for the purchase 
will come from the Park Fund, Water/Sewer Fund and General Fund Contingency. 
He added that the next step will be to acquire the Corp of Engineer’s Belton 
Lakeview Park property at FM 439 and FM 2271, for which discussions are ongoing. 
Also, additional work with Bell County on ROW acquisition and KTMPO on funding 
will be needed to move this project forward. 
 
Director of Planning Erin Smith explained that the Cameron Hills II plat is proposed 
as a 3-lot subdivision, and it includes a ROW dedication for the FM 2271 Spur. FM 
2271 Spur will be a local roadway that is needed to provide future access from 
Sparta Road to Lake to Lake Road, since there will ultimately be a bridge for Lake to 
Lake Road extending over Sparta Road, BNSF railroad, and Nolan Creek. Mrs. 
Smith said that the existing driveway leading to the existing two homes will remain 
within the proposed FM 2271 Spur ROW to provide access to Lots 1 and 2, Block 2, 
until this roadway is constructed in the future. Since Lot 2, Block 2 does not have 
property frontage along the proposed FM 2271 Spur ROW, a 30 feet wide access 
easement will extend from the FM 2271 Spur ROW to this lot.   
 
This subdivision requires parkland dedication of 0.03 acres or $600 parkland fee for 
the three lots. Since two of the lots contain existing houses, and the other lot is not 
proposed for single family construction, Mrs. Smith explained that Staff recommends 
approval of a variance to the parkland requirements, given there will be no increase 
in the number of lots.   
 



Belton City Council Meeting 
May 24, 2016 – Page 7 
 

  

Cameron Hills II Plat results in: 
 
• Two Cameron lots – Lot 1 (15 acres) and Lot 2, Block 2 (1 acre); 
• FM 2271 Spur – Future connector road ROW between Sparta Road and Lake to 

Lake Road; and 
• A 1.6 acre remainder – Lot 1, Block 1 – open space parcel for park use. 
 
Mrs. Smith stated that, at their meeting on May 17, 2016, the Planning and Zoning 
Commission unanimously recommended approval of this preliminary/final plat with 
conditions, and Staff concurs with their recommendation. 
 
Councilmember Gauntt asked how residents will access the parkland. Mrs. Smith 
discussed the Hike and Bike Trail that is being built currently in that area that will 
eventually run the full length of the Lake to Lake Road. She added that the parkland 
could also be accessed from Sparta Road. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Leigh expressed his concern about the possibility for the subdivision 
to be divided into more lots than shown currently in the future. He felt that the 
contract had some vagueness related to when the water line would be looped and 
when the road would be built. He suggested language in the purchase agreement 
that says as long as the number of lots does not increase, the City would agree to 
install the looped water line and the road. However, if the property was developed 
into more than the three lots with the existing two residences, the City would be 
installing portions of the development that the City typically requires the developer to 
install. Mr. Leigh said he could not support what he felt was an open-ended 
commitment. 
 
City Attorney John Messer said that the Council could make whatever changes they 
desired, and the Camerons could choose to agree or not. 
 
Councilmember Paul Sanderford asked what portion of Lake to Lake Road was 
described in the letter as “built in the future.” Mrs. Smith and Mr. Listi responded that 
it is the section shown in pink on the map, which is approximately 1,000 feet. 
 
Mayor Grayson stated that she felt the length of time that park funds would be 
committed to this parkland property before the road would actually be built giving 
access to the park was disconcerting. Mr. Listi said that the trail access to the park 
could be completed sooner. Mrs. Grayson asked if the Council could approve the 
purchase with a development agreement to be provided later. Mr. Messer said that 
the Council needed to provide specifics to the City Manager to use in negotiations 
with the Camerons.  
 
A motion was made by Councilmember Kirkley for approval of the purchase of the 
Cameron property as written; however, the motion failed for lack of a second.  
 



Belton City Council Meeting 
May 24, 2016 – Page 8 
 

  

Mr. Listi said it appeared to him that the Council was not comfortable with item 3a. 
He said that we need to ensure that our commitment to extend the waterline and 
build the road only occurs in conjunction with the construction of Lake to Lake Road 
in the future.  
 
Councilmember Sanderford asked how negotiations for the loop road and water line 
came into play and wondered what the thinking was behind it. Mr. Listi said that it is 
a public street improvement for the Lake to Lake Road project. Under current 
conditions the loop is only necessary for the two lots as they exist right now. It is a 
public need created by this division that the City is instigating, so it was felt to be the 
City’s obligation. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Leigh said that he was not against the purchase. He just feels that 
some items in the purchase agreement need clarification. 
 
Mr. Listi recommended that both items be tabled until the next Council meeting. 

 
Councilmember Kirkley made another motion to table items 14 and 15 to the June 
14, 2016, Council meeting which was seconded by Councilmember Pearson. The 
motion to table items 14 and 15 to the June 14, 2016, Council meeting passed upon 
a vote of 6-0. 

 
16. Consider award of bid and authorizing the City Manager to execute a 

construction contract for Sparta Road Pavement Replacement Project, and 
any change orders associated with the contract, not to exceed the amount 
authorized under state law. 
 
Director of Internal Services/City Engineer Angellia Points said that in February 
2015, the Council authorized KPA Engineers to complete the design of Sparta Road. 
She explained that the pavement has failed many times in the area between 
Walmart and Main Street. A geotechnical analysis determined that Sparta Road is 
not designed for the actual traffic and vehicle loads that it is being subjected to at 
this time.   
 
Mrs. Points said that the project was broken into phases: 
 
Phase 1 – Sparta Road from Main Street to the west entrance to Walmart. 
Phase 2 – Walmart to Loop 121, including the roundabout at the Commerce Drive 
intersection with Sparta Road. 
 
Four bids were received on May 12, 2016, for the construction of the Phase 1 
improvements. The low bidder was Alpha Paving out of Round Rock with a bid of 
$400,447.50.  
 
The Engineer’s Opinion of Probable Cost to construct the Project was $636,000 from 
discussions with asphalt providers and contractors, which is $235,552.50 higher 
than the lowest bid. KPA, the City Engineer, and a review team evaluated the bids, 



Belton City Council Meeting 
May 24, 2016 – Page 9 
 

  

interviewed the low bidder, and determined that Alpha Paving, the low bidder, has 
the capability and experience to perform to the requirements of the contract. 
Although Alpha Paving has not worked with the City of Belton in previous projects, 
their work history, testing results, and business financials show they have a good 
record of completing quality projects on time and on budget. Contract documents 
require the contractor to complete the work by July 1, 2016, and allow the work to be 
performed overnight between 6:00pm and 7:00am.  
 
Councilmember Gauntt asked if there was a way to get rid of the “suicide lane.” Mrs. 
Points said that discussion had taken place about using raised medians, but since 
there are so many private entrances, it would be difficult and costly. 
 
Upon a motion by Councilmember Pearson and a second by Councilmember 
Sanderford, item 16 was approved upon a vote of 6-0. 
 

17. Consider a resolution authorizing the submittal of a regional application to the 
Texas Water Development Board for a Flood Protection Planning Grant for the 
Nolan Creen Watershed. 

 
Grants and Special Projects Coordinator Aaron Harris explained that this item 
represents an opportunity for the City of Belton to support a regional grant 
application to the Texas Water Development Board for a Flood Protection Planning 
Grant for the Nolan Creek Watershed. This application was initiated by the Central 
Texas Council of Governments and several area government agencies will 
participate and provide that grant match. 
 
The TWDB Flood Protection Planning Program is designed to assist communities in 
evaluating regional solutions to flooding problems. Only regional applications are 
eligible and require a 50 percent match, which would be shared between the 
participating communities. Belton’s identified cost share is $12,578, or approximately 
4.6% of the required match of $273,350 for the estimated $546,700 total project 
cost. The deadline for submission of the grant application to the Water Development 
Board is June 17, 2016.  
 
Mr. Harris said that the Plan would study structural and non-structural approaches to 
reducing flood damage. The structural approaches could include channelization, 
regional detention, bridges, and culverts. Non-structural approaches could include 
additional flood early warning monitors, enhanced software for the existing flood 
early warning system, flood-prone land acquisition, and storm water management 
standards (ordinances).  
 
Mr. Harris stated that the potential benefits for Belton include: 
 
• Assess potential need for regional detention pond(s) upstream of Belton  
• Update the drainage model/map to analyze impact of current and future 

development 



Belton City Council Meeting 
May 24, 2016 – Page 10 
 

  

• Identify removal of East Avenue A (Shirt-Tail Bend) low water crossing as a 
regional project 

• Study the need and location of additional monitoring stations and warning sirens 
• Enhance software for flood warning and display a more user friendly interactive 

platform for the public  
• Combine potential projects with water quality components to tie into the 

Watershed Protection Plan that is currently being developed by Texas Institute 
for Applied Environmental Research (TAIER).  

 
Mr. Harris added that if the grant application is selected and approved by the TWDB, 
the project would be funded over two fiscal years. He said that Staff will pursue the 
possibility of providing in-kind services to minimize the identified cost share such as 
applying components of the City’s updated Drainage Master Plan to this study.  
 
He explained that Killeen, Harker Heights, Nolanville, Brazos River Authority and 
Bell County WCID #6 have expressed support for this regional grant application. Bell 
County and Fort Hood have not expressed support or remain uncommitted at this 
time. Councilmember Pearson asked if the region would still be able to apply if Bell 
County and Fort Hood do not participate. Mr. Harris responded that the application 
would still be viable.  
  
Upon a motion by Councilmember Pearson and a second by Councilmember 
Kirkley, item 16 was approved upon a vote of 6-0. 

 
Executive Session 

 
18. Executive Session pursuant to the provisions of the Texas Open Meetings Act, 

Chapter 551, Govt. Code, Vernon's Texas Codes Annotated, in accordance 
with the authority contained in Section 551.071, consultation with attorney. 

 
The Mayor announced that the Executive Session was not needed, and there being no 
further business, she adjourned the meeting at 6:54 p.m. 
 
 

 
 

_____________________________  
Marion Grayson, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________  
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 



City Council Agenda Item 
June 14, 2016 

Page 1 of 1   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
Agenda Item #6 
 
Consider appointments/reappointments to the following: 
 

A. Parks Board 
B. Zoning Board of Adjustment 

 
 
Originating Department 
 
Administration – Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 
 
 
Background 

 
A. Josh Pearson’s and Daniel Bucher’s terms on the Parks Board will expire on June 

20, 2016. Mayor Marion Grayson is recommending both for reappointment, and they 
have each expressed a desire to serve another two year term. 
 

B. David Jarratt’s and Lewis Simms’ terms on the Zoning Board of Adjustment will 
expire on June 25, 2016. Mayor Marion Grayson is recommending both for 
reappointment, and they have each expressed a desire to serve another two year 
term. 
 
 

Fiscal Impact 
 
N/A 
 
 
Recommendation 
 
Recommend approval of the reappointments. 
 
 
Attachments 
None 



City Council Agenda Item 
June 14, 2016 

Page 1 of 2   
 

 
Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
Agenda Item #7 
     
Consider authorizing the purchase of 3.546 acres of land from Don and Billie Cameron for 
Lake-to-Lake Road right-of-way. 
 
Originating Department 
 
Administration – Sam A. Listi, City Manager 
 
Summary Information 
 
Please see City Council Agenda Item for the May 24, 2016 meeting. 
 
This item was presented to City Council for action on May 24, 2016, at which time 
Management recommended purchase of 3.546 acres from Don and Billie Cameron for 
needed Lake to Lake Road right of way. At that meeting, Council sought clarification 
concerning the conditions of the purchase, specifically when the connector road – Spur 
2271 – and the looped city water line, would be built. It was our intent that these 
improvements be provided by the City, but not until needed in conjunction with Lake to Lake 
Road construction. Council sought to clarify that, if the remaining Cameron property is 
redeveloped before the Spur 2271 connector road is needed for access between the Lake 
to Lake Road and Sparta Road, the connector road and water line extensions should be the 
responsibility of the developer. Council tabled action on this item to the June 14th meeting to 
clarify this timing question with the sellers. 
 
I prepared a revised offer letter, secured approval of the City Attorney’s office, and met with 
the Camerons on May 26th to review the proposed changes. Following an explanation of the 
reason for the changes, the Camerons signed the revised offer letter. Highlighted changes 
and the signed offer letter are attached. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
Source of funds for this important acquisition include: 

a. Park Fund:     $ 18,200 
b. Water/Sewer Fund:    $   5,964 
c. General Fund Contingency:  $ 79,075 

Total:      $103,239 
 
Budgeted:   Yes    No  Capital Project Funds (Park Fee) 
 
If not budgeted:   Budget Transfer     Contingency   Amendment Needed     



City Council Agenda Item 
June 14, 2016 

Page 2 of 2   
 

Recommendation 
 
Consistent with the FY 2016 Strategic Plan directing continued ROW acquisition for the 
Lake to Lake Road, and specifically acquisition of the Cameron property, recommend 
approval of Cameron land acquisition based on the revised offer letter dated May 26, 2016. 
 
Also recommend approval of the associated preliminary/final plat of Cameron Hills II 
subdivision plat. 
 
Attachments 
 
City of Belton’s Revised Offer Letter Executed by Camerons on May 26, 2016 
Lake-to-Lake Road Alignment/Cameron Hills II Plat 
Cameron Hills II Staff Report, Plat, Aerial Photo 
Cameron Property Appraisal 
FY 2016 Strategic Plan Excerpt 
Corps of Engineer’s Letter Requests (March 17 and April 7, 2016) 







 
 

 City of Belton 
           − Founded 1850 − 
 
May 26, 2016 
 
Mr. & Mrs. Don Cameron 
2312 Sparta Road 
Belton, Texas 76513 
 
Dear Mr. & Mrs. Cameron: 
 
I want to thank you again for your courtesy during several visits to City Hall to discuss right-of-
way (ROW) needs for the Lake to Lake Road project.  As we have discussed, the City would like 
to acquire a 3.546 acre tract for this project, and this letter outlines an offer to you based upon 
our conversations and understandings. 
 
Subject to City Council approval, the City of Belton proposes to acquire the 3.546 acre tract 
referenced in the attachments, conditioned on the following elements of compensation, some 
provided at closing and some in the future. 
 

1. The City will pay you the appraised value of $95,700 at closing. See attached appraisal. 
 

2. The City agrees to provide these water improvements within 90 days of closing at no cost 
to you: 
 

a. The City will extend a 2” water line a distance of approximately 650’ to provide 
domestic water service to the two Cameron parcels shown on the exhibit; 

 
b. The City will make two taps and install two 5/8” meters at the end of this public 

line.  You will be responsible for hiring a plumber to extend a private water line 
to the two Cameron residences; and 

 
c. Your gate, currently located at your property entrance on the north side of Sparta 

Road, will be relocated to the point of water service, approximately 650’ north of 
Sparta Road, to a mutually agreeable location, in conjunction with extension of 
water service.  You will remain responsible for driveway maintenance within the 
FM 2271 Spur until the connector street is built. 

 
3. The City agrees to provide these future water and street improvements to serve the two 

existing Cameron residences when the Lake to Lake Road Street Project is built between 
Sparta Road and Chisholm Trail Parkway. 
 

a. The existing 8” water line, located on the north side of Sparta Road, will be 
extended and looped northward and eastward a distance of approximately 1090’ 
to connect to the 16” water line located on the east side of the Lake to Lake ROW.  
Timing for installation of this future public water line by the City will be in 
conjunction with construction of the FM 2271 Spur connector street between 
Sparta and Lake to Lake Road. 

 
 
333 Water Street      P.O. Box 120      Belton, Texas 76513      Phone (254) 933-5818      Fax (254) 933-5822 





647 Ft. 

1088 Ft. m FM2271 Extension 

CJ Property Boundaries 



- 647 Ft. 

1088 Ft. 

FM2271 Extension 

D Property Boundaries 

City Limits 



Hal Dunn & Associates 
SURVEY MAP ADDENDUM File No. 19316CH 

Case No. 

Borrower Not Applicable 
Property Address 3.546 ac. on Sparta Rd. 

City Belton County Bell State TX Zip Code 
Lender/Client City of Belton Address 333 Water St. , Belton , TX 76513 

MAP OF 3.546 ACRES OR 154,447 SQ. FT. OF LAND 
SITUATED IN THE LEWIS WALKER SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO 860 

BELL COUNTY, TEXAS \ 
SURVE:YOR'S NQTE:S ....... 

N't-.iitiak --,_. ..... ..... ~ ... .... 
J Tt~· · ... 
....,.CfUCl'IO ........ 
Ou...r• ... 1 

""'"'°'""'" c.na-11-
0tfMSll i 

-~ ........ 
41Dr.C.O»al 
tnicteli#oe .,,_ - .. .... 1""' .... .......... _ ... 
''""'""* ... nuice..,..w .... -. ,.,._ 
offlol.aor• -· .... ...... 
611••·• 
tit~ ...... ..--lltwt. ... -........... - .... .. ,,~ ........ . -· .. -... ,_ .... 
tel n.. ..... 
~·---! -"-· ............. 
:1n.. ... 1 -· 

<thiltthtUft•~n~ .... tot,.,..., t .. _,....t:d_ 
~icn::i=-::-
..... ,wiw..-..nt«Wlltolt~ 

,......,Clof1-~ ..... ,,. 
"""""'•tw>tHl<Ait«tCll"OIN'l'l'r 
:-..~,.,._, .... .,...Gl'i 
Oit.V'lt l.ttool~$yUar-• 
kill• Mttlt (wdNw"""""' 
IJ n.~du!,I«*• 
'*""'rd---dtoodldktt. 

"' Aott.iruoo .. ·-al'Q).as.~ h6 
>dStPlWbflllltlOl, .... 1 .. ,-.1 
~lt\lllf't'lllfiZ.,.~..-
'J.HOfio.d~~-
~tlUIN't1•4ro..,.,.....,. 
OC*>4'tf.ot .... rhllltlf~ 

...,,.....,~ ... "''"° 
-~ ... MNllW"Mll&.-81 
tt. ..... llOQllQ,.,,.,..,..i,.. 

""""'"''"' wwm. .... Wfl'KfnKI 
~('lfWW.tltDlld lobftA~ 

.... ll(btl1111N"1il'IM1Wlf\'O" ... "-"'·~'"'...,,_..,.,.,.. 
•flilHll(•tNtlH11.i ... .a\fldll 
4WU1t°"""'loUl"O•U'llOt\t 

~••4"fl!oot11 1 ........ ...,. 
'1.Kt~,. NJIHClM~V~ 

'""'°"'""'"""~-· .,'*'!WU~.,........,. ... ..... 
..... !Nil-*bt ........ . 
"llt qrfflt«t tN MlltC'lnctd 

• _....,..11.-~ .. ~
.... lot,,..c .... ..,.,,.""' 

-~··"""""""' ...... """""'~.,.,..., 
,.....,.t'I~ 

'"""-"• 'IRtlikll•Dt•• ...... .,, ...... 

LEGEND 

0 -..~ ,.., . .,,_,,~ 
• 

j 
I 

-..... _,_ .. 
C..UJI t U'"" 

Cll!U• ..,llt 
MCll N .... 

(' 

"" 
''"'.,........- • .in• 

-- raPi.l'IMilNO 101JCl900 

Sightline Surveying 
J1021oAJttflo.kl 

lat Al'leDlfo, T- 112t1 
()floe, (210) 2IMOT1 

1MA&.·~a:W 

i 

gO<j-.~•itl)"" .. I 
•.ut•a.Ml'ICN 

f0t.,rlrt11l'Ofl .. W•llD'l•tvr.cJ.t<Jn.1'f 
OOC. • »UOU))Mol~ 

:lWl!.::MJQ)I 

3 546ACRES 

,,., ... ,, ... 
...... t:.l.tl.1• 

..-:»•J•m 
"' 
\ 

I . 

""' /f° • .> 
l'O<NTOf 
llGlNNING 

i• R'vl:rD"'$QlmflCAf( 

0 
/ 

' . . 
,,. 

'O • 

"""'. VOUlll 

' ' ~ T..-11"-a1i.1trtdPrtt11u~U"4Su• .. fl'1 "'o.1540,dollftKivc.ruf\ 
a1~,..n.cu1tw'"""'1bofr1 twi l._ro\ll'lf1o,111tr• CAdue\tdhyp1l'IOl"'rwlworl 
1weM110n•M tott>t Mltaf ~ \n"Jllit' .... tltrut •'lCI xc ... ~t• Md .W..~ftV' 
l\ulft11WJ~t1Qt11r11t~w"lllftUol'F'll(li1•.n•IJOottdbVr'fTl)W.St1111I01fd( 

Li'd'-JM'l'WIC 

&~ . 
·~ ; .. ~ 

0 '"11"'' 

76513-5227 

Produced by ClickFORMS Software 800-622-8727 Page 12 of 35 



rn 
Q X 

- - _L 

I ~ot~NCDBY 

= • CHl Cl(OllY 

OJ 

L 
I 

S7 
Ui 
::::! 
n 
S7 
0 
c 
2 
;; 
2 
r-
)> 

2 
rr, 

Tl 
t -j c 

I -i 
1C 

::::0 
,, rn 

I ~ 
I 

'' rn 
':t> 
-i 
::::0 
0 
:t> 
0 

I r;n 
I x 

-i 
rn 
z 
(fl 

0 
z 

' 
I 

i . 

0 

~~. ··~s .. . , 
,..,,,, 

If 

YTURRIA DRIVE 

BANDAS ENGINEER.ING CO. 
CIVIL ENGINEERING FIR/'\ t F-3162 

415 COTIINGHAM DRIVE (254) 778-8728 
TEMPLE , TEXA5 76504 FAX (254) 778-3940 

- .b.11nduenglnffr!nt.com b.11nduen11lneerina~sbq;lob•l.net 

• 2011· · 

TRACT MAP UPDATE 
CAMERON TRACTS 

\\ 

;; )\ ; 

r 

DAWSON RANCH PHASE VI 
CAROTHERS DEVELOPMENT L.L.C. 

50 WHEAT ROAD 
BEL TON, TEXAS 76513 

PRELI MINAR\ 





Staff Report - Planning & Zoning Item 

Date: 
Case No.: 
Request: 
Applicant: 

Agenda Item 

May 17, 2016 
P-16-17 
Preliminary/Final Plat 
Sightline Surveying/ 
Bandas Engineering 

P-16-17 Consider a preliminary/final plat for Cameron Hills II, a 19.393 acre tract of land, 
located on the north side of Sparta Road, west of Lake to Lake Road right-of-way and west 
and south of Dawson Ranch, Phases 5 and 6. 

Originating Department 

Planning - Erin Smith, Director of Planning 

Case Summary 

This is a 3-lot subdivision with ROW dedication for FM 2271 Spur. 

Project Analysis and Discussion · 

This is a 3-lot single family subdivision plat proposed as Cameron Hills II subdivision. 
Proposed Lot 1, Block 1 and Lot 1, Block 2 are zoned Agricultural Zoning District and 
proposed Lot 2, Block 2 is zoned Single Family-1 Zoning Dis.trict. Lots 1 and 2, Block 2 each 
contain a single family home. The size of the proposed Lot 1, Block 2 is 14.892 acres in size, 
in conformance with the Agricultural Zoning District Zoning District lot size requirements and. 
the size of the proposed Lot 2, Block 2 is 0.955 acres in size, in conformance with the Single 
Family-1 Zoning District lot size requirements. The City is working with the owners, Don and 
Billie Cameron to acquire 1.927 acres of ROW for FM 2271 Spur and the remaining 1.620 
acres south of the ROW shown as Lot 1, Block 1 on this proposed plat. FM 2271 Spur will be 
a local roadway that is needed to provide future access from Sparta Road to Lake to Lake 
Road, since there will ultimately be a bridge for Lake to Lake Road extending over Sparta 
Road, BNSF railroad, and Nolan Creek. The existing driveway leading to the two homes will 
remain within the proposed FM 2271 Spur ROW to provide access to Lots 1 and 2, Block 2, 
until this roadway is constructed in the future. Since Lot 2, Block 2 does not have property 
frontage along the proposed FM 2271 Spur ROW, a 30 feet wide access easement will 
extend from the FM 2271 Spur ROW to this lot. 

According to the Subdivision Ordinance, any residential subdivision within the City of Belton, 
or within the City's extraterritorial jurisdiction, is required to set aside and dedicate to the 
public sufficient and suitable lands for the purpose of parkland and/or make a financial 

P&Z Agenda Item 
May 17, 2016 

Page 1of2 



contribution for the acquisition and development of such parkland. These requirements may 
be satisfied through parkland dedication or payment of fees-in-lieu of required parkland or a 
combination of the two. This subdivision requires parkland dedication of 0.03 acres or $600 
parkland fee for the three lots. Since two of the lots contain existing houses and the other lot 
is not proposed for single family construction, staff recommends approval of a variance to the 
parkland requirements, given no increase in number of lots. 

City staff have reviewed the plat and find it acceptable, subject to conditions contained in the 
letter to the applicant's engineer dated May 9, 2016. 

Recommendation 

Recommend approval of a preliminary/final plat for Cameron Hills II, a 19.393 acre tract of 
land, located on the north side of Sparta Road, west of Lake to Lake Road right-of-way and 
west and south of Dawson Ranch, Phases 5 and 6. 

Attachments 

1 . Final Plat Application 
2. Final Plat 
3. Location Map 

P&Z Agenda Item 
May 17, 2016 

Page 2 of 2 



LOCATION MAP 
1" •1,50IT 

.......,._,. 
1"'5 MIOllOON 15 MMJf P'lliM n1N "¥' ..a21COlJD(. Ml'tD Kl'l. 
H , ~ llU AlltAS Of lHll Sl.SIMSOl All( ti "ZOHI: II: Aol(JtS 
DaOM1CD TO • OU'l1ICC or lMl on MH.W.. owcc n.ooo. • 

l1li 'kJ".'~1.!'.ffWo.. ... ,.. """""" 
ttlmlOl.l'l'Sl'l:MWCINLIWCNn• 
~ • - u (w.a.., rOAS cc .. 11w.. ZOtC: J 
oam.m !OJ'J'"6:1, 141 
l'.AS1llC l111SI LH7 
CU'#lllON $97.• 
c:t»M:WlOCC I° ,,. S&.711' 
eotimNCDSCAl.Lf.+cn:Mt 0."'ltlLlJI 

~ 1-15 (Nl.O u lCLU CCM1M. ?CM'. ) 
NCll1HNC IOJT'Hll.1 11 
tllSTIC l\IJ:271_J'IO 
CUW.l'Qll llUO 
cawmoocc 1• 2r 21. 11· 
~D IC.lrtl...[ f.ICTOll O.llNILJO 

TMr KliltlC MM II THC LM ntOM WOt«MCM 1-1 ' TO 
llOUCJf'lt-15 
wtOI «AM S 117°:11'11' t. ,Iii!, Ol!l'NCO Alll: mlD DIStANCD. 

llnel ... ..... ,._ ... swo:tlO"W ... ,. ne· '$/ 41"'W 

" 12.07' sa'OI' 0'1111 

1t.H ' UTI0'5N ,,,,. SH' 4TIN 

u IJl .41' ..... -~ .. 

L7 130.~ SWOl'Ol"W 

Sight/ine Surveying 
5702 SoutMm Olik• 

SM Antonkl. Tu.ms 711291 
Offtce (210) 20&-90n FIX (210) 5&8-4382 

EMAIL: "ricbheleyOomll,mm" 

FINAL PLAT OF CAMERON HILLS II, 
BEING 19.393 ACRES OF LAND SITUA TED JN THE ----

LEWIS WALKER SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 860 ,,__...-J 

I 

i 
I 

OOtrlALOGOllPAUH 
lUUCRlS 

¥OLnt5PG.n 
Jrm. 15, 1!119 

~cy 

-~,. 

SCALI:: 1 ~ • 100' 

Ctr!!!ig;qlft pl !ht Owntc 

l<JtlOr AU. It/EN BY rtlESZ ,.R8SBNTS, 
nlOI - c- ,.......,. "-.....,. l,..1, eo.. W. C•....,.,.. """ 911119 Q. c.m.ron, 

Co-T""91au. llNll U.. .,__Bort....._ .... t11 1olti °"""*"of ti. lolld .._ in 
1N1p1Dt...i""'9M'"'*e1na.c-~1,.,.......,to1i.m,of..._9ell 
County, T1-, rid olwM 110,... ii .....,.... ....._, he•~ dldcale 11D the '- .. it.. 
PwMic 1-. .. mtr..U.,........ oettt--., ..... ~1. DN1 ,ubllc plocet tt1 -"-C-0.. romilr Jt..oc:at.M Tr111! 
23U Sporle Rood 
~Te..,.71!\l 

-----·----
Don w. Com1ron. Co-Tf\lelH ,.,.. ee.n.ro.. r·~ Jt-obll l NDt 

STATtOfn:x,+.st 
COUNT'f'Of llCLL I 

TlllslrslrumentWC111~belor1rneonll'lit __ ..,. 

~~~~-· 2016 A.O. 8't Don W. c-on, Co-Trvat .. for Caro\eron roma,-

___ J NOlARYPUM.ICSTATt Of lttA.S 

~ Com~hplt-

J.llACIUOfUiNO 
lUUC sw.HNOH DICW A 
GUAlO llOWO OU'# 
DOC.HQ.IGll-«11-"'-

laOCTlOU - - -, ,_ 

5.19 AQES OF I.AHO 
X»fHA.IUftNSAHO 

SPOUSE MAIUlVH R. ll/1015 
OOC. HO. l00!Ml001717) 

IJ MAV 1009 

LEGcND 
.. ·COii....._,_ 
• ·112'•Rod ,_...MNlllloll 

• • tl1'•Aod ,....WlltC..W'll440' 

0 · iz.1:'~-C.."llPU"5ol0' 
II•,....._ 

14. 

I • 

- _, - - l 

/ 
I 

I 
I 

ti ,.,. 
) 

// 

l 

r -
I ' 

_ ,_ - J I • 

- l - _, 

TAX CERTlflCATE 

- - - , 
- - - J 

I ' 

TN hi C--, T• ....... °'91rirl,. Iha ...... ~ 1., .. lfll!l:H 
lllWCowily, T_ .... _...,_..,tNt ....,..,,_,.~,. 
~i- ................. ~._,.lt>M_, 1,. (lllnl. 

OP!ed~ -----"' " 
, A.O. iou 

... cow11tyTo•...,,.ollol oi.tf'llll 

n..m fOR Jt!COltO 1hll - dQ¥ al----- 20111, A.O. 

-----Pk>!. R.c:ordl of !hi County, 1 ... 

o.dicll!lon !Mf~ ~ Humr.r - -----

r ~or0f~L 1t 
Tllll ln11Nl'Mftl '"' ~d Mlor1 me°" thi9 __ ... • 

-------· toll A.O. By a:m. G. ~ Co-Tf\11\H for c- r.~ 
11:--.1rve1. 

LIM9rOWT>-Soti,,..,.,,... 
2306Sporlofl.ood 
S.Kon, Te-71513 

STATt OfTCXAS I 
COi.MT'!' Of K U t 

Tllll IN!tum""t •o• oct~ bef0t1 me .,. 11111 __ doV of 

----· 20 11 A.O. 8't IJeo .,,.1'1_.,.I.,__, 

NOTM'f "*-JC ltATt Of ltXAS 
frib'~[>rplf __ _ 

Crllfkgle q f lbg s ... tsterad f'tglsulqnq! I and Sl!Oltl!Q!" 

c;;.-;;;;;------ -----~ 

Ctrllfk;ple o f t.pmqygl bw lb• Qty C!!Mllcl· 
1 '--~c..tlf11t.ot\hc-.Wf....,...,ploio/Comoron~l,~Addllilll'llO 

:" e., .i Bo1t~~'.'°:o1r.;-.,. ~1yc;;;;;.0i4%. Qty of Ballon, r ..... 

y;;o-;-------- ...... .., 
SoW ocld;llof'l IMIM .Wjocl loollU..Roq........,., ol tlleSubdlwlllofl~ol the 
ca,. olir.tloft. 

.,...., ""'........, lhl1 -- ..... -- '"' 

Clly°"""-------

SHEET I OF I 



PROPOSED PLAT: 
Final Plat 
Cameron Hills II 
Acres: 19.393 

PROPERTY OWNER: 
CAMERON FAMILY
REVOCABLE TRUST 



APPRAISAL REPORT 

OF 

3.546 ac. on Sparta Rd. 
Belton, TX 76513-5227 

PREPARED FOR 

City of Belton 
333 Water St. 

Belton, TX 76513 

ASOF 

2/4/16 

PREPARED BY 

Hal Dunn & Associates: 5106 S. General Bruce Dr., Suite 200, Temple, TX 76502 
HalDunn_Associates@yahoo.com 



Borrower Not Applicable 
Property Address 3.546 ac. on Sparta Rd. 

Hal Dunn & Associates 
Cover Letter 

File No. 1931 6CH 
Case No. 

City Belton County Bell State TX Zip Code 76513-5227 
Lender/Client City of Belton Address 333 Water St., Belton, TX 76513 

5106 S. General Bruce Dr., Suite 200 
Temple, TX 76502 

Hal Dunn and Associates 
Telephone 254-773-2222 

Fax 254-742-1615 

February 4, 2016 

City of Belton 
333 Water St., 
Belton, TX 76513 

Attention : Erin Smith 
Re: Appraisal of 3.546 ac. on Sparta Rd., Belton, TX 
Legal: 3.546 ac. out of the Lewis Walker Survey, Abstracty 860, Bell Co., TX 

In accordance with your request, we have appraised the above-referenced property. The report of that appraisal is attached. 
The objective/purpose of this appraisal is to estimate the market value of the property described in th is appraisal report, as
is. in unencumbered fee-simple title of ownership. 

The intended use of this appraisal is for our client to make financial decisions regard ing the subject property, This appraisa l 
will establish a market value of the real estate for the exdusive use of our client, who is under no restrictions regarding the 
distribution of this report to other Interested parties of choice. The purpose of this appraisal Is to provide an opinion 
of market value along with relevant analysis and data for our client. This appraisal was prepared for utilization 
solely by our client in making financial decisions regarding the sublect property. We have perfomied no appraisal or other 
specified service as an appraiser or in any other capacity regarding the property that is the subject of this report within the 
three-year period immediately preceding the acceptance of this assignment. 

This report is based on a physical ana lysis of the site, a locational analysis of the neighborhood and city, and an economic 
analysis of the market for properties such as the subject. This report determined the highest and best use of the subject, 
completed or analyzed the three approaches to value (when appropriate), and has reconciled the appropriate approaches to 
value into a final estimate of market value. The appraisal was developed and the report was prepared in accordance with 
the Unifomi Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice. According to the Unifomi Standards of Professional Appraisal 
Practice, this report fulfills the requirements of an 'Appraisal Report'. 

The market value conclusions reported are as of the effective date stated in the body of the report, and are contingent upon 
the certification and limiting conditions attached. We are not required to testify or explain the appraisal results other than 
respond to the cl ient's routine and customary questions. This cover letter is invalid as an opinion of value without the 
attached report that contains the text, exhibits, and addenda. 

The existence of any hazardous substances, including and without limitation to asbestos, radon gas, petroleum leakage, or 
agricultural chemicals, or any other environmental conditions, which may or may not be present on or within the property, 
were not called to the attention of the appra iser nor did this appraiser become aware of such during the inspection of the 
subject. Th is appraiser has no knowledge of the existence of such materials, unless otherwise noted. This appraiser Is not 
qualified to detect or test for such substances or conditions. If such substances exist on the subject property, the finding and 
removal of those could be quite costly and could substantially affect the value of the property. The final value estimate is 
predicted on the assumption that there is no such condition on, near, or within the property, or within such proximity thereto 
that it would cause a loss of value. No responsibility is assumed for any such conditions, or for expertise including 
engineering knowledge required to discover them. A title commitment. or qualified engineer. surveyor, or other professional 
would be required to make easement. encroachment, drainage condition. deed restriction, availabilitv and location of utilities. 
liens, soil conditions, asbestos conditions. exact land size, sewer/septic condition, environmental condition, and other 
condition detemiinatlons regarding the subject property. 

After consideration of the data, discussion, and analysis contained within this report and subject to the Assumptions and 
Limiting Conditions, it is concluded that the market value of the subject property, with an estimated marketing period and 
exposure time of 180 to 365 days, as of February 4, 2016, is: 

$95,700, As-Is, Fee-Simple 

It has been a pleasure to assist you. Please do not hesitate to contact us if we can be of additional service to you. 

AppraiserName IL ~/ 
Chris Hering 

Supe~l~//d~ 
Harold P. Dunn 

Produced by ClickFORMS Software 800-622-8727 Page of 35 



Page Title 

Cover Letter 

Certification 

Comments 

Comments Page 2 

Comments Page 3 

Land Appraisal 

Extra Comps 4-5-6 

Land Certification Page 1 

Land Certification Page 2 

Land Certification Page 3 

Subject Photos 

Survey Map 

Field Notes #1 

Field Notes #2 

Field Notes #3 

BellCAD Map 

Aerial View 

Flood Map 

Zoning Map 

Location Map 

Hal Dunn & Associates 

Table of Contents 

Bell County Quickfacts (Source: US Census Bureau) 

Bell County Quickfacts (Source: US Census Bureau) 

Comments 

Comments Page 2 

Photo Comparables 1-2-3 

Photo Comparables 4-5-6 

Appraiser Independence Certification 

Privacy Notice 

Limit.Cond. w/Environ. 

Appraiser Independence Ceritifi 

Appraisal Compliance Addendum 

Appraiser Disclosure Statement 

Engagement Letter 

Appraiser License Certificate 

Appraiser License Certificate 

Produced by ClickFORMS Software 800-622-8727 

File No. 19316CH 
Case No 

Page# 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

.30 

31 

32 

33 

34 

35 



Hal Dunn & Associates 
Certification 

File No. 19316CH 

Case No. 
Borrower Not Applicable 
Property Address 3.546 ac. on Sparta Rd. 
City Belton County Bell State TX Zip Code 76513-5227 
Lender/Client City of Belton Address 333 Water St. , Belton, TX 76513 

CERTIFICATION 

"I Certify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief: 

The statements of fact contained in th is report are true and correct. 

The reported analyses, opinions, and conclusions are limited only by the reported assumptions and 
limiting conditions, and are my personal, unbiased professional analyses, opinions, and conclusions. 

I have no present or prospective interest in the property that is the subject of this report, and I have no 
personal interest or bias with respect to the parties involved. 

My compensation is not contingent upon the reporting of a predetermined value or direction in value that 
favors the cause of the client, the amount of the value estimate, the attainment of a stipulated result, or the 
occurrence of a subsequent event. 

This appraisal assignment was not based on a requested minimum valuation, a specific valuation, or the 
approval of a loan. 

My analyses, opinions, and conclusions were developed and this report has been prepared, in conformity with 
the requirements of the Code of Professional Ethics and the Standards of Professional Practice of the 
Appraisal Institute, and in conformity with the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice. 

I have made a personal inspection of the property that is the subject of this report. 

No one provided significant professional assistance to the person or persons signing this report. 

This appraisal was prepared based upon my experience, and the data available. 

I have not been engaged to provide, and this appraisal does not provide a warranty of any kind that the 
conclusions set forth in this report will, in fact, be realized. 

I have not been engaged to evaluate the effectiveness of the management of the subject property. 

I have not been engaged to be responsible for future marketing efforts and other actions of 
management of the subject property, and they may affect the actual results. 

I have not been engaged to take responsibility for any circumstances; events, or conditions in the economy 
or marketplace that take place or exist subsequent to the effective date of this appraisal. 

This appraisal has not and can not be re-addressed to another client. No other user is intended. 

This appraisal makes no reduction for commissions on the sale of the subject property, unpaid taxes, or liens 
against the subject property. 

Through my experience, education, and other resources, I have established sufficient competence to 
appraise the subject property. 

We have performed no appraisal or other specified service as an appraiser or in any other capacity regarding 
the property that is the subject of this report within the three-year period immediately preceding the 
acceptance of this assignment. " 

Appraiser Name £: 4/ 
Chris Hering 

supe~~/!u~ 
Harold P. Dunn 

Produced by ClickFORMS Software 800-622-8727 Page 2 of 35 



Hal Dunn & Associates 

Purpose of Assignment: 

The purpose of this report is to present this appraiser's concluded opinion of the market value of the fee
simple estate (Full ownership of the complete bundle of rights; Unencumbered by any other interest or 
estate, subject only to the limitations imposed by the government powers of escheat, eminent domain, 
taxation, and police power) of the subject property as of the effective date of this report, along with a 
summary of the data and rationale that support this conclusion for the exclusive use of our client, who is 
under no restrictions regarding the distribution of this report to other interested parties of choice. 

History of the Subiect Property: 

According to county records, the subject property (BellCAD Tax ID#Pt of 16569) has been under the 
ownership of Cameron Family Revocable Trust since 3/7/13. There are no known current listings or 
contracts involving the subject property. 

Legal Description: 

3.546 ac. out of the Lewis Walker Survey, Abstract 860, Bell Co., TX 

Neighborhood: 

The Belton marketplace is a desirable, developing residential area . The area offers easy access to local 
schools, employment centers, recreational facilities and major medical facilities . The neighborhood 
consists of various residential, agricultural, and commercial properties that are generally maintained and 
show pride of ownership. This neighborhood has average-good appeal to the marketplace. The subject 
property is located in an area with good access and traffic flow. Property values in this neighborhood are 
expected to remain stable in the foreseeable future. The subject is located along Sparta Rd., past 
Belton High School. 

Description of the Land: 

The subject land is of sloping topography, and irregular in shape. The land covers approximately 3.546 
acres. The property is located in Flood Zone X according to FEMA Flood Insurance Rate Map, Community 
Panel # 480028-0330E dated 09/26/2008. Public water and sewer is assumed to be feasibly available to 
the property . The subject property has limited frontage on Sparta Rd., a 2-lane, 2-way, asphalt-paved, 
publicly-maintained roadways. 

The assumption was made that the subject property has adequate water & utilities for any future use. 

The subject is currently zoned: Ag - Agriculture 

A new survey, title commitment research, or a site evaluation report would be required in order to know 
more about the subject property such as existing easements, 'encroachments, environmental conditions, 
deed restrictions, asbestos conditions, liens, drainage condition, availability and location of utilities, soil 
conditions, and other site features and conditions. 

Description of the Improvements: 

There are no known improvements of value located on the subject property. 

Hypothetical Conditions and Extraordinary Assumptions: 

This appraisal will be made under the following hypothetical conditions and extraordinary assumptions: 

This appraisal will be made assuming that the t itle is clear, and that there are no adverse easements 
(other than those mentioned previously), encroachments, environmental conditions (above or below 
ground), deed restrictions, liens, drainage issues, soil condit ions, asbestos conditions, and other adverse 
site features and conditions on the subject property. It will be assumed that there are no issues involving 
unrecorded or unplatted agreements for easements, utilities, encroachments, or access on or to the 
property. 

These conditions and assumptions or lack thereof might have affected the assignment results. 

Produced by ClickFORMS Software 800-622-8727 Page 3 of 35 



Hal Dunn & Associates 

HIGHEST AND BEST USE 

Highest and best use may be defined as the reasonably probable and legal use which is physically 
possible, appropriately supported, financially feasible, and that results in the highest value. It is the most 
profitable likely use to which a property can be used. The opinion of such use may be based upon the 
highest and most profitable continuous use to which the property is adapted and needed, or likely to be 
in demand, in the reasonably near future. As implied in its definition, the highest and best use of a 
property must be: 

1. Legally permissible; 
2. Physically possible; 
3. A use for which there is a demand in the area; 
4. Financially feasible; 
5. Reasonably probable and not speculative nor conjectural; 
6. Profitable; 
7. Deliver to the land the highest net return for the longest period of time, or be maximally productive. 

Based on the location of the subject property, the zoning of the subject property, the ability 
to be granted a zoning change relatively easily in this area, and the uses of surrounding 
properties, it Is the opinion of your appraiser that the highest and best use of the subject 
property is Future Development. The highest and best use typically determines the scope 
and process of the appraisal. Therefore, this appraisal will compare the subject property to 
other properties that have future development potential 

DEFINITION OF MARKET VALUE 

Market Value (Source: The Appraisal of Real Estate, 11th Edition by the Appraisal Institute): 

The most probable price, as of a specified date, in cash, or in terms equivalent to cash, or in other 
precisely revealed terms, for which the specified property rights should sell after reasonable exposure in 
a competitive market under all conditions requisite to a fair sale, with the buyer and seller each acting 
prudently, knowledgeably, and for self-interest, and assuming that neither is under undue duress. 
Fundamental assumptions and conditions presumed in this definition are: 

1. Buyer and seller are motivated by self-interest. 

2. Buyer and seller are well informed, well advised, and are acting prudently in what they consider their 
own best interests. 

3. The property is exposed for a reasonable time on the open market. 

4. Payment is made in cash in United States doll~rs, or in ·terms of financial arrangements comparable 
thereto. 

5. The price represents the normal consideration for the property sold unaffected by special or creative 
financing or sales concessions granted by anyone associated with the sale. 

Produced by ClickFORMS Software 800-622-8727 Page 4 of 35 



Hal Dunn & Associates 

VALUATION PROCESS 

The Sales Comparison Approach will be used to estimate the market value of the subject land as a whole. 
This approach utilizes sales of comparable properties to conclude a value estimate for the subject 
property. This involves comparing the sales to the subject property, and making the required 
adjustments for factors that affect the value of the land. This approach is based on the idea that a 
property's value may be equated with the cost of acquiring an equally desirable substitute/alternative 
property. Relying upon the principle of substitution, this approach estimates value by a comparison of 
the subject with comparable properties. Differences between the comparable's and the subject are 
considered. A value from the Sales Comparison Approach is then concluded from the values indicated by 
the adjusted price per square foot or price per acre of the comparable properties. The Cost Approach 
and Income Approach were not applicable approaches to value in this assignment. 

REASONABLE MARKETING PERIOD AND EXPOSURE TIME 

The subject has an estimated marketing period and exposure time of 180 to 365 days, based on the 
location of the subject property, sales of comparable properties, the opinions of knowledgeable broker's 
in this area, and assuming reasonable and proper marketing of the subject. This would include 
competent and professional marketing, and no significant or abrupt changes to the national or local 
economy. 

SCOPE OF THE APPRAISAL ASSIGNMENT 

The following steps and procedures were completed in processing this appraisal assignment: 

1.) Definition of the objective/purpose of the appraisal. 

2.) Inspection of the subject neighborhood. 

3.) Inspection of the subject property. 

4.) Gather economic data which pertains to the subject property, neighborhood, and region . 

5.) Determine the highest and best use of the subject property. 

6.) Determine the appraisal techniques which are appropriate for the subject property. 

7.) Process Sales Comparison Approach for the land. 

A.) Select comparable's. 
B.) Analyze comparable's by comparing them to the subject property; Make appropriate 

adjustments to the comparable's for factors that affect land value, and use this 
analysis to estimate the market value of the subject land as a whole based on a 
price per square foot or price per acre basis. 

Produced by ClickFORMS Software 600-622-6727 Page 5 of 35 



Hal Dunn & Associates 

LAND APPRAISAL REPORT 
File No. 1931 6CH 
Case No 

Owner Cameron Famil}' Revocable Trust Census Tract 0217.00 Map Reference 33C02 B01 
Property Address 3.546 ac. on Sparta Rd. 

~ City Belton County Bell State TX Zip Code 76513-5227 
Legal Description 3.546 ac. out of the Lewis Walker Survev. Abstractv 860 Bell Co. TX 
Sale Price$ NIA Date of Sale N/A Property Rights Appraised W Fee LJ Leasehold l.JDe Minimis PUD 
Actual Real Estate Taxes $ NotS(11it (yr) Loan Charges to be paid by seller $ NA Other Sales Concessions NA 

• Client Ci~ of Belton Address 333 Water St. Belton TX 76513 
Occupant Vacant Land Appraiser Hal Dunn Instructions to Appraiser Market Value of the Fee Simole Estate 
Intended User City of Belton c/o Erin Smith Intended Use To aide in makina financial decisions reaardina the subiect propertv. 
Location - Urban ~ Suburban Rural ~~· Fair Poor - - -Built Up CNer 75% X 25%to 75% Under 25% Employment Stability L D Fully Dev. - - - - - -Growth Rate - Rapid x Steady Slow Convenience to Employment L - - - - -Property Values - Increasing ~ Stable - Declining Convenience to Shopping x - - - -Demand/Supply Shortage x In Balance Oversupply Convenience to Schools L - - - - - -. Marketing Time _ Under 3 Mos, ~ 4-6 Mos. _ Over 6 Mos. Adequacy of Public Transportation x - - - -• Present Land Use2.Q_ %1 Family _1_%2-4 Family _1_ % Apts _ _ % Condo~% Commercial Recreational Faci lities L • - - -__ %Industrial 33 % Vacant % Adequacy of Utilities L . LJNot likely ----m Likely(•) 0 Taking Place(•) - - -

~ 
Change In Present Land Use Property of Compatibility -L - -(•)From Vacant Land To Res. Dev. Protection from Detrimental Conditions L 

[fil Owner 0 Tenant - - -Predominate Occupancy --- % Vacant Pol ice and Fire Protection x - - - -Single Family Price Range $ 75 to$ 750 Predominant Value$ 180 General Appearance of Properties L - - -Single Family Age __ 1_ yrs to __§Q_ yrs. Predominant Age >5 yrs Appeal to Market - ..x - -
Comments including those factors, favorable or unfavorable, affecting marketability (e.g. public parks, schools, view, noise): The West Temple marketplace is a 
desirable developina residential area. The area offers easv access to local schools emolovment centers recreational faci lities and major medical 
facilities. The subject property will be located in an area of properties of similar desian sauare footaae and aualitv of construction. 

Dimensions See Surve}' & Field Notes in Addenda = 3.546 ac. LJComer Lot 
Zoning Classification Aariculture Present Improvements CR] do 0 do not conform to zoning regulations 
Highest and best use LJ Present use X J Other (specify) Future Commercial Develooment 

Public Other (Describe) OFF SITE IMPROVEMENTS Topo Level to Slopina 

'" ~ ""''""'' 0"'"" o ,,. .. ·~ '·""'· Gas Surface Asphalt Shape lrreaular 
Water X Maintenance CR] Public 0 Private View Residential/Rural 
San. Sewer X Storm Sewer Curb/Gutter Drainage Appears Adeauate 

Underground Elect. & Tel. R Sidewalk R Street Liahts Is the property located In a HUD Identified Special Flood Hazard Area? WNolJYes 

Comments (favorable or unfavorable including any apparent adverse easements, encroachments or other adverse conditions): Th11e wo .. no •••1111 condotK>n• o• "'""'' '""'" "°''" 
at llme or Ins ection There i re no known e111men1s or encroachments that hive an adve rse anect on the UHQI oflhe 01001rtv Should a lltle IHlch or survn ldent1f'v such lssuu tM final o inion of v1lu1 m1v be 

1H1ct1d Th1r1 dou not •DDHt lo be anv l1nd UH lnuH. Fk>od d•I• is from cornout11 oene11led 1ooram 

The undersigned has recited three recent sales of properties most similar and proximate to subject and has considered these in the market analysis. The description includes 
a dollar adjustment reflecting market reaction to those items of significant variation between the subject and comparable properties. If a significant item in the comparable 

property is superior to or more favorable than the sub~t property, a minus (-)adjustment is made thus reducing the indicated value of subject; if a significant item in the 
comparable is inferior to or less favorable than the sufl property, a plus (+) ad1ustment is made thus increasing the indicated value of the subject. 
For the Market Data Analvsis lxl See arid below See narrative attachment 

SUBJECT PROPERTY COMPARABLE N0.1 COMPARABLE N0.2 COMPARABLE N0.3 
Address 3.546 ac. on Sparta Rd. B.033 ac. on Sparta Rd. 8.392 ac. on Sparta Rd. 811 Lake Road 

Belton TX 76513-5227 Belton TX 7651 3 Belton TX 76513 Belton TX 76513 
Proximity to Subiect ' 0.12 miles N 0.21 miles NE 1.03 miles E 
Sales Price $ N/A 1$ 25 DOD l$ 20 000 ~ $ 44 947 
Price/ $ 0 I $ 3 112 1$ 2 383 ii$ 11 954 
Data Source Mi..S!Tax RecotdsNisu al lnsn. MLSfTax Record1N i1ual ln10 . 

~ 
Date of Sale and DESCRIPTION DESCRIPTION • .<!:!~ ...... DESCRIPTI ON ... ;:u~ ••• DESCRIPTION • .. rt1L. •• 
Time Adjustment NIA 12/30/15 3/19/14 12/13/2013 . 
Location Averaae Averaae Averaae Good -6 75C 
SiteNiew 3.546 ac. 8.033 Acres +3 75( 8.392 Acres 3 00( 3.76 Acres . Zonina Ao Sinole Familv-2 Sinale Familv-2 Sinale Famitv-1 
AttributesJCondltion Averaae Averaae Averaae Averaae 
Access/Frontaae Averaoe Averaoe Averaae Good -6 75( 
Future Pot. Use Citv of Belton Dev. Carothers Dev. Carothers Dev. Colbath - Dev. 
Sales or Financing 
Concessions 
Net Adi.fl otall .. IX I Plus IMinusl $ 3 750 IX IPlusl Minusl $ 3 000 I IPlusl X I Minusl $ -13 500 
Indicated Value 

., 
Net=15% 

I $ 
Net=15% I Net=-30% 

I $ 
I 

of Subject ·"'- ~ Gross".'15% 28 75D Gross=1 5% I $ 23 000 Gross=30% - 31 447 
Comments on Market Data See followino aaae for analvsis. 

~ Comments and Conditions of Appraisal: Appraised "as is" with the assumption the orooertv has adeauate uti lities and amole room out of the flood olain 
; far anv future develooments. 

~ 

• 
Final Reconciliation: Based uoon mv analvsis of the comparable land sales the subject has an adjusted land market value ranee from $23 000/ac. to . 
S31 447. The subiect orooertv is considered to have a land market value of S27 000 or $95 700. 

I ESTIMATE THE MARKET VALUE AS DEFINED OF SUBJECT PROPERTY AS OF 2/4/16 to be $ 95 700 
NL - Land 512007 This form may be reproduced unmodified without written permission, however, Bradford Technologies, Inc. must be acknowledged and credited. 



~ 

. 

• 

Borrower Not Applicable 
Property Address 3.546 ac. on Sparta Rd. 
City Belton County 
Lender/Client City of Belton 

Hal Dunn & Associates 
EXTRA COMPARABLES 4·5·6 

Bell State TX 
Address 333 Water St. , Belton, TX 76513 

File No. 19316CH 
Case No. 

Zip Code 76513-5227 

The undersigned has recited three recent sales of properties most similar and proximate to subject and has considered these in the market analysis. The description includes 
a dollar adjustment reflecting market reaction to those items of significant variation between the subject and comparable properties . If a significant item in the comparable 
property is superior to or more favorable than the subject property, a minus(-) adjustment is made thus reducing the indicated value of subject; if a significant item in the 
comparable is inferior to or less favorable than the subject property, a plus(+) adjustment is made thus increasing the indicated value of the subject. 

SUBJECT PROPERTY COMPARABLE NO. 4 COMPARABLE NO. 5 COMPARABLE NO. 6 
Address 3.546 ac. on Sparta Rd. 30.92 ac. on Mystic Mtn Lane 

Belton TX 76513-5227 Belton TX 766513 
Proximity to Subject t.'-···· ,.,.,,., <''."•='··' 0.13 miles E 
Sales Price $ l s 17 015 ·::;; \.~~ ] $ 1$ 
Price $ 1$ 550 l$ tis 
Data Source Grantee Closino Statement 
Date of Sale and DESCRIPTION DESCRIPTION Mlililt1'nent DESCRIPTION Ad;;;l;/;f,Ant DESCRIPTION AdlilS\1'nent 
Time Adiustment N/A 4/29/13 
Location Averaae Averaae 
SiteMew 3.546 ac. 30.92 Acres +7 65( 

Zonlno Ao SF-1 
Attributes/Condi on AveraQe AveraQe 
Access/Frontaa1 Averaae Averaae 
Future Pot. Use Citv of Belton Dev. Carothers Dev. 

Sales or Financing 
Concessions 
Net Adi.IT otall [.:! .~- .... .; .. ,; IX I Plus I I Minus $ 7 650.00 IX I Plusl I Minus $ 0 I X IPlus I I Minus$ 0 
Indicated Value Net=45% 

I s 
Net=O'lo 

1 $ 
Net=O'lo 

Is >--
of Subiect Gross-45% 24 665 Gross=O'lo 0 Gross=O'lo 0.00 
Comments on Market Data 

Comoarable Sales #1 & #2 were adiusted uoward 15% for beina laraer then the subject orooertv. 
Comoarable Sale #4 was adjusted uoward 45% for beina laroer then the subiect oraoertv. 
Smaller tracts tend to sale for more oer acre laraer tracts and vice versa. 

Camoarable Sale #3 was adiusted downward 15% far havina aood location on Lake Rd. vs . the subiect location off of Soarta Rd. 
Comoarable Sale #3 was adjusted downward 15% for havina Qood access/frontaoe on Lake Rd. vs. the subject limited frontaae/access off of 

Soarta Rd. 

Based uoon mv analvsis of the comoarable land sales the subiect has an adiusted land market value ranae from $23 000/ac. to $31 447. The 
subiect orooertv is considered to have a land market value of $27 000 or $95 700 . 

Produced by ClickFORMS Software 600-622-6727 Page 7 of 35 



Hal Dunn & Associates 

File No. 19316CH 

Case No 

This appraisal report is subject to the scope of work, intended use, intended user, definition of market value , statement of 

assumptions and limiting conditions, and certifications . The appraiser may expand the scope of work to include any additional 

research or analysis necessary based on the complexity of this appraisal assignment. 

SCOPE OF WORK: The scope of work for this appraisal is defined by the complexity of this appraisal assignment and the 

reporting requirements of this appraisal , including the following definition of market value, statement of assumptions and limiting 

conditions, and certifications. The appraiser must, at a minimum: (1) perform a complete visual inspection of the subject property, 

(2) inspect the neighborhood, (3) inspect each of the comparable sales from at least the street, (4) research , verify , and analyze 

data from reliable public and/or private sources, and (5) report his or her analysis, opinions, and conclusions in this appraisal report. 

INTENDED USE: The intended use of this appraisal report is for the lender/client to evaluate the property that is the 

subject of this appraisal for a mortgage finance transaction . 

INTENDED USER: The intended user of this appraisal report is the lender/client. 

DEFINITION OF MARKET VALUE: The most probable price which a property should bring in a competitive and open 

market under all conditions requisite to a fair sale, the buyer and seller, each acting prudently, knowledgeably and assuming 

the price is not affected by undue stimulus. Implicit in this definition is the consummation of a sale as of a specified date and 

the passing of title from seller to buyer under conditions whereby: (1) buyer and seller are typically motivated; (2) both 

parties are well informed or well advised, and each acting in what he or she considers his or her own best interest; (3) a 

reasonable time is allowed for exposure in the open market; (4) payment is made in terms of cash in U. S . dollars or in terms 

of financial arrangements comparable thereto ; and (5) the price represents the normal consideration for the property sold 

unaffected by special or creative financing or sales concessions• granted by anyone associated with the sale. 

*Adjustments to the comparables must be made for special or creative financing or sales concessions . No adjustments are 

necessary for those costs which are normally paid by sellers as a result of tradition or law in a market area; these costs are 

readily identifiable since the seller pays these costs in virtually all sales transactions. Special or creative financing 

adjustments can be made to the comparable property by comparisons to financing terms offered by a third party institutional 

lender that is not already involved in the property or transaction. Any adjustment should not be calculated on a mechanical 

dollar for dollar cost of the financing or concession but the dollar amount of any adjustment should approximate the market's 

reaction to the financing or concessions based on the appra iser's judgment. 

STATEMENT OF ASSUMPTIONS AND LIMITING CONDITIONS: The appraiser's certification in this report is 

subject to the following assumptions and limiting conditions: 

1. The appraiser will not be responsible for matters of a legal nature that affect either the property being appraised or the title 

to it, except for information that he or she became aware of during the research involved in performing this appraisal. The 

appraiser assumes that the title is good and marketable and will not render any opinions about the title. 

2. The appraiser has examined the available flood maps that are provided by the Federal Emergency Management Agency 

{or other data sources) and has noted in this appraisal report whether any portion of the subject site is located in an 

identified Special Flood Hazard Area. Because the appraiser is not a surveyor, he or she makes no guarantees, express or 

implied , regarding this determination. 

3. The appraiser will not give testimony or appear in court because he or she made an appraisal of the property in question, 

unless specific arrangements to do so have been made beforehand, or as otherwise required by law. 

4 . The appraiser has noted in this appraisal report any adverse conditions {such as the presence of hazardous wastes, toxic 

substances, etc.) observed during the inspection of the subject property or that he or she became aware of during the research 

involved in performing this appraisal. Unless otherwise stated in this appraisal report, the appraiser has no knowledge of any hidden 

or unapparent deficiencies or adverse conditions of the property (such as, but not limited to, the presence of hazardous wastes , 

toxic substances, adverse environmental conditions, etc.) that would make the property less valuable, and has assumed that there 

are no such conditions and makes no guarantees or warranties , express or impl ied. The appraiser will not be responsible for any 

such cond itions that do exist or for any engineering or testing that might be requ ired to discover whether such conditions exist. 

Because the appraiser is not an expert in the field of environmental hazards, this appraisal report must not be considered as 

an environmental assessment of the property. 

5. If the appraiser has based his or her appraisal report and valuation conclusion for an appraisal subject to certain conditions, it 

is assumed that the conditions will be met in a satisfactory manner. 

Produced by ClickFORMS Software 800-622-8727 Page 8 of 35 



Hal Dunn & Associates 
File No. 19316CH 

Case No 

APPRAISER'S CERTIFICATION: The Appraiser certifies and agrees that: 

1. I have, at a minimum, developed and reported this appraisal in accordance with the scope of work requirements stated in 

this appraisal report. 

2. I performed a complete visual inspection of the subject property. I reported the site characteristics in factual , specific terms. 

3. I performed this appraisal in accordance with the requirements of the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal 

Practice that were adopted and promulgated by the Appraisal Standards Board of The Appraisal Foundation and that were in 

place at the time this appraisal report was prepared. 

4. I developed my opinion of the market value of the real property that is the subject of this report based on the sales comparison 
approach to value. I have adequate comparable market data to develop a reliable sales comparison approach for this appraisal 

assignment. 

5. I researched , verified, analyzed, and reported on any current agreement for sale for the subject property, any offering for 

sale of the subject property in the twelve months prior to the effective date of this appraisal , and the prior sales of the subject 
property for a minimum of three years prior to the effective date of this appra isal , unless otherwise indicated in this report. 

6. I researched , verified, analyzed, and reported on the prior sales of the comparable sales for a minimum of one year prior 

to the date of sale of the comparable sale, unless otherwise indicated in this report. 

7. I selected and used comparable sales that are locationally, physically, and functionally the most similar to the subject property. 

8. I have reported adjustments to the comparable sales that reflect the market's reaction to the differences between the subject 

property and the comparable sales. 

9. I verified , from a disinterested source, all information in this report that was provided by parties who have a financial interest in 
the sale or financing of the subject property. 

10. I have knowledge and experience in appraising th is type of property in this market area. 

11 . I am aware of, and have access to, the necessary and appropriate public and private data sources, such as multiple listing 
services, tax assessment records , public land records and other such data sources for the area in which the property is located. 

12. I obtained the information, estimates, and opinions furnished by other parties and expressed in this appraisal report from 
reliable sources that I believe to be true and correct. 

13. I have taken into consideration the factors that have an impact on value with respect to the subject neighborhood, subject 

property, and the proximity of the subject property to adverse influences in the development of my opinion of market value. I have 
noted in this appraisal report any adverse conditions (such as, but not limited to, the presence of hazardous wastes, toxic substances, 

adverse environmental conditions , etc.) observed during the inspection of the subject property or that I became aware of during 
the research involved in performing this appraisal. I have considered these adverse conditions in my analysis of the property value, 
and have reported on the effect of the conditions on the value and marketability of the subject property. 

14. I have not knowingly withheld any significant information from this appraisal report and, to the best of my knowledge, all 
statements and information in this appraisal report are true and correct. 

15. I stated in this appraisal report my own personal, unbiased, and professional analysis , opinions, and conclusions, which 
are subject only to the assumptions and limiting conditions in this appraisal report. 

16. I have no present or prospective interest in the property that is the subject of this report, and I have no present or 
prospective personal interest or bias with respect to the participants in the transaction. I did not base, either partially or 

completely, my analysis and/or opinion of market value in this appraisal report on the race, color, religion, sex, age, marital 
status, handicap , familial status, or national origin of either the prospective owners or occupants of the subject property or of the 
present owners or occupants of the properties in the vicinity of the subject property or on any other basis prohibited by law. 

17. My employment and/or compensation for performing this appraisal or any future or anticipated appraisals was not conditioned 

on any agreement or understanding, written or otherwise, that I would report (or present analysis supporting) a predetermined specific 
value, a predetermined minimum value, a range or direction in value, a value that favors the cause of any party, or the attainment of a 
specific result or occurrence of a specific subsequent event (such as approval of a pending mortgage loan application). 

18. I personally prepared all conclusions and opinions about the real estate that were set forth in this appraisal report. If I relied on 
significant real property appraisal assistance from any individual or individuals in the performance of this appraisal or the 
preparation of this appraisal report, I have named such individual(s) and disclosed the specific tasks performed in this appraisal report. 
I certify that any individual so named is qualified to perform the tasks . I have not authorized anyone to make a change to any item 

in this appraisal report; therefore, any change made to this appraisal is unauthorized and I will take no responsibility for it. 

19. I identified the lender/client in this appraisal report who is the individual , organization, or agent for the organization that 

ordered and will receive this appraisal report. 

20. The lender/client may disclose or d istribute this appraisal report to: the borrower; another lender at the request of the borrower; 
the mortgagee or its successors and assigns; mortgage insurers; government sponsored enterprises; other secondary market 

participants; data collection or reporting services; professional appraisal organizations; any department agency, or instrumentality of 
the United States; and any state, the District of Columbia, or other jurisdict ions; without having to obtain the appraiser's or supervisory 
appraiser's (if appl icable) consent. Such consent must be obtained before this appraisal report may be disclosed or distributed to any 
other party (including, but not limited to, the public through advertising, public relations, news, sales, or other media). 

Produced by ClickFORMS Software 800-622-8727 Pace 9 of 35 



Hal Dunn & Associates File No. 19316CH 
Case No. 

21 . I am aware that any disclosure or distribution of this appraisal report by me or the lender/client may be subject to certain laws and 
regulations. Further, I am also subject to the provisions of the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice that pertain to 
disclosure or distribution by me. 

22. If this appraisal report was transmitted as an "electronic record" containing my "electronic signature," as those terms are 
defined in applicable federal and/or state laws (excluding audio and video recordings) , or a facsimile transmission of this 
appraisal report containing a copy or representation of my signature, the appraisal report shall be as effective, enforceable and 
valid as if a paper version of this appraisal report were delivered contain ing my original hand written signature. 

SUPERVISORY APPRAISER'S CERTIFICATION: The Supervisory Appraiser certifies and agrees that: 

1. I directly supervised the appraiser for this appraisal assignment, have read the appraisal report, and agree with the appraiser's 
analysis, opinions, statements, conclusions, and the appraiser's certification. 

2. I accept full responsibility for the contents of this appraisal report including, but not limited to, the appraiser's analysis, opinions, 
statements, conclusions, and the appraiser's certification. 

3. The appraiser identified in th is appraisal report is either a sub-contractor or an employee of the supervisory appraiser (or the 
appraisal firm) , is qualified to perform this appraisal, and is acceptable to perform this appraisal under the applicable state law. 

4. This appraisal report complies with the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice that were adopted and 
promulgated by the Appraisal Standards Board of The Appraisal Foundation and that were in place at the time this appraisal 
report was prepared. 

5. If this appraisal report was transmitted as an "electronic record" containing my "electronic signature," as those terms are 
defined in applicable federal and/or state laws (excluding audio and video recordings) , or a facsimile transmission of this 
appraisal report containing a copy or representation of my signature, the appraisal report shall be as effective, enforceable and 
valid as if a paper version of this appraisal report were delivered containing my original hand written signature. 

APPRAISER ~~ 
Signature '-;/ 

Name Chnsj!eflli 
Company Name Hal Dunn & Associates 
Company Address 5106 S. General Bruce Drive #200 

Temple, TX 76502 

Telephone Number~2~5~4-_7~7~3~-2=2=2=2~----------
Email Address haldunn associates@yahoo.com 

Date of Signature and Report =2/~4~/~16~-----------
Effective Date of Appraisal _2/_4_/_16 ____________ _ 

State Certification # _,1~3=3=6~12=-4~------------
or State License # 
or Other (describe) State# ___ _ 
Srate _T_X _________________ _ 

Expiration Date of Certification or License _,0"'9"'/3"'0"'/2=-0=-1'--'6'-------

ADDRESS OF PROPERTY APPRAISED 
3.546 ac. on Sparta Rd. 
Belton TX 76513-5227 

APPRAISED VALUE OF SUBJECT PROPERTY$ See Cover Letter. 
LENDER/CLIENT 
Name ----------------------
Company Name -'C~i ty~o~f~B~e~lt=o~n _____________ _ 

Company Address _3~3~3~W~a~te~r_S~t~. -----------
Belton TX 7651 3 

Email Address ____________ ______ _ 

SUPER;sORY APPRAl~ER (°It Y IF REQUIRED) 

A' L _ -· l!i '_/.}A~-- J 
Name Harold P. Dunn 
Company Name Hal Dunn & Associates 
Company Address 5106 S. General Bruce Dr. Suite 200 

Temole TX 76502 
Telephone Number ~2_5_4-_7_7_3~-2~2=2=2 ________ _, 
Email Address haldunn associatesiil>vahoo.com 

Date of Signature ~2/~4~/~16~-----------< 
State Certification# 1324607 --------------< 
or State License# ----------------i 
State_,T-'-X'-----------------~ 
Expiration Date of Certification or License ~3~/3~1~/1~7----1 

SUBJECT PROPERTY 

0 Did not inspect subject property 
0 Did inspect exterior of subject property from street 

Date of Inspection ____________ __, 

0 Did inspect interior and exterior of subject property 
Date of Inspection ____________ __, 

COMPARABLE SALES 
0 Did not inspect exterior of comparable sales from street 
0 Did inspect exterior of comparable sales from street 

Date of Inspection ---------------! 

Produced by ClickFORMS Software 600-622-6727 Page 10 of 35 



Borrower Not Applicable 

Property Address 3.546 ac. on Sparta Rd. 

City Belton County 
lender/Client City of Belton 

Entrance 

Site View 

Site View 

Hal Dunn & Associates 
Subject Photos 

Bell State TX 

File No. 19316CH 

Case No. 

Zip Code 76513-5227 
Address 333 Water St. , Belton, TX 76513 

Drive - way 

Site View 

Site View 

Produced by ClickFORMS Software 800-622-8727 Page 11 of 35 



Hal Dunn & Associates 
SURVEY MAP ADDENDUM File No. 19316CH 

Case No. 

Borrower Not Applicable 
Property Address 3.546 ac. on Sparta Rd. 
City Belton County Bell Stale TX 
Lender/Client City of Belton Address 333 Water St., Belton, TX 76513 

MAP OF 35 46 ACRES OR 154,447 SQ FT OF LAND 
SITUATED IN THC LEWIS WALKER SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO 860 

BE~_qUNTY!.. T~XAS 

S!!R \, £ Y OR'S NO~S 
/Jl!Ulf• 

,., .• ,(Ir ,,.,...,. 
P.""'-"w 
t..~fd~.tvt 

~· .. l1l,.,c .. 11r 

Wlf1 f tll:l"lf 
, .... "'SI. 
1111 .. ull"llll 
~tntf"\Dflh 
c.m1a z..,.. 
Ott'HSU I 

uri11·-·· ,~." 
•W1C/'lllOI 
ll'lo!"f'""" 
ofn1Wl-

""''"•~tr 
l:"'tf"'11'• 

•I We , ...... """ 
,.., .. "l..ot .. 
'IUU ..... N , .. .._ 
• 11w""" ... 
c:IJtofuu,. 
~"~ 
t .... 
t 11 •• ,. 
........ ~ .. , t ...... 
llhtf'tn ,,_,. ., .. ......... 
~ ... ,.,,.., ,, .... .,. _ _._. .. -t!Jtl~ .... 
It'"-"'* 
..... '< .~ .......... 
"*'",.."" .~ ...... 
·1n., ... ,.1 

~ r . 11htl4nrt11 .. .:1 ,, 
9u .. •.t•1t1t.~ l ~tl .,, r1lt11 • 
•Oll1oc;t1.11t1 ...... tptl't"1'Wd~ 
1w~1nc a'141nuc.:r-~u 1·1 

l!WN'""'1tll''Wl"11 :!! ... _ 

'""'° ualt t.airt,...,•1~ 
IF!allillllllr.l~l.A.tt<IP"ft"t"'lo 

~,,..,_,.,,IFWIG~ 

111&\I ru·~~:omy.tr.1 

~••"9tltt«"•~r"'-.t1111 

u °" ••••'•l•· .. 1 
6"twtaul4~11.-.ifdr.. tu 

"" ~o\ IUWh·11.11,... .. ~.tto ... "f /,. 
h1AWIJf!lt:Ql•t1.0;Wt 

~IO"IHllliill-'Mlrr-k ... 1 ... 1 
·~·~llotd~1 ... , .... .. 
11.J'ttWfl"Ntff.Q lc~'• 

flt~'""""""'",,"" .. ' ,,.,. .. ,..,..~" ~ 

•~"LoMMl~Nl•ll"""'l!f 
•• r.>&ldJl,,..,ot11,....,.... 

1.l•1Mt1..il\l"')tr.'l.l"tlll''""'~" 
1 ........ 

"°"'.,.,'"Dllll lttl'll'lf'ltuiorl 
ff-tr f bvl,,.W'Otn .. ".M""°'''rD< 
.. t--1• 1 ~ .... ""'"",.,..w 
••••~#1.ll.."lltl •1c.r_.11.te 
4wW•d,,... l,.roru•lf..,. 

.- .... _.. .. i~ .............. .. 

•K1th""',., .... "' .. ,~ .. .... ...,,,. .. ,,,..,....tw'W'" . .,.• 
W 1wt~llllll*id;o.t1t..-ilohcrt 
Ctll"ll ltltl ... Alll>t .......... 
"lt~elf«tl'WMll1lC"lll.,d 

~...,.,.,.. ..... ~Ml-\.!."' 
•tiPoc.Wl'dtw•lt4t~·•e-· 

totlwPUI •~I tOl'ld~1td I" 
...,,.~O'_..,, 

·•~bfr'1~ 
•to•l'l,...•f·'"'f""t (\. , ··-

LEGEND 

• 
0 

• 
(' 

= 

• 1i 

H 
I 

~th 
•liil •• , 1 

~H'' 
~ 

• 
' i 
L 

\ 

- -:-rr• 

, I 
tt J 

~I . ,. . 
-~ 

~ l 
i 

~ ' 
~ ' ~ 

~ , 
• E ' 

' ( • ~ ~ 

.. ~ ... 

" "' ""Vfll()ll ~11\1;., 
• Jrtt u ... 1..,•i 

•U <W'H'IVtllOl'lllll'CU 
:O:.•.A.;t~· 

0 tNl'WlQ 

, 546 ACRE~ 

"' '"'' 

I• 11, I 
•IJ·O¥~• • ... 

P01111 OF 
DlG' lff llNG 

' b . 
~ 

• .U.Oll'O 

~.;,',~., l~:~ 

0 

\ ft\o l l'O~ 'U"l 11,.AH 
1 r •...ii.,. 1n1 lt:llt'Ut••«' k(J!pu 1'W ~" 

II ~.J/iW r,ii.:U lti.,..Nfts rJ' I I"',._ I' 

.. .. , ... 

Zip Code 

i I 
'' ! • 
I: 

.,. 
0 ' 

lo.l;>l'Yl~'llnd IOlt>I bU\Ofl"l•l'l"H~:ti• 11 ·"• OI: ,; ·•1 l1a-ndtltnt•"11:1ll(CO' 

I 
f 

Y11PU. ~lftl,I MO 1011CNOO 

Sfghtline Surveying 
1702 ..... ._"'o .... 

t•n~.T.-.111~1 

l!t.Wr::~::J.~=I:""'' 

) 

! 

ao,11t11'tl"l\ttul.1'1tm1.,j!t1r::JardJc'F•1<t"'~ 
o~ ,,,_, .. , 

t/I I \ x. ;. 
;r.,,,,, ,-,. .• ,;.",., .• d~ 

\ 

76513-5227 

·~at.lap 

dt'""' 
wlttllht 
tUle'll' 

Produced by ClickFORMS Software 600-622-6727 Page 12 of 35 



Borrower Not Applicable 
Property Address 3.546 ac. on Sparta Rd. 

Hal Dunn & Associates 
Field Notes #1 File No. 19316CH 

Case No. 

City Belton County Bell State TX Zip Code 76513-5227 
Lender/Client City of Belton Address 333 Water St. , Belton, TX 76513 

Job No. 2015-001, 3.546 Acres, Dec. 26, 2015 Pg. 1of3 

STATE OF TEXAS § 

COUNTY OF BEU § 

FIELONOTE DESCRIPTION of 3.546 acres of land or 154,447 square feet of land area, situated in 

the Lewis Walker Survey, Abstract No. 860, in Bell County, Texas. Said 3.546 acre tract of land 
being partitioned out the remaining portion of that certain tract of land described In a deed to 
Don W. Cameron and wlfe Biiiie G. Cameron, Co-Trustees for the CAMERON FAMILY 
REVOCABLE TRUST (hereinafter called the "Cameron Tract") recorded on March 12, 2013 in 
Document Number 2013-00009845 In the Real Property Records of Bell County, Texas (RPR). 
Said 3.546 acres of land was surveyed by SIGHTUNE SURVEYING on December 26, 2015 and is 
more particularly described by metes and bounds as follows: 

BEGINNING at a 5/8-lnch iron rod with a plastic cap marked "All County" (same as record) 
found in the northerly line of Sparta Road, a roadway maintained by Bell County, Texas of 
record In Volume 1839, Page 643, RPR, which bears South 55" 29' 28" East a distance of 615.72 
feet to City of Belton Monument 814 located in the southerly margin of said Sparta Road, same 
being the southwest corner of Cameron Hills I, a subdivision of Betton, Texas filed for record on 
March 31, 2004 in Cabinet C, Slide 37A of the plat records of Bell County, Texas {PR), the 
southwest comer or Lot 1 Block 1 of said Cameron Hllls I, and the most southerly southeast 
corner of said Cameron Tract and this 3.546-acre tract of land; 

THENCE with the northerly line of said Sparta Road and southerly line of sald Cameron tract 
along a curve to the right with a radius of 5,690 feet (same as record), a central angle of o· 37' 
16", and a chord that bears North 60" 11' 24" West a distance of 61.67 feet, an arc distance of 
61.68 feet to an Iron rod (same as record) found at the southeast comer of that certain tract of 
land said to contain 5.19 acres of land described in a deed to John A. Bums and Spouse Marilyn 
R. Burns recorded on May 13, 2009 in Document Number 2009-00017173 RPR (Burns Tract), 
same being the most southerly southwest corner of sal~ Cameron Tract and this 3.546-acre 

tract of land; 

THENCE with the westerly line of said Cameron Tract and this 3.546 acre tract of land, same 
bein2 the easterly line of said Burns Tract North 16" 44' 13" East (record ls North 19" 00' 00'1 

Produced by ClickFORMS Software 800-622-8727 Page 13 of 35 



Hal Dunn & Associates 
Field Notes #2 File No. 19316CH 

Case No. 
Borrower Not Applicable 
Property Address 3.546 ac. on Sparta Rd. 
City Belton County Bell State TX Zip Code 
Lender/Client City of Belton Address 333 Water St. , Belton, TX 76513 

Job No. 2015-001, 3.546 Acres, Dec. 26, 2015 Pg. 2 of 3 

West) a distance of 578.95 feet to a 1/2-inch iron rod with a red plastic cap marked "RPLS 
454011 set for the northwest corner of this 3.546-acre tract of land, said Iron rod set bearing 
North 16" 44' 13" East a distance of 69.15 feet to an iron rod (same as record) found at the 
northeast corner of said Bums Tract, same being an interior corner of said Cameron Tract; 

THENCE crossing said Cameron Tract with the northerly line of this 3.546-acre tract of fand 
South 10• 10' U: East, passing at 118.09 feet a 1/2-lnch iron rod with a red plastic cap marked 
"RPLS 4540" this day set at the southwest comer of a parcel of land this day surveyed said to 
contain 8.033 acres of land contained in the said Cameron Tract, and continuing on with said 
northerly line, same being the southerly Hne of said 8.033-acre parcel of land, for a total 
distance of 492.72 feet to a 1/2-inch iron rod with a red plastic cap marked "RPLS 4540" this 
day set in the westerly line of that certain tract of land said to contain 3.466 acres of Jand and 
descrlbed in a deed to the Qty of Betton, Texas recorded on September 25, 2003 in Volume 
5154, Page 827 RPR, set for the northeast corner of this 3.546-acre tract of land, said iron rod 
bearing with the easterly line of said cameron Tract and the westerly line of said 3.466-acre 
tract of land North 19• 49' 02N East a distance of 194.38 feet to a 1/2-inch Iron rod with a red 
plastic cap marked " RPLS 454011 (record is 5/8-inch iron rod with a cap marked ''All County" 1 

searched for and found disturbed) this day set at the point of curvature on said line; 

THENCE with the easterly line of said Cameron Tract and the westerly line of said 3.466 acre 
tract of land South 19° 49' ozn West (record is South 19° 49' 12" West} a distance of ~03.26 
feet to a S/811 Iron rod with a cap marked "All County" (same as record)found at the most 
easterly southeast corner of said CClmeron Tract and the northeast corner of Cameron Hllls I, a 
subdivision of the City of Belton filed for record on March 31, 2004 In Cabinet C, Slide 37A, PR, 
same being the northeast comer of Lot 2, Block 1 of said Cameron Hills 1, for the most easterly 
southeast corner of this 3.546-acre tract of land; 

THENCE with the northerly line of said Cameron Hills I, same being the southerly line of said 
Cameron Tract and this 3.546 acre tract of land North 6r 55' 29"West (record is North 63° 57 ' 
01" West) passing at 204.32 feet (record Is 204.38 feet) a S/811 iron rod with a cap marked "All 
County" (same as record) for the northwest corner of said Lot 2, same being the northeast 
corner of Lot 1, Block 1 of said Cameron Hills I a distance of 420.14 feet (record Is 421.36 feet) 
to a S/811 Iron rod with a cap marked "All County" (same as record) at the northwest comer of 

76513-5227 

Produced by ClickFORMS Software 800-622-8727 Page 14 of 35 



Borrower Not Applicable 
Property Address 3.546 ac. on Sparta Rd . 

Hal Dunn & Associates 
Field Notes #3 File No. 19316CH 

Case No. 

City Belton County Bell State TX Zip Code 76513-5227 
Lender/Client City of Belton Address 333 Water St. , Belton , TX 76513 

Job No. 2015-001, 3.546 Acres, Dec. 26, 2015 Pg. 3 of 3 

said Cameron Hills I and said Lot 1, same being an interlor corner of said Cameron Tract and this 

3.546-acre tract of land; 

THENCE with the westerly line of said Cameron Hills I and said Lot 1, same being the easterly 

line of said Cameron Tract and this 3.546-acre tract of land South 16• 55' 12" West (record is 
South 15• 46' 09" West) a distance of 331.68 feet (record Is 331.82 feet) to the POINT OF 

BEGINNING. 

NOTE - Bearings called out herein are based on the City of Belton Coordinate System, a variant 
of the Texas Coordinate System, Central Zone, NAO 83. All distances are grid distances. There is 

a map this day drafted to accompany this Field Note Description. 

Surveyed by: 

R.P. Shelley, Tex.as Registered Professional Land Surveyor No. 4540 

TBPLS Arm No. 10130900 
5702 Southern Oaks 
San Antonio, Texas 78261 
210.286.9077 
rickshe lle @ mall.com 

Produced by ClickFORMS Software 800-622-8727 Page 15 of 35 



Bel/CAD Map 
File No. 19316CH 
Case No. 

Bell CAD - Map of Property ID 16569 for Year 2016 

Property Details 
Account 

Property ID: 16569 
Geo ID: 0601380301 

Type: Real 
Legal Description : A0860BC L WALKER, 18-3, ACRES 3.936 

l.ocation 

Owner 

Situs Address: 2312 SPARTA RD BELTON, TX 
Neighborhood : BELTON AREA 

Mapsco : 
Jurisdictions: CAD, CB, RRD, SBEL, TBE, WCLW 

Owner Name: CAMERON FAMILY REVOCABLE TRUST 
Mailing Address: C/0 CAMERON, DON W & BILLIE G, CO-TRUSTEES, 2312 SPARTA RD, BELTON, TX ... 

Pr operty 
Appraised Value : N/A 

.......... 
http ://propaccess.bellcad.org/MapjVlew/Map/l/16569/2016 Property ACCESS 

<HW'W ll \.IC U"1Wh0f1.~oni 

JiYp 0.0.~ ThlS p1octua I• fur trM'lM"'1•110MI pltl"PO ... cinly •mt nuy nol NV9 bel!ft ptep.ntO fOf Of b• ~tt.tbl• h>t lisga.. . •"9111efl1ng ot a.1o1rv•y tn" purpo~ Ii 00.. not lrsnM"rrt an C1fH.t1.-.;rtiund t.1.1rvry and rwpt'tHt1tJ ont~ lhtr 

fJ'Pr'Ollltnat• ralabve tocat ion af prc>Pflrt) b0un:t411"\4fa 1he fill Appr...t D111no: Of &aM County npr.nly dl1cl•tnu •n'r and •U ll•b·lnl 1n cannlCUOtt hmm~~ 

Produced by ClickFORMS Software 800-622-8727 Page 16 of 35 



Borrower Not Applicable 
Property Address 3.546 ac. on Sparta Rd . 

City Belton County 
Lender/Client City of Belton 

Hal Dunn & Associates 
Aerial View File No. 19316CH 

Case No. 

Bell State TX Zip Code 76513-5227 
Address 333 Water St. , Belton, TX 76513 

Produced by ClickFORMS Software 800-622-8727 Page 17 of 35 



Hal Dunn & Associates 
FLOOD MAP ADDENDUM File No. 19316CH 

Case No. 
Borrower Not Applicable 

Property Address 3.546 ac. on Sparta Rd. 
City Belton County Bell State TX Zip Code 76513-5227 
Lender/Client City of Belton Address 333 Water St.. Belton. TX 76513 

Flood •.tap Legends flood Zone Determina1ion 

Flood Zones 
Arua inlllMll'ild by ~rloocling 

Arua oLDIOI oftn.100 alKI sooyur llooo 
pQna 
ArNB 1n.11JIQICea by 1~r tooClmg 

ArNB WK&Do by 100.)'Nr loocling Will1 
\'tlOCiy ruuro 

• floofWly ar .. 
• flOoOlray areaa •th 'HIOCiy h.lllro 

Ar NB cf U llOll!tmin.a 1>111 poeallll looa 
nazaro 
ArNI IMJtflU)>Pf(I On a11J pu1*ehtcl FM 

SFHA (Flood Zone): Out 
Within 250 ft. of multiple flood zones? No 
Community: 480028 
Community Name: BEL TON, CTTY OF 
Zone: X Panel: 480028 0330E Panel Date: 09 / 26/2008 

FIPS Code: 48027 Census Tract: 0217.00 

R.eocn is fur the tole ~Jt of the Q.r:sromer thi and ol fur the 
Reoort and is based Oil the l)l'ODE!ft\f iriormation DIOViOecf bv mat C>Jismmer, 
That ~·s of this Reoort is bm to the terms aareed to bv that 
Cuilomer when 11CXUS1110 this oroduct. No dircl oanv is ~ to use or 
retv on this R.eoott fur a.nv Oll'OOSe. HE SB.I.ER OF THl S REPOR MAKES 
NO REPRESEN A ONS O R WARRAN ES 0 ANY PARTY 
CONCERNlNG HE CO EN .ACCURACY O R COMPlETENESS OF 

HIS REPOR lNQ.lJOING ANY WARRA OF MERCHAN ABIUTY OR 
ATNESS FOR A PAR CUI.AR PURPOSE. he seller of this Reoort 
not have any · tfWd pany fur any use or misuse of this R.epon:. 

Produced by ClickFORMS Software 800-622-8727 Page 18 of 35 



Borrower Not Applicable 
Property Address 3.546 ac. on Sparta Rd. 
City Belton County 
Lender/Client City of Belton 

Hal Dunn & Associates 
ZONING LOCATION MAP File No. 19316CH 

Case No. 

Bell State TX Zip Code 76513-5227 
Address 333 Water St. , Belton, TX 76513 

Bolton 
Prinled februa<y OS, 2016 
SH Below for D1sdalme1 

his pmduc1 rs fOf mforma"on1I purposes only ~ may not have been prepared ror or be su11able fo r legal engineenng, or surveying purposes It does rot represent 
n on-the-gtound survey and r~tsents onty the appro1omatt ret'11Yt IOC1tion The Information contained was oenenutd from GIS dat• m1lntainfl:f by ditferertt sources 
nd a~noes and thr ~ppropnate 8(,lency should be contacted d irectly about their sptt1ftc d1Jta. Somti hm1tlltions may apply based upon r~trict 1ons tmposed by other 
ources 01 agenc.es supplying data lo the City Areas depteted by these d1g1tal products are epproxmvi te, and are- not necrua rily accurate to mapptng surveying o 
ngmecnng suindards These d191t1l products are fo' illus tration purpose-s on ly, a re not swtable for s 1 t~spec1 fic decision malung, are subject to constant changes and 
1y not be complelt, accurate or curr1n1 Conclusions driwn hem !his Information are the responslbllny of the user Every offon has been made to ensur e the accur.acy 

orrectnfss and timftiness of the ma terials pre5ented t-towevtr t tif Oty assun1es no responsibility In the even! that any in lonnation is incorrect. The City o l Belton 
ssumeJ no linb41ity fo1 da magts incurred directly 01 ind11Ktly as a res.u lt of incomplete, 1ncorrrct or omitted lnformal1on. e"\len II thf City 1.s ad~~ of the posslblh 
liat the information may not be accurate Th• usu of thlti information oassumes all liabilny for their depend tnct on this information and anumn respo1u1bllity tor the 

Produced by ClickFORMS Software 800-622-8727 Page 19 of 35 



Borrower Not Applicable 
Property Address 3.546 ac. on Sparta Rd. 

City Belton County 
Lender/Client City of Belton 

1 
J 

.. ~ 
~ 

I 
" !-

<J 
"' 

tJ 

~-

f c: 
..'.l 

Iii" 
Q. 

~ 
8 
0. q 

~ 
" .., 

" " g 
if 

J~acon~Rd 
8o!lori TX ie51 ~W7 
l<i'N 

Nolan Vallt'y Rd 

\.II e 

Hal Dunn & Associates 
LOCATION MAP ADDENDUM File No. 19316CH 

Case No. 

Bell State TX Zip Code 76513-5227 
Address 333 Water St. , Belton, TX 7651 3 

~~ Ot ~6,1> 
~ (m1J 

~,f t' 
C'o ~ 
'Pr~ 

, 1ra'' 
Brtton I.Dk...,.." Parf 

'-' 
(j o' ... 
; i 

E Cl' ... 
~ 

! 

c:.ar<1,. ., 
F("rf11 re 

0 Ork o, 
0 ... 

~'" 

30 Q2 fC Oii Myluc Min Uno 
Bellon, TX780!13 
D 13 tl1lltt E So• Sl701500 

C 2016 M t Corpont:Jon 

loop 
111 

! 

Prnrl11r:Arl hv r.lir:k Fn RMS Snftw:u A Rnn-n??-R7?7 



Bell County Quickfacts (Source: US Census Bureau) 
File No. 19316CH 

Case No. 

Bell County, Texas 

Bell 
People Qulckfacu County Te>Ca s 

Population, 2013 estimate 326,843 26,448,193 

Populatlon, 2010 (April 1) estimates base 310,235 25, 145,561 

POP\llation, percent change, Aprll 1, 2010 to July 1, 2013 5.4% 5.2% 

Population, 2010 310,235 25,145.581 

Person& under 5 years, parcenl, 2013 8.8% 7 3% 

Persons under 18 years, percent 2013 27.8% 26.6% 

Persons 65 years and over. percenl. 2013 9.5% 11 .2% 

Female persons, percent 2013 50.0% 50.3% 

White alone. percent, 2013 (a) 68 2% 80.3% 

Black or African American alone, percent 2013 (a) 22.4% 12.4% 

Amencen Indian and Alaska Native alone, percent, 2013 
(a) 11% 1.0'Yo 

Asian alone, percent, 2013 (a) 3.2% 4.3% 

N9tive Hawaiian and Other Pacific l&lander alone, percent, 
2013 (a) 0.8% 0.1% 

Two or More Races, percent 2013 4.3% 1.8% 

Hlsp1mlc or Lallno, percent 2013 (b) 23.2% 384% 

White alone, not Hispanic or Latino, percent, 2013 489% 44 .0% 

Living In same house 1 year & over, percent, 2006-2012 75.4% 82.6% 

Foreign bom persons, percent 2008-2012 7.9% 16.3% 

Language other than English spoken al home. pct age 5+ , 
2006-2012 17.2% 34.6% 

High school graduate or higher, percent of persons age 
25+, 2008-2012 89.1% 80.8% 

Bachelor's degree or higher, percent of persO!ls age 25 ... , 
2008-2012 21.4% 26.3% 

Veterans, 2008-2012 42.368 1.611 ,660 

Mean lravel Ume lo work (minutes). workers age 16+. 
2008-2012 19..2 24.9 

Houainll units, 2013 131,394 10,255.642 

HomeownQ<Ship rate, 2008-2012 57.0% 63.!1"4 

Housing units in mulU-ttnlt slructul"llS, percent, 2008-2012 26.1% 24.1% 

Median value of owner-occupied housing units, 2008-2012 $119,800 $128,000 

Households, 2008-2012 103.715 8,782,598 

Persons per household, 2008-2012 2.90 2.80 

Per capi ta money Income In past 12 monlhs (2012 dollars), 
2008-2012 $23.078 $25,809 

Median household Income, 2008-2012 $50.085 $51 ,563 

Persons below poverty level. perqml. 2008-2012 14.6% 17.4% 

Bttll 
Bus lnus Qulckfacts County Texas 

Private nonfarm eslabllshments, 2012 4,819 537,839 1 

Private nonferm employment, 2012 83.169 9,350,8291 

Private nonfarm employment. percent change, 2011 -2012 1.1% 4.0%
1 

Nonemployer establishments, 2012 15,017 2,014, 124 

Total number of firms, 2007 16,333 2,164,852 

Black-owned firms, percent, 2007 9.1% 7.1% 

American Indian- and Alaska NaUve-owned firms, percen~ 
2007 10% 0.9% 

Asian-owned firms, percent, 2007 s 5 3% 

NaUve Hawaiian and Olher Pacific Islander-owned firms, 
percent, 2007 F 0.1% 

Hispanic-owned firms, p rcent. 2007 8.7% 20.7% 

Women-owned firms, percent, 2007 s 28.2% 

Manufaclureri1 shipments, 2007 (51000) 1,924,972 593,541 ,502 

Merchant wholesaler sales, 2007 (51000) 4,202,739 424.238.194 

Relall sales, 2007 ($ 1000) 3.349,957 311 ,334 ,781 

Retell sales per capita, 2007 $12,035 $13,061 

Accommodation end food services sales, 2007 ($1000) 401 ,438 42,054.592 

Building permits, 2012 2.330 135,514 

Bell 
Geography QulckFacte County Teus 

Land area In square miles, 201 O 1.051 02 261 .231 71 



Bell County Quickfacts (Source: US Census Bureau) 

P1nons pet oquare 1111le 2010 

FIPSC<>de 

Molrac>ollan 0t Mcrapohlan S.1- /yH 

, • ......-~,.,...,.°"'°"'gm 

2952 

027 
Kii..,_ 

Temple TX 
MetroAr~a 

fll'l.....,......, .. Ofli'lynot '° ........... "'~ .............. 
Da..,.....IO...,..,_,•fl ......... ~ 
r '•.,.,...9'1.•l'l~tirm. 
FN F~deO'tlt.ftmforttw.,.a,..~otdltta 
NA Not1'Ylt .... 
5 a,pptHMli ; ~ndlftfflputll.alilOftUrci•dl 
llH!l•llP~ 
l VU. ~_.,.Cl'IM.Un> tMll .. it'IU\Nll \U'I dtne-.U. tbo"-' 

::.otlC.U S Cenll.ll &.uu1u s..Je .,dCGUf'IJ ~d.fad.• 0.Ui d•Mli t PopullltO"I &bt111-. Ament:IM Coo"IBIUftlJ ~ 
Ctft .. or Pq,,Wllorl l11d ,;w.,, S&ate •nd Cwrty t1'Mtlna U,. EIUkH1 CoJtty e....eu P•U.tn1 NontrnP40,.. a.lltltllCs 
Ei::o'10!'NI: C*"M> SJtwrot &lll'tft90"'""1, 8ufdrl9 P•nnft 
~ .. ,_...,..._ 'TvndlJ, Ol~6'01'Ge'fO)E01" 

MO.It UI 

File No. 19316CH 
Case No 

ll'SOM. fOPCI HIWPIOOM 



Comparable Land Sale 1 

Date of Sale: 12/30/ 15 

Location: Sparta Rd. , Belton, TX 76513 

Hal Dunn & Associates 

Legal: 8.033 ac. out of the L. Walker Survey, Abs-860, Bell County, TX 

Size: 8.033 Acres 

Grantor: Cameron Family Revocable Trust 

Grantee: Carothers Development, LLC. 

Property ID#466735 ; Instrument#49792 

Consideration: $200,825 (25 ,000/acre) 

Confirmation: Grantor (price was provided verbally from grantor), County Records 

Use: Purchased for Residential Dev. 

Comparable Land Sale 2 

Date of Sale: 3/ 19/14 

Location: Dawson V, Belton, TX 76513 

Legal: 8.392 acres in the L. Walker Survey, A-860, Bell County, TX 

Size: 8.392 Acres 

Grantor: Cameron Family Revocable Trust 

Grantee: Carothers Development, LLC. 

Property ID#; lnstrument#V8870/P47 

Consideration: $167 ,840 ($20,000/acre) 

Confirmation: Grantee, 

Use: Purchased for Residential Dev. 

Produced by ClickFORMS Software 800-622-8727 Page 23 of 35 



Comparable Land Sale 3 

DateofSale: 12/17/ 13 

Hal Dunn & Associates 

Location: 811 Lake Road , Belton, TX 76513 

Legal: 3.77 acres in the C. Cruise Survey, A-166, Bell County, TX 

Size: 3.77 Acres 

Grantor: Jackie Burks 

Grantee: Jason Cobath & Melissa Colbath 

Property ID# 15179; lnstrurnent#534 78 

Consideration: $169,000 ($44,828/acre) 

Confirmation: App. Files, County Records 

Use: Purchased for Residential Dev. 

Comparable Land Sale 4 

Date of Sale: 04/29/2013 

Location: Mystic Mountain Ln. , Belton, TX 76513 

Legal: 30.92 acres in the L. Walker Survey, A-860, Bell County, TX 

Size: 30.92 Acres 

Grantor: Michael Lackmeyer 

Grantee: Carothers Properties, Ltd. 

Property ID#8575 ; will be Property ID#455734 in 2014; Instrument# 17851 

Consideration: $526, I 00 (17,015/acre) 

Confirmation: Grantee, County Records 

Produced by ClickFORMS Software 800-622-8727 Page 24 of 35 



Borrower Not Applicable 

Property Address 3.546 ac. on Sparta Rd . 

City Belton County 

Hal Dunn & Associates 

COMPARABLES 1-2-3 

Bell State 

File No. 19316CH 

Case No. 

TX Zip Code 76513-5227 

Lender/Client City of Belton Address 333 Water St. , Belton. TX 76513 

Produced by ClickFORMS Software 800-622-8727 

COMPARABLE SALE# 
8.033 ac. on Sparta Rd . 

Belton, TX 76513 

COMPARABLE SALE# 2 
8.392 ac. on Sparta Rd . 

Belton, TX 76513 

COMPARABLE SALE# 3 
811 Lake Road 

Belton, TX 76513 

Page 25 of 35 



Borrower Not Applicable 

Property Address 3 .546 ac. on Sparta Rd. 

City Belton County 

Hal Dunn & Associates 

COMPARABLES 4-5·6 

Bell State 

File No. 19316CH 

Case No. 

TX Zip Code 76513-5227 

Lender/Client City of Belton Address 333 Water St. , Belton, TX 76513 

Produced by ClickFORMS Software 800-622-8727 

COMPARABLE SALE# 4 
30.92 ac. on Mystic Min Lane 

Belton , TX 766513 

COMPARABLE SALE# 5 

COMPARABLE SALE# 6 

Page 26 of 35 



Appraiser Independence Certification 
File No. 19316CH 
Case No. 

Affidavit of Appraiser- Certification of Non-Influence 

The appraiser named respectfully submits and represents to the following: 

I hereby acknowledge to the best of my ability the following: 

1. There have been no written or verbal communications or conversations between the 
mortgage lender or any staff person thereof and myself, my assistant, or any other staff 
member working on my behalf during the completion of this particular assignment or 
review assignment regarding a predetermined value for the subject property of this 
assignment. 

2. I acknowledge that I have not been influenced, coerced, extorted, or bribed regarding 
the outcome of this appraisal report, nor am I knowingly aware of being recommended by 
any staff member, director, or agent of the mortgage lender's Joan production staff, 
including the loan officer, to complete this assignment. 

3. I certify that I have been engaged to provide a complete order with the information 
required for me to agree and complete a full appraisal assignment that meets USP AP 
guidelines and standards. Included on their order form was the originating lender's 
company name and address for purposes of inclusion on the appraisal report. No 
individual names from lender's staff, including loan officer name, was provided to me. 
No preliminary estimation of value, loan amount, or any similar information was 
provided to me or communicated to me or any staff person within my company. With 
respect to a Purchase Transaction, the Purchase Agreement (Sales Contract) was made 
available in its entirety (as required by USP AP Standard Rule 1- Sa). In the event the 
l9an is an FHA transaction, I understand that the lender may require my identity, 
including my State Certification number; however, no attempt was made to coerce or 
influence the outcome of this appraisal report. 

4. I acknowledge that I have completed this assignment and have only acted with the 
highest integrity and in a manner considered ethical to my profession, and consistent both 
with USP AP standards and the Appraiser Independence Requirements rules and 
regulations. 

5. I acknowledge that I am not an employee of nor affiliated with the mortgage lender, 
and that I am not a staff appraiser to any entity that is either wholly or partially owned by 
the lender/ investor or by any entity that is owned in whole or in part by a "Settlement 
Services" provider. By including this document within this appraisal report, I 
acknowledge to the best of my ability that all of the above statements are valid and true, I 
have honestly agreed with them, and that I have no objections or reservations to their 
contrary. 



Hal Dunn & Associates 
File No. 19316CH 

Case No. 

Privacy Notice 

Appraisers, along with all providers of personal financial services, are now required by 
federal law to inform their clients of the policies of the firm with regard to the privacy of 
client nonpublic personal information. As professionals, we understand 1hat your privacy 
is very important to you and are pleased to provide you with this information. 

Types of Nonpublic Personal lnfonnation We Collect 

In the course of performing appraisals , we may collect what is known as "nonpublic 
personal information" about you. This information is used to facilitate the services that 
we provide to you and may include the information provided to. us by you directly or 
received by us from others with your authorization. 

Parties to Whom We Disclose lnfonnation 

We do not disclose any nonpublic personal information obtained in the course of our 
engagement with our clients to nonaffiliated third parties except as necessary or as 
required by law. By way of example, a necessary disclosure would be to our employees, 
and in certain situations, to unrelated third party consultants who need to know that 
information to assist us in providing appraisal services to you . All of our employees and 
any third party consultants we employ are informed that any information they see as part 
of an appraisal assignment is to be maintained in strict confidence within the firm . 

A disclosure required by law would be a disclosure by us that is ordered by a court of 
competent jurisdiction with regard to a legal action to which you are a party. 

Confidentiality and Security 

We will retain records relating to professional services that we have provided to you for a 
reasonable time so that we are better able to assist you with your needs. In order to 
protect your nonpublic personal information from unauthorized access by third parties, 
we maintain physical , electronic and procedural safeguards that comply with .our 
professional standards to insure the security and integrity of your information. 

Please feel free to call us at any time if you have any questions about the confidentiality 
of the information that you provide to us. 

Produced by ClickFORMS Software 800-622-8727 Page 28 of 35 



File No. 19316CH 
Case No. 

DEFINITION OF MARKET VALUE: The most probable price which a property should bring in a compet itive and open 
market under all conditions requ isite to a fair sale, the buyer and seller, each acting prudently , knowledgeable and assuming 
the price is not affected by undue stimulus. Implici t in this definition is the consummation of a sa le as of a specified date 
and the passing of title from seller to buyer under cond itions whereby: (1) buyer and seller are typically motivated; (2) both 
parties are well informed or well advised, and each acting in what he considers his own best interest; (3) a reasonable time 
is allowed for exposure in the open market; (4) payment is made in terms of cash in U.S. dollars or in terms of financial 
arrangements comparable thereto; and (5) the price represents the normal consideration for the property sold unaffected by 
special or creative financing or sales concessions* granted by anyone associated with the sale. 

•Adjustments to the comparables must be made for special or creative financing or sa les concessions. No adjustments are 
necessary for those costs which are normally paid by sellers as a result of tradition or law in a market area; these costs are 
read ily identifiable since the seller pays these costs in virtually all sales transactions. Special or creative financing adjustments 
can be made to the comparable property by comparisons to financing terms offered by a third party institutional lender that 
is not already involved in the property or transaction. Any adjustment should not be ca lculated on a mechan ical dollar for 
dollar cost of the financing or concession but the dollar amount of any adjustment should approximate the market's reaction 
to the financing or concessions based on the appraiser's judgment. 

CERTIFICATION ANO STATEMENT OF LIMITING CONDITIONS 
CERTIFICATION: The Appraiser certifies and agrees that: 
1.The Appraiser has no present or contemplated future interest in the property appra ised ; and neither the employment to 

make the appraisal, nor the compensation for it, is contingent upon the appraised value of the property. 
2. The Appraiser has no personal interest in or bias with respect to the subject matter of the appraisal report or the partici

pants to the sale. The 'Estimate of Market Value' in the appraisal report is not based in whole or in part upon the race, color, 
or national origin of the prospective owners or occupants of the property appraised, or upon the race, color or national origin 
of the present owners or occupants of the properties in the vicinity of the property appraised. 
3.The Appraiser has personally inspected the property , both inside and out, and has made an exterior inspection of all 

comparable sales listed in the report. To the best of the Appraiser's knowledge and belief, all statements and information in 
this report are true and correct, and the Appraiser has not knowingly withheld any significant information. 
4.All contingent and limiti ng conditions are con ta ined herein (imposed by the terms of the assignment or by the under

signed affecting the analyses, opinions, and conclusions contained in the report). 
5.Th is appraisal report has been made in conformity with and is subject to the requirements of the Code of Professional 

Ethics and Standards of Professional Conduct of the appraisal organizations with which the Appraiser is affiliated. 
6.All conclusions and opinions concern ing the real estate that are set forth in the appraisal report were prepared by the 

Appraiser whose signature appears on the appraisal report, unless indicated as 'Review Appraiser'. No change of any item in 
the appraisal report shall be made by anyone other than the Appraiser, and the Appraiser shall have no responsibili ty for any 
such unauthorized change. 

CONTINGENT AND LIMITI NG CONDITIONS: The certification of the Appraiser appearing in the appraisal report is subject 
to the following cond itions and to such other specific and limiting conditions as are set forth by the Appraiser in the report. 

1.The Appraiser assumes no responsibi lity for matters of a legal nature affecting the property appraised or the title there
to , nor does the Appraiser render any opinion as to the title, wh ich is assumed to be good and marketable. The property is 
appraised as though under responsible ownership. 

2.Any sketch in the report may show approximate dimensions and is included to assist the reader in visualizing the prop
erty. The Appraiser has made no survey of the property. 

3.The Appraiser is not required to give testimony or appear in court because of having made the appraisal with reference 
to the property in question, unless arrangements have been previously made therefor. 

4.Any distribution of the valuation in the report between land and improvements applies only under the existing program 
of utilization. The separate valuation for land and build ing must not be used in conjunction wi th any other appraisal and are 
invalid if so used. 

~ .The Appraise r assumes that there are no hidden or unapparent conditions of the property, subsoil , or structures. which 
would render it more or less valuable. The Appraiser assumes no re sponsibility for such conditions, or for engineering which 
might be required to discover such factors. 

6.lnformation, estimates, and opinions furn ished to the Appra iser, and contained in the report, were obta ined from sources 
considered reliable and believed to be true and correct. However, no responsibility for accuracy of such items furnished the 
Appraiser can be assumed by the Appraiser. 

7.Disclosure of the contents of the appraisal report is governed by the Bylaws and Regulations of the professional appraisal 
organizations with which the Appraiser is affiliated. 

8.Neither all, nor any part of the content of the report, or copy thereof (including conclusions as to the property value, 
the identity of the Appraiser, professional designations, reference to any professional appraisal organizations, or the firm with 
which the Appraiser is connected), shall be used for any purposes by anyone but the client specified in the report, the borrower 
if appraisal fee paid by same, the mortgagee or its successors and assigns, mortgage insurers, consultants , professional appraisal 
organizations, any state or federally approved financial institution, any department, agency, or instrumentality of the United 
States or any state or the District of Columbia, without the previous written consent of the Appraiser; nor shall it be conveyed 
by anyone to the public through advertising , public relations , news, sales, or other media, without the written consent and 
approval of the Appra iser. 

9.0n all appraisa ls, subject to satisfactory completion, repai rs , or alterations, the appraisal report and va lue conclusion are 
contingent upon completion of the improvements in a workmanlike manner. 

ENVIRONMENTAL DISCLAIMER: The value estimated is based on the assumption that the property is not negatively affected 
by the existence of hazardous substances or detrimental environmental conditions unless otherwise stated in this report. The appraiser 
is not an expert In the identification of hazardous substances or detrimental environment conditions. The appraiser's routine inspection 
of and inquiries about the subject property did not develop any information that indicated any apparent significant hazardous sub-
stances or detrimental environmental conditions which would e t the property negatively unless otherwise stated in this report. 
It is possible that tests and inspections made by a qualified ha d environmental expert would reveal the existence 
of hazardous substances or detrimental environmental c e property that would negatively affect its value. 

Date: 2/4/16 

Freddie Mac Form 439 7/86 Fannie Mae Form 10048 7/86 
Produced by ClickFORMS Software 800-622-8727 Page 29 of 35 



Hal Dunn & Associates 

File No. 19316CH 
Case No. _____ _ 

APPRAISER INDEPENDENCE CERTIFICATION 

The undersigned appraiser, being duly licensed or certified by the State in which the subject property 
is located, hereby represents and warrants that the appraisal performed in conjunction with this 
Certification complies with all elements of the Home Valuation Code of Conduct published December 
2008. 

In addition, the undersigned appraiser agrees that no one has influenced or attempted to influence 
the development, reporting, result, or review of this appraisal through coercion, extortion , collusion , 
compensation, inducement, intimidation, bribery or in any other manner including but not limited to: 

withholding or threatening to withhold timely payment or partial payment for this appraisal report; 

withhold ing or threatening to withhold future business; 

expressly or implied promising future business, promotions, or increased compensation; 

conditioning the ordering of the appraisal report or the payment of the appraisal fee on the opinion , 
conclusion , or valuation to be reached , or on a preliminary value estim ate requesting ; 

requesting that the appraiser provide an estimated , predetermined , or desired valuation in this 
appraisal report prior to the completion of the appraisal report, or requesting that the appraiser 
provide estimated values or comparable sales at any time prior to the completion of this appraisal 
report; 

• providing to the appraiser an anticipated, estimated , encouraged, or desired value for the subject 
property or a proposed or target amount to be loaned to the borrower, except that a copy of the sales 
contract for purchase transactions may be provided ; 

• providing the appraiser, or any entity or person related to the appraiser, any other financial or 
non-financial benefits; 

Signature 

Appraiser Name 

Company Name Hal Dunn & Associates 

Company Address -=5-'-10""'6'-"S=·-=G=e'-"ne=ra=l-=B-"'ru=c=-e =D"'-riv=e,_#"-'2=0-=-0 ____ _ 
Temple , TX 76502 

Date of Signature -=2/'-"4"-'/1=6 ____________ _ 

State Certification #~1-'-33~8~1=-24~------------
or Stale License# - -------------

or Other (describe) ---------------

State --'T""X~----
Expiration Date of Certification or License -=0=-9/-=3=0/=20~1-=6 _ ___ __ _ 

·-
Name Harold P. Dunn 

Company Name Hal Dunn & Associates 

Company Address 5106 S. General Bruce Dr. Suite 200 

Temple, TX 76502 
Date of Signature ~2~/4_/1~6 _____________ _ 

State Certification # --'1-=32~4=6=-07~-----------
or State License # ----------------
State --'T""X ___ _ 

Expiration Date of Certification or License -'-3~/3~1/-'-17~-------

Page 30 of 35 

Produced by Cl ickFORMS Software 800-622-8727 



Hal Dunn & Associates 
File No. 1931 6CH 

APPRAISAL COMPLIANCE ADDENDUM c ase No 

Unit No. 
Borrower/Client Not Appl icable 
Address 3.546 ac. on Sparta Rd . 
City Belton County ~B~e~ll _ ________ State _T_X _ _ _ Zip Code 76513-5227 

Lender/Client Citv of Belton 

This Appraisal Compliance Addendum is included to ensure this appraisal report meets all USPAP 2014 reQuirements . 
'l•'ll • •. • • 

This Appraisal Report is one of the following types: 
0Appraisal Report This report was prepared in accordance with the reQuirements of the Appraisal Report option of USPAP Standards Rule 2-2(a). 
0 Restricted Appraisal Report This report was prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Restricted Appraisal Report option of USPAP Standards Rule 2-2(b). The 

intended user of this report is limited to the identified client. This is a Restricted Appraisal Report and the rationale for how the appraiser arrived 
at the opinions and conclusions set forth in the report may not be understood properly without the additional information in the appraiser's workfile. 

ADDITIONAL CERTIFICATIONS 

I certify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief: 
The statements of fact contained in th is report are true and correct. 
The reported analyses, opinions, and conclusions are limited only by the reported assumptions and are my personal, impartial, and unbiased professional analyses, 
opinions, and conclusions. 
Unless otherwise indicated, I have no present or prospective interest in the property that is the subject of this report and no personal interest with respect to parties involved 
Unless otherwise indicated, I have performed no services, as an appraiser or in any other capaci ty, regard ing the property that is the subject of th is report within the three-year 
period immediately preceding acceptance of this assignment. 
I have no bias wi th respect to the property that is the subject of this report or the parties involved with this assignment. 
My engagement in this assignment was not contingent upon developing or reporting predetermined results. 
My compensation for completing this assignment is not con tingent upon the development or reporting of a predetermined value or direction in value that favors the cause 
of the client, the amount of the value opinion, the attainment of a stipulated result, or the occurrence of a subseouent event directly related to the intended use of 
this appraisal. 
My analyses, opinions, and conclusions were developed and this report has been prepared, in conformity with the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice that 
were in effect at the time this report was prepared. 
Unless otherwise indicated , I have made a personal inspection of the property that is the subject of this report. 
Unless otherwise indicated, no one provided significant real property appraisal assistance to the person(s) signing this certification (if there are exceptions, the name of each 
individual providing significant real property appraisal assistance is stated elsewhere in this report). 
This report has been prepared in accordance with Title XI of FIRREA as amended, and any implementing regulations. 

!J!'.U•. . 
· ~ I have NOT performed services, as an appraiser or in another other capacity, regarding the property that is the subject of the report within the three-year period 

immediately preceding acceptance of th is assignment. 
0 I HAVE performed services, as an appraiser or in another capacity, regarding the property that is the subject of this report within the three-year period immediately 
orecedina acceotance of this assianment. Those services are described in the comments below. 

!J!l •• . . • 
I ~ HAVE made a personal inspection of the property that is the subject of this report. 
I have NOT made a personal inspection of the prooortv that is the subiect of th is reoort . . . . .. . ··-· 

Unless otherwise noted , no one provided significant real property appraisal assistance to the person signing this certification. If anyone did provide significant assistance, they 
are herebv identified alone with a summarv of the extent of the assistance provided in the report. 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS 

Additional USPAP related issues requiring disclosure and/or any state mandated reouirements: 

• •.1'.lll:::lllh•1 ...... . . . .. :• I•!• e•1 .... 

rm A reasonable marketing time for the subject property is 180 to 365 day(s) utilizing market conditions pertinent to the appraisal assignment. 
A reasonable exposure time for the subject property is 180 to 365 day(s). 

...... . . 
··~· .. .•. .. .. . 1 .. --... ,., • 1-•.1..-• .,,,, 

Signature Ch~ J.Lu~ "" ) 
Name Name Harold P. Dunn 
Date of Signature 2/4/16 Date of Signature 2/4/16 
State Certification # 1338124 State Certification # 1324607 
or State License# or State License # 
State TX State TX 
Expiration Date of Certification or License 09/30/2016 Expiration Date of Certification or License 3/31/17 

Supervisory Appraiser Inspection of Subject Property: 
Effective Date of Appraisal 2/4/16 D Did Not D Exterior Only from street 0 Interior and Exterior 

USPAP Compliance Addendum 2014 Page 31 of 35 
Produced by ClickFORMS Software 800-622-8727 



Hal Dunn & Associates 

APPRAISER DISCLOSURE STATEMENT 

Appraiser: 

Name of Appraiser: ~C~h_n_·s_H_e_r_in~g~-----------

Class of Certification/Licensure: Certified General 
Certified Residential 
Licensed Residential 
Temporary 0 General 0 Licensed 
Registered Real Estate Appraiser Assistant 

Certification/Licensure Number: 1338124-G ---------------------

Scope: This Report 

Service Provided by: 

Supervisor: 

is within the scope of my Certification or License. 
is not within the scope of my Certification or License. 

Disinterested & Unbiased Third Party 
Interested & Biased Third Party 
Interested Third Party on Contingent Fee Basis 

Name of Supervisor: -'-H""a""ro=-1-=d-'P-'.-'D"'u""n"'n'------------

Class of Certification/Licensure: Certified General 
Certified Residential 
Licensed Residential 
Temporary D General 0 Licensed 

Certification/Licensure Number:-'1-=3-=24-'-6=-0=-7_--=G'----- ------- - -----

Scope: This Report 

Service Provided by: 

bll!71~ 
Harold P. Dunn 

is within the scope of my Certification or License. 
is not within the scope of my Certification or License. 

Disinterested & Unbiased Third Party 
Interested & Biased Third Party 
Interested Third Party on Contingent Fee Basis 

File No. 19316CH 

Case No. 

This form must be included in conjunction with all appraisal assignments or specialized services performed by a 
state-certified or state-licensed real estate appraiser. 

Produced by ClickFORMS Software 800-622-8727 Page 32 of 35 



Hal Dunn & Associates 
Engagement Letter File No. 19316CH 

Case No. 

Borrower Not Applicable 
Property Address 3.546 ac. on Sparta Rd. 
City Belton County Bell State TX 
Lender/Client City of Belton Address 333 Water St. , Belton , TX 76513 

Jnm.1111)' 6. 20 I 

Cit} of Belton 
Attn Erin Smith 
333 WR!CT St 
Beltu11, T 76513 

Hal Dunn & Associates 
5106 S. G nornl aruce Dnvc 11200 •Temple. TX 76502 

Telephone: 254·77 ~-2222 • FAX 25 4-742-161 S 
Emnil uddress· bnldunn_ 11Ssoc1ate~"tifyuhM.com 

Re: Ouote (or Appmisnl 

Pear Mr. Smi1h. 

This 1 10 notify you 11nd the City of Belton 111111 Hal Dunn & rusociales csn d.l the nppnil!iUI for the 3546 
ai:rc. ofllllld situah:d in the Lewis Walker urvcy, AhstnlCt No 860 in Btill County. TX for a fee of 
S7 SG.00 with a deliY\!I)' of the report within 1 S wor\lng da)'5 from 1mgagemen 

fbnnk ynu for the opportunity. 

~~'~ 
/ Ha~n . 

Produced by ClickFORMS Software 800-622-8727 

Zip Code 76513-5227 

Page 33 of 35 



Appraiser License Certificate 
File No. 19316CH 
Case No. 

You may wish to laminate the pocket identification card 
to preserve it. 

The person named on the reverse Is licensed by the Texas 
Appraiser Licensing and Ceruficatlon Board 

Inquiry as to the smtus or this ltcense may be made to: 

Texas Appraiser Licensing and Certification Board 
Po Box 12188 

Aualln, Tx 78711·2188 
www taleb texas.gov 

CHRISTOPHER WAL TON HERING 
PO BOX 553 

(512} 936·3001 
Fax:(512) 936·3899 

ROSEBUD, TX 76570 

ttexllS l!'.llitlrafltr 1Jcruing anb Ctrtffiotion Jilolll'b 
P.O. Box 12188 AusUn, Texaa 7171 1-2188 

Certlfled General Real Estate Appraiser 
Number# TX 133812A G 

Issued 09/10/2014 Expl!H 09/30/2016 

~ CHRISTOPHER WALTON HERING 

tn:e.xas ~prai~er 'l.icensing anb Certification 1@oarb 
P.O. Box 12188 Austin, Texas 78711-2188 

Certified General .Real Estate Appraiser 

Number: 

Issued: 

TX1338124 G 
09/10/2014 Expires: 09/30/2016 

Appraiser: CHRISTOPHER WAL TON HERING 

Having provided satisfactory evidence of the quaJtflcatlons required by the 
Texas Appraiser Licensing and Certification Act, Texas Occupations Code, 
Chapter 1103, Is authorized to use this title, Certified General Real Estate 
Appraiser. 

Produced by ClickFORMS Software 800-622-8727 

/li(/,ltt '/ 
~~asE~ 

Comml11ion r 

Page 34 of 35 



HAROLD P DUNN 

Appraiser License Certificate 
File No. 1931 6CH 
Case No. 

You may wish to laminate the pocket identification card 
to preserve it. 

The person named on the reverse Is licensed by the Texas 
Appra ser LlcenslllQ and Certification Board 

Inquiry as lo the status or this Ocense may be made to: 

Texas Appraiser Licensing and Certlfi lion Board 
P.0 Box 12188 

Aushn, Tx 78711·2188 
www.talcb.texas.gov 

(512) 936-3001 
Fax (512) 936-3899 

5106 S. GENERAL BRUCE DRIVE 
STE. 200 
TEMPLE. TX 76502 

ctcxaf 2lppra nr 1.lm11f1111 anll Certiffcallon •oarll 
P.O. Box 121 88 AUii.in, TtH I 7811 1-2181 

Certified General Real Estate Appral er 
Nunu.t TX 1324607 G 

laaued 03/1112015 Eiq:ures 03131/2017 

ApptMel HAROLD P DUNN 

'Otexa.u apprai.uer 1Ucenj ing anb QCertification lioarb 
P.O. Box 12188 Austin, Texas 78711-2188 

Certified G~neral· Real Estate Appraiser 

Number. 

Issued: 

TX1324607 G 
03/1 1/2015 Expires: 03/31/2017 

Appraiser: HAROLD P DUNN 

Having provided satisfactory evidence of the qualifications required by the 
Texas Appralser Licensing and Certif ication Act, Tex.as Occupations Code, 
Chapter 1103, is authorized to use this title, Certified General Real Estate 
Appraiser. 

Produced by ClickFORMS Softwa re 800-622-8727 

121(/.# '/ 
~a~ E.~ 

Commissioner 

Page 35 of 35 



City of Belton 
Adopted FY2016  

Strategic Plan Excerpt 
 
 
 
Goal Category 5: Connectivity 
 
a) Facilitate Cable/Fiber Service Expansion 

 
 

b) Expand Hike/Bike Trail 
 
 

c) Secure ROW for Lake to Lake Road 
 

• Actions Taken/Underway/Needed 
 
o Confirmation of alignment by TxDOT – City/County Project 

from US 190 to FM 93; TxDOT Project from FM 93 to FM 
439 

o Continued ROW acquisition as subdivision platting occurs 
o Discussion with Bell County on ROW cost sharing occurred 

in Spring 2015; no commitments made 
o Meeting with TxDOT District representatives 11/20/15 on 

current planning priority to ensure ROW is secured; 
construction will occur later, with ROW in hand, with 
requests for future project funding through KTMPO 
 

• Action Items Needed 
 
o Continued ROW acquisition by City; County as appropriate 
o Corps of Engineers discussion, action, on ROW parcels 

across Lakeview Park 
 

• Next Step in Goal Achievement 
 

o Acquisition of Cameron, Sendero Estate parcels 
o Funding allocation by Bell County 
o Discussion with DRWSC on CCN boundary  



City of Belton 

April 7, 2016 

Bradley Ellis 
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 
Belton/Stillhouse Hollow Lake 
3740 FM 1670 
Belton, Texas 76513 

Mr. Ellis, 

,..., Founded 18 5 0 ,..., 

In response to our attached request concerning the FM 2271 project and parkland, please accept this letter as a 
summary of understanding regarding the April 6, 2016 meeting between the City of Belton and the USACE 
Belton/Stillhouse Hollow Lake Office. 

The USACE will provide the following: 

FM2271 
An official letter agreeing to grant the City of Belton a permanent access easement (and temporary 
construction easement as required) to construct the extension of FM 2271 south through USACE 
property (see attached exhibit). The legal instrument to convey the easement will be initiated once a 
schedule for funding is secured to complete the USA CE portion of the project. 

The City of Belton will provide the following: 

PARKLAND . . . 
A proposal to develop and install appropriate recreational elements on approximately 8.25 acres of 
USACE property, located adjacent and east of the proposed FM 2271 right of way (see attached exhibit), 
with the intent of entering into a Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Belton and the 
local Belton/Stillhouse Hollow Lake Office. 

Thank you for your time meeting with us, and we look forward to our continued partnership in making our 
community a great place to live. 

Ar-~ 
Aaron Harris 
City of Belton 
Grants and Special Projects Coordinator 

Cc: Sam A. Listi, City Manager 
Matt Bates, Parks and Recreation Director 
Ronald L. Bruggman, USACE Lake Manager 

333 Water Street* P.O. Box 120 *Belton, Texas 76513 *Phone (254) 933-5800 *Fax (254) 933-5822 



March 17, 2016 

Bradley Ellis 
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 
Belton/Stillhouse Hollow Lake 
3740 FM 1670 
Belton, Texas 76513 

Dear Mr. Ellis, 

City of Belton 
~Founded 1850 ~ 

The City of Belton is requesting right-of-way for the proposed Lake to Lake Road Project that will extend FM 
2271 south from FM 439 through USACE property and connect to existing City owned right-of-way along Red 
Rock Drive (please see attached exhibit). The property will be approximately 200 ft . in width and 650 ft . in 
length (approx. 3 acres). 

IfUSACE is agreeable to this request the City will draft the required surveys and legal documents. Please let 
me know if we can provide any additional information. 

Sincerely, 

Sam A. Listi 
City Manager 

333 Water Street * P.O. Box 120 * Belton, Texas 76513 * Phone (254) 933-5800 * Fax (254) 933-5822 



W. E 
s 

FM 2271 - Lake to Lake Road 

FM2271 Extension 

Property Boundary 

Belton City Limits 

Proposed Parkland 

Aerl&l l•ater! Dale: 2115 
1,000 ""'Dale: J/1112111 

Feet 



City Council Agenda Item 
June 14, 2016 

Page 1 of 2   
 

 
Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
        Date:  June 14, 2016 
        Case No.: P-16-17 
        Request: Preliminary/Final Plat 
        Applicant: Sightline Surveying/                                          
          Bandas Engineering  
 
Agenda Item #8 
 
Consider a preliminary/final plat for Cameron Hills II, a 19.393 acre tract of land, located on 
the north side of Sparta Road, west of Lake to Lake Road right-of-way and west and south of 
Dawson Ranch, Phases 5 and 6.   
 
Originating Department 
 
Planning – Erin Smith, Director of Planning 
 
Case Summary 
 
This is a 3-lot subdivision with ROW dedication for FM 2271 Spur. 
 
Project Analysis and Discussion 
 
This is a 3-lot single family subdivision plat proposed as Cameron Hills II Subdivision. 
Proposed Lot 1, Block 1 and Lot 1, Block 2 are zoned Agricultural Zoning District and 
proposed Lot 2, Block 2 is zoned Single Family-1 Zoning District. Lots 1 and 2, Block 2 each 
contain a single family home. The size of the proposed Lot 1, Block 2 is 14.892 acres in size, 
in conformance with the Agricultural Zoning District lot size requirements and the size of the 
proposed Lot 2, Block 2 is 0.955 acres in size, in conformance with the Single Family-1 
Zoning District lot size requirements. The City is working with the owners, Don and Billie 
Cameron to acquire 1.927 acres of ROW for FM 2271 Spur and the remaining 1.620 acres 
south of the ROW shown as Lot 1, Block 1 on this proposed plat. FM 2271 Spur will be a 
local roadway that is needed to provide future access from Sparta Road to Lake to Lake 
Road, since there will ultimately be a bridge for Lake to Lake Road extending over Sparta 
Road, BNSF railroad, and Nolan Creek. The existing driveway leading to the two homes will 
remain within the proposed FM 2271 Spur ROW to provide access to Lots 1 and 2, Block 2, 
until this roadway is constructed in the future. Since Lot 2, Block 2 does not have property 
frontage along the proposed FM 2271 Spur ROW, a 30 feet wide access easement will 
extend from the FM 2271 Spur ROW to this lot.   
 
According to the Subdivision Ordinance, any residential subdivision within the City of Belton, 
or within the City’s extraterritorial jurisdiction, is required to set aside and dedicate to the 
public sufficient and suitable lands for the purpose of parkland and/or make a financial 



City Council Agenda Item 
June 14, 2016 

Page 2 of 2   
 

contribution for the acquisition and development of such parkland. These requirements may 
be satisfied through parkland dedication or payment of fees-in-lieu of required parkland or a 
combination of the two. This subdivision requires parkland dedication of 0.03 acres or $600 
parkland fee for the three lots. Since two of the lots contain existing houses and the other lot 
is not proposed for single family construction, staff recommends approval of a variance to the 
parkland requirements, given no increase in number of lots.   
 
City staff have reviewed the plat and find it acceptable, subject to conditions contained in the 
letter to the applicant’s engineer dated May 9, 2016. 

Recommendation 

Recommend approval of a preliminary/final plat for Cameron Hills II, a 19.393 acre tract of 
land, located on the north side of Sparta Road, west of Lake to Lake Road right-of-way and 
west and south of Dawson Ranch, Phases 5 and 6. 
 
Attachments 
Final Plat Application 
Final Plat 
Location Map 

 
 
 





Belton
Lakeview

Park

DU
NN

S
CA

NY
O

N BUENA

VIDATIERRA ALTA

CAMINO

PRINCIPAL

SPRIN
G

 

439D
O

O
W

DL
I

W

N
OY

NA
C

SPARTA ROAD

CHISHOLM TRL. PKWY

W
HE

AT
RO

AD

439

2117

CHISHOLM TRL. PKWY

TW
IN

 R
ID

GE
 D

RI
VE

M
YS

TI
C 

M
TN

.
LA

N
E

10050050

SCALE: 1" = 100'

5.19 ACRES OF LAND
JOHN A. BURNS AND

SPOUSE MARILYN R. BURNS
DOC. NO. 2009-00017173

13 MAY 2009

2.18 ACRES OF LAND
LESLIE SHANNON DREW &
GERALD RICHARD DREW

DOC. NO. 2011-00036408
20 OCT 2011

3.466 ACRES OF LAND
CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS

VOL. 5154, PG. 827
25 SEPT. 2003

CAMERON HILLS I
CAB C, SLD. 37A
31 MARCH 2004

DA
W

SO
N

 R
AN

CH
 P

H
AS

E 
V

PL
AT

 2
01

4-
11

4
08

 S
EP

T 
20

14

 DONALD GENE PARKER
17.46 ACRES

VOL. 2585 PG. 71
Nov. 15, 1989

N
O

RT
H 

RO
W

 V
O

L.
 1

83
9,

 P
G.

 6
43

City Of
Belton

MON B14

SO
UT

H 
RO

W
 B

Y 
US

AG
E 

(A
S 

FE
NC

ED
)

N

6

3

°
 
5

6

'
 
0

3

"
W

4

2

0

.
2

0

'

C
2

N16° 44' 13"E648.11'

N
7
9
°
 
3
7
'
 
0
9
"
W

3
9
8
.
8
0
'

N16° 43' 12"E866.57'

S
7
6
°
 
5
7
'
 
4
3
"
E

9
1
5
.
1
2
'

L
6

L7

S
19° 48' 30"W

303.22'

N
7
9
°
 
4
8
'
 
4
5
"
W

2
1
7
.
0
5
'

S1° 2
3' 29

"W

204.1
3'

L2

L1

L3
L4

L5

S25° 04' 26"W172.69'

S23° 10' 04"W93.88'

S
7
0
°
 
1
0
'
 
0
7
"
E

3
7
4
.
6
7
'

BLOCK 1
LOT 1

1.620 ACRES

BLOCK 2
LOT 1

14.892 ACRES

BLOCK 2
LOT 2

0.955 ACRESPOINT OF
BEGINNING

PROP. 30' ACCESS EASEMENT

CL 20' ONCOR ESMT
VOL. 5284, PG. 874

1/2" IR "RPLS 4540"
(SAME)

1/2" I R
(SAME)

5/8" IRF W/ CAP
"ALL COUNTY"
(SAME)

C1

S6
0°

 4
8'

 2
0"

E

16
9.

05
'

S78° 45' 08"E
61.58'

N18° 09' 15"E
196.28'

N
71

° 4
7'

 5
3"

W
20

6.
32

'

N70° 10' 07"W
118.07'

1/2"I R
(SAME)

DAWSON RANCH PHASE VI
PLAT 2016-31
24 MAR 2016

1/2" IR
 "R

PLS 4540"

(SAME)

MAGNAIL "R
PLS 4540"

(SAME)1/2" IR
 "R

PLS 4540"

(SAME)

1/2"I R
(SAME)

1/2"I R
(SAME)

5/8" IRF W/ CAP
"ALL COUNTY"
(SAME)

5/8" IRF W/ CAP
"ALL COUNTY"
(SAME)

MON FD "RPLS 4540"
(SAME)

1/2" I R
(SAME)

1/2" I R
(SAME)

1/2" I R
(SAME)

1/2" I R
(IR W/ CAP
"ALL COUNTY")

MON FD
"RPLS 4540"
(SAME)

MON FD
"RPLS 4540"
(SAME)

MON FD
"RPLS 4540"
(SAME)

1/2" IR "RPLS 4540"
(SAME)

1/2" IR "RPLS 4540"
(SAME)

1/2" IR "RPLS 4540"
(SAME)

15
' O

N
CO

R 
ES

M
T 

DO
C.

 2
01

5-
00

00
55

91
 

CL 20' ONCOR ESMT
VOL. 5284, PG. 870

CL 10' ONCOR ESMT
VOL. 3001, PG. 151

100.00'
203.22'

TP&L CL ESMT VOL. 564 PG. 569

TP
&L

 C
L E

SM
T 

VO
L. 

56
4 

PG
. 5

89

CL UNK
ONCOR ESMT

TP&L CL ESMT VOL. 564 PG. 569

N
70

°1
0'

07
"W

'
26

7.
82

'

(S
 6

3°
57

'0
1"

   
42

1.
36

)

(N 16°43'09"E   331.82)

(R
AD

: 5
,6

90
.0

0'
)

(S 19°00'00" W    648.17')

(N 19°00'00" E )

(N
 7

7°
 3

6'
 2

3"
 W

   
  2

17
.1

0'
)

(N
 7

7°
 2

0'
 3

6"
 W

   
  3

98
.7

4'
)

(S 19°49'12" W)

75.95'

S5
5°

 2
9'

 2
3"

E
61

5.
62'

(N
 7

6°
56

'4
7"

 W
   

 9
15

.1
6'

)

43.81'

32.59'

41.67'

N03°08'29"W'

465.83'

N14°00'18"E'
465.83'

135.43'

327.80'

197.37'
N71° 50' 45"W
30.00'

(N
 7

0°
10

'1
2"

 W
   

 3
74

.6
3'

)

(N 01°23'17" E  204.17')

(N 14°09'01"   130.59')

(S
 8

5°
59

'4
8"

E 
  1

51
.4

9'
)

(N 23°08'00" E  93.86')
(N 25°03'09" E   172.72')

1/2" IR
 "R

PLS 4540"

(SAME)

(N 26°50'20"E)(60.07') (N 27°50'45"E)(81.91') (N 29°03'57"E)(81.94') (N 27°01'41"E)(89.09')
(N 27°01'42"E)

(6.77')

31.84'
15.00'

32.92'
15' P.U.E.
BY PLAT

S16° 55' 12"W 331.68'

61
.1

4'

100.00'

14
9.

97
'

(1
50

.0
0)

5/8" IRF W/ CAP
"ALL COUNTY"
(SAME) N19°48'27"E' 346.36'

(S 19°49'12" W)

(Same)

HIGHLAND ESTATES PHASE ONE
CAB. C, SLD. 187 D

18 NOV. 1999

VAR. WIDTH ROW
DEDICATION
(CAB. C, SLD. 187 D)

1/2" IRF W/ CAP
(SAME)

14
9.

88
'

(1
50

.0
0)

HIGHLAND ESTATES
PHASE II

PLAT 2014-1136
08 SEPT. 2014

1/2" IR
(1/2" IR W/CAP)

Office (210) 286-9077   Fax (210) 568-4382

5702 Southern Oaks

Sightline Surveying

San Antonio, Texas 78261

EMAIL: "rickshelley@gmail.com"

Sheet 1 of 1

LOCATION MAP

1" = 1,500'

LEGEND

- 1/2" Iron Rod Set With Cap "RPLS 4540"

- 1/2" Iron Rod Found With Cap "RPLS 4540"

(  )
- Record Information

Set At All Lot Corners

- COB Monument Found

- 1/2" Iron Rod Found As Noted

PROJECT

D

E

A

L

E

S

A

X

G

E

R

P

X

A

S

T

E

E

T
S

I

F

E

O

T

A

T

S

R

R. P. SHELLEY

T

E

Y

O

O

F

E

S
S

I

R

N

A

D

S
U

O

V

R

N

4540

L

R

THIS FINAL PLAT IS RELEASED BY RICK SHELLEY -
RPLS 4540 FOR REVIEW ONLY.  THIS SHALL NOT BE
USED FOR FILING OR REAL PROPERTY
TRANSACTIONS UNTIL APPROVED BY CITY OF
BELTON AND SIGNED BY SURVEYOR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lewis Walker Survey,Abst. No. 860

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
FM 2271 SPUR

AutoCAD SHX Text
(ROW 1.927 ACRES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FM 2271 SPUR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPARTA ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
(COUNTY MAINTAINED ROADWAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRCT "A"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINAL PLAT OF CAMERON HILLS II,

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILED FOR RECORD this ____ day of ______________, 2016, A.D. Plat Number _______________, Plat Records of Bell County, Texas Dedication Instrument Document Number _____________________

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX CERTIFICATE The Bell County Tax Appraisal District, the taxing authority for all entities in Bell County, Texas does hereby certify that there are currently no delinquent taxes due or owing on the property described by this plat. Dated this __________________ day of  ________________________, A.D. 2016 Bell County Tax Appraisal District By: ________________________

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAT NOTES: NUMBER OF LOTS = 3 ACREAGE OF ROW DEDICATION = 1.927 ACRES C.L.	LENGTH OF ROW DEDICATION =  913.88 LF  LENGTH OF ROW DEDICATION =  913.88 LF  TOTAL AREA OF SUBDIVISION = 19.393 ACRES LEWIS WALKER SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 860 FEMA INFORMATION: THIS ADDITION IS WITHIN FEMA FIRM MAP 48027C0330E, DATED SEPT. 28, 2008. ALL AREAS OF THIS SUBDIVISION ARE IN "ZONE X: AREAS DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE OF THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD." CITY OF BELTON MONUMENT INFORMATION: THIS PLAT IS REFERENCED TO THE CITY OF BELTON  HORIZONTAL CONTROL SYSTEM MONUMENTS: MONUMENT B-14  (NAD 83 TEXAS CENTRAL ZONE ) NORTHING					10370565.148 10370565.148 EASTING					3187511.267 3187511.267 ELEVATION					597.69 597.69 CONVERGENCE				1  27' 58.78" 1° 27' 58.78"COMBINED SCALE FACTOR		0.99988328 0.99988328 MONUMENT B-15  (NAD 83 TEXAS CENTRAL ZONE ) NORTHING					10372682.611 10372682.611 EASTING					3182278.760 3182278.760 ELEVATION					612.40 612.40 CONVERGENCE				1  27' 28.11" 1° 27' 28.11"COMBINED SCALE FACTOR		0.9998830 0.9998830 THE BEARING BASIS IS THE LINE FROM MONUMENT B-14 TO MONUMENT B-15 WHICH BEARS S 67°58'5" E. ALL DISTANCES ARE GRID DISTANCES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEING 19.393 ACRES OF LAND SITUATED IN THE  LEWIS WALKER SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 860

AutoCAD SHX Text
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS,

AutoCAD SHX Text
_____________________________

AutoCAD SHX Text
R.P. Shelley, RPLS No. 4540

AutoCAD SHX Text
Registered Professional Land Surveyor

AutoCAD SHX Text
_______________________________________

AutoCAD SHX Text
Don W. Cameron, Co-Trustee for Cameron Family Revocable Trust

AutoCAD SHX Text
___________________________   ___________________________

AutoCAD SHX Text
Chairman                                                   Secretary

AutoCAD SHX Text
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS,

AutoCAD SHX Text
Certificate of Approval by the Planning & Zoning Commission:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Certificate of the Registered Professional Land Surveyor:

AutoCAD SHX Text
    That I, R.P. Shelley, Registered Professional Land Surveyor, do hereby certify that I did prepare this plat from an actual and accurate survey of the land, that the corner monuments shown hereon shall be properly placed, under my personal supervision, in accordance with the subdivision regulations of the City of Belton, Texas.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Certificate of the Owner:

AutoCAD SHX Text
  I hereby certify that the above and foregoing plat of Cameron Hills II, an Addition to the City of Belton, Texas was approved this _______ day of ________________, 2016, by the Planning & Zoning Commission of the City of Belton, Texas.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Certificate of Approval by the City Council:

AutoCAD SHX Text
___________________________    ___________________________

AutoCAD SHX Text
Mayor                                                      Secretary

AutoCAD SHX Text
That the Cameron Family Revocable Trust, Don W. Cameron and Billie G. Cameron, Co-Trustees, and Lisa Brown-Bartholemew, being the sole Owners of the land shown in this plat and designated herein as Cameron Hills II, an Addition to the City of Belton, Bell County, Texas, and whose name is subscribed hereto, hereby dedicate to the use of the Public forever, all streets, parks, water courses, drains, easements, and public places as shown hereon.

AutoCAD SHX Text
  I hereby certify that the above and foregoing plat of Cameron Hills II, an Addition to the City of Belton, Texas was approved this _______ day of ________________, 2016, by the City Council of the City of Belton, Texas.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Cameron Family Revocable Trust

AutoCAD SHX Text
2312 Sparta Road

AutoCAD SHX Text
_______________________________________

AutoCAD SHX Text
Belton, Texas 76513

AutoCAD SHX Text
Billie G. Cameron, Co-Trustee for Cameron Family Revocable Trust

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF TEXAS § COUNTY OF BELL § This instrument was acknowledged before me on this ______ day of  _________________, 2016 A.D. By Don W. Cameron, Co-Trustee for Cameron Family Revocable Trust. _________________________ NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF TEXAS	 My Commission Expires__________

AutoCAD SHX Text
_______________________________________

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lisa Brown-Bartholemew

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lisa Brown-Bartholemew

AutoCAD SHX Text
2306 Sparta Road

AutoCAD SHX Text
Belton, Texas 76513

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF TEXAS § COUNTY OF BELL § This instrument was acknowledged before me on this ______ day of  _________________, 2016 A.D. By Billie G. Cameron, Co-Trustee for Cameron Family Revocable Trust. _________________________ NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF TEXAS	 My Commission Expires__________

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF TEXAS § COUNTY OF BELL § This instrument was acknowledged before me on this ______ day of  _________________, 2016 A.D. By Lisa Brown-Bartholemew. _________________________ NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF TEXAS	 My Commission Expires__________

AutoCAD SHX Text
Said addition shall be subject to all the Requirements of the Subdivision Ordinance of the City of Belton. Witness my hand this _____ day of ______, 2016. ___________________________ City Clerk



LAKE RD

LOVING

TR
L

RED VALLEY DR

SPARTA RD
PR

ES
IDI

O 
CIR

DU
NN

S C
AN

YO
N 

RD

YTURRIA DR

TW
IN

RI
DG

E C
T

DUNNS HOLLOW DR

TEJON CT WISTERIA LN

LACY RIDGE DR

AMBERFOREST TRL

TW
IN

 R
ID

GE
 D

RI
VE

BL

UFF CIR

RED ROCK DR

GREEN HAVEN D R

SCHOONE R CV

CHISHOLM TRAIL PKWY

TIGER DR

DE
LE

ON
CIR

SA
RI

TA
 C

V

SPIN N AK
ER

LN

DR
OVERS RUN

PU
RP

LE
 SA

GE
 DR

IVE
WI

LD
CA

TT
ER

 DR
IVE

ES
CA

LE
RA

 D
R

TE
N 

BI
TS

 D
R

TER R A ALTA DR

TIG
ER

DR

MA
TA

DO

R DR

SP
RIN

G C
AN

YO
N R

D

BR
EAKERS CV

DE
ER

TR
L

0 510 1,020255 Feet For informational purposes only. Boundaries are approximate and not legally binding.

Proposed Cameron Hills II

Path: E:\City of Belton Projects Folders\Maps and Data\Zoning\Zoning Cases 2016\P Cases\P-16-18\P-16-18.mxd    -    Date: 5/6/2016

´
Legend

P-16-18

Final Plat
Cameron Hills II
Acres: 19.393

CAMERON FAMILY -
REVOCABLE TRUST
PROPERTY OWNER:

PROPOSED PLAT:

 P-16-18  Cameron Hil ls  I I P-16-18  Cameron Hil ls  I I



PR
ES

IDI
O

CIR

DANCING OAKS CT

MY
ST

IC
MO

UN
TA

IN
LN

YTURRIA DR

RAVENHILL CIR

LACY RIDGE DR

RE
MU

DA
CT

TW
IN

 R
ID

GE
 D

RI
VESILVER SPUR DRIVE

DANCING OAKS DR

TE
N 

BI
TS

 D
R

ES
CA

LE
RA

 D
R

0 180 36090 Feet For informational purposes only. Boundaries are approximate and not legally binding.

Proposed Cameron Hills II

Path: E:\City of Belton Projects Folders\Maps and Data\Zoning\Zoning Cases 2016\P Cases\P-16-18\P-16-18.mxd    -    Date: 5/6/2016

´
Legend

P-16-18

Final Plat
Cameron Hills II
Acres: 19.393

CAMERON FAMILY -
REVOCABLE TRUST
PROPERTY OWNER:

PROPOSED PLAT:

 P-16-18  Cameron Hil ls  I I P-16-18  Cameron Hil ls  I I



1 
 

Minutes of the meeting of the 
Planning and Zoning Commission (P&ZC) 

City of Belton 
333 Water Street 

Tuesday, May 17, 2016 
 

The Planning and Zoning Commission met at 5:30 P.M. in the Wright Room at the Harris Community 
Center. The following members were present: Chair John Holmes, Ben Pamplin, Joel Berryman, 
Eloise Lundgren, Mat Naegele, Brett Baggerly and Frank Minosky. The following staff members were 
present: Director of Planning, Erin Smith and Planning Clerk, Laura Livingston. Commission members 
Rae Schmuck and Jason Morgan were absent.  
 
6. P-16-17     Considers a preliminary/final plat for Cameron Hills II, a 19.393 acre tract of 

land, located on the north side of Sparta Road, west of Lake to Lake Road right-of-way and 
west and south of Dawson Ranch, Phases 5 and 6.  
 
Ms. Smith presented the staff report. 
 
With no discussion, Mr. Minosky made the motion to approve the item P-16-17 a final plat 
Cameron Hills II, a 19.393 acre tract of land, located on the north side of Sparta Road, west of 
Lake to Lake Road right-of-way and west and south of Dawson Ranch, Phases 5 and 6. Mr. 
Naegele seconded the motion, which was approved unanimously 7 ayes, 0 nays.  
 
With no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 6:02 P.M. 

 

 
                  Chair, Planning and Zoning Commission 

 



City Council Agenda Item 
June 14, 2016 

Page 1 of 2   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 

 
 
Date:  June 14, 2016  

        Request: FIG 
        Address: 302 East Central Avenue 
 
Agenda Item #9 
     
Consider authorizing a Façade Improvement Grant to Liberty Church of Bell County, 302 East 
Central Avenue.  
 
Originating Department 
 
Planning – Erin Smith, Director of Planning 
 
Summary Information 
 
Liberty Church of Bell County has submitted a Façade Improvement Grant (FIG) application to 
complete exterior repairs and renovations on the primary façade facing East Central Avenue 
and the northern façade facing the alley at 302 East Central Avenue. 
 
The proposal involves items included in the attached summary proposal from Rafael Alejandro: 
 
Primary Façade (facing Central Avenue): 

• Install 3 metal awnings;  
• Replace the existing glass doors and windows; 
• Install Liberty Church wall sign; 
• Lime wash the existing brick façade; and 
• Install two sconces and 5 gooseneck lights. 

 
Rear Façade (facing rear alley):  

• Paint the existing stucco; 
• Replace the siding around the door with hardi board; 
• Install a metal awning above the door; and 
• Install two sconces.  

  
The applicant is proposing to restore the primary façade facing East Central Avenue and the 
rear façade facing the alley. The applicant is proposing to replace the existing windows and 
doors on the primary façade with new bronze windows. A new Liberty Church wall sign will be 
installed on the primary façade with a total of five gooseneck lights installed above the sign.  
There will also be two sconce lights installed on both sides of the doorway. The applicant would 
also like to lime wash the existing brick on the primary façade to achieve a contemporary 



City Council Agenda Item 
June 14, 2016 

Page 2 of 2   
 

design.  Once the lime-washing is complete, the applicant will install three AP metal panel 
awnings with a white baked-on color. The awning support structure will be constructed with 
wood materials. 
 
The existing rear wall is constructed with stucco, and the applicant would like to paint it neutral white.  
There is existing siding around the rear door that the applicant is proposing to replace with hardi board 
and paint neutral white. The applicant would also like to install an AP metal panel awning with a white 
baked-on color over the existing rear entry doorway. There will also be two sconce lights installed on 
both sides of the rear entry doorway. 
 
Work is scheduled to occur upon approval of the grant request. This would represent another excellent 
example of the value of targeted public investment in Downtown Belton funded by the Tax Increment 
Reinvestment Zone (TIRZ). Other examples of TIRZ funded façade improvement grants in the vicinity 
include Salon and Spa at Greenbriar, Fine Line Design & Build, and Tirzah.    
 
Fiscal Impact 

 
Total projected cost on the application is $24,168 ($19,195 for primary façade and $4,973 for 
rear façade). The FIG application requests the maximum match amount of $12,084, which is 
consistent with application guidelines. 
 
Amount:   $12,084 
 
Budgeted:       Yes    No       
 
If not budgeted:     Budget Transfer     Contingency     Amendment Needed     Capital 
Project Funds 
 
Funding Source(s):  Funding Source(s):  $110,000 was included in the TIRZ FY 2016 budget for 
FIG funding. To date, grants for 115 North East Street, 112 North Main Street, 209 East Central 
Avenue (primary façade), and 221 East Central Avenue have been approved in FY 2016. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Recommend this FIG application be approved in the amount of $12,084. 
 
Attachments 
 
FIG Application, including current photographs of 302 East Central Avenue 
Location Map 
Proposal – Rafael Alejandro 
Proposed Awnings 
Proposed Paint Color 
Proposed Lime Wash 

































City Council Agenda Item 
June 14, 2016 

Page 1 of 3   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 

 
 
Date:  June 14, 2016  
Case No.: H-16-12 

        Request: FIG 
        Address: 209 East Central Avenue 
 
Agenda Item #10 
     
Consider authorizing a Façade Improvement Grant to Cedon Realty, 209 East Central Avenue.  
 
Originating Department 
 
Planning – Erin Smith, Director of Planning/Historic Preservation Officer 
 
Historic District     
 
Downtown Belton Commercial Historic District 
 
Background 
 
This present building at 209 East Central Avenue was built in 1930 and is located in the 
Downtown Belton Commercial Historic District. The Downtown Belton Commercial Historic 
District contains an excellent range of buildings constructed between 1870 and 1959. Forty-six 
percent of the buildings in this district are Contributing historic structures. Most of the buildings 
that are Non-Contributing have been classified that way due to inappropriate alterations that 
have covered or removed historic building materials and details. The 2012 City of Belton Historic 
Resources Survey states that the architectural style associated with this structure is two-part 
commercial block.  
 
Summary Information 
 
Don Ringler has submitted a Façade Improvement Grant (FIG) application to complete exterior 
repairs and renovations on the rear exterior façade of the building located at 209 East Central 
Avenue. 
 
The proposal involves items included in the attached summary proposal from CRW 
Construction: 
 

• Construct a limestone façade on the western wall; 
• Install cedar siding and trim on two framed walls; 
• Paint the exterior cedar walls and storage building; and 
• Install new electrical wiring and plugs.  



City Council Agenda Item 
June 14, 2016 

Page 2 of 3   
 

The applicant has submitted a request to revitalize the rear façade facing Water Street. The 
western wall outside the existing patio is in poor condition, and the applicant would like to install 
a limestone façade to enhance the building’s aesthetics. The applicant is proposing to install 
cedar siding 1”X8” cedar lap and gap siding on the two framed walls painted SW 6102 
Portabello to match the window trim color on the primary façade facing Central Avenue. The FIG 
application also includes a proposal to install new plugs and wiring for exterior lights and a cage 
wall fan.  
 
The applicant is proposing other exterior renovations that are not eligible for FIG funding, but did 
require HPC approval. At the June 9th meeting, the HPC recommended approval of the FIG 
request, and in addition, approved the other exterior changes. In addition to the FIG request, the 
applicant is proposing to enclose the rear porch with 2”X6” wooden fence pickets, similar to 
what the owner has done to the exterior stairs and second story balcony. The proposed overall 
height of the exterior porch roof ranges from 84” to 90,” and the fence pickets are proposed to 
extend 60” tall. The owner would like to install a metal U-panel roof with a baked-on light stone 
color on the patio ceiling. The air conditioner condenser is currently under the patio and the 
applicant would like to move the unit from underneath the patio to provide more space for the 
patio. The trash receptacle is currently placed outside along the rear façade, and the AC 
condenser is proposed to be moved from the porch to the exterior. Staff met with the applicant 
and recommended construction of a wooden enclosure in the rear yard to provide screening for 
the AC units and trash receptacle. The recommended wooden enclosure will provide screening 
for the AC units and trash receptacle, and enhance the overall aesthetics of this rear façade.   
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
Total projected cost on the application is $8,749. The FIG application requests the maximum 
match amount of $4,374, which is consistent with application guidelines. If determined 
appropriate, recommend approval. 
 
Amount:   $4,374 
 
Budgeted:       Yes    No       
 
If not budgeted:     Budget Transfer     Contingency     Amendment Needed     Capital 
Project Funds 
 
Funding Source(s):  $110,000 was included in the TIRZ FY 2016 budget for FIG funding, and 
funding is available. To date, grants for 115 North East Street, 112 North Main Street, 209 East 
Central Avenue (primary façade), and 221 East Central Avenue have been approved in FY 
2016.    
 
Recommendation 
 
Recommend this FIG application be approved in the amount of $4,374. 
 



City Council Agenda Item 
June 14, 2016 

Page 3 of 3   
 

Attachments 
 
FIG Application, including current photographs of 209 East Central Avenue 
Certificate of Appropriateness Application 
Location Map 
COA notice to owners 
Proposal – CRW Construction 
Proposed Elevations 

 
 



























City Council Agenda Item 
June 14, 2016 

Page 1 of 2   
 

 
Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
Agenda Item #11 
 
Consider a Resolution establishing a policy regarding annexation of land into the Belton city 
limits.  
 
Originating Department 
 
Erin Smith, Director of Planning 
 
Summary Information 
 
Texas Municipal League (TML) hosted the 2016 Texas Municipal League Annexation 
Conference on May 12-13 this year. At this two-day conference, legal experts, urban planners, 
and city leaders shared insight, knowledge, and practices that can help cities manage growth, 
expand services, and improve the quality of life for citizens. At this conference, TML 
recommended that each city adopt an annexation policy prior to beginning annexations. 
Adoption of an annexation policy is not a legal requirement, but from a policy perspective it is 
important to have a clear purpose for annexation. The annexation policy will provide background 
on issues, objectives, and policies that will be considered when determining areas to annex into 
the Belton city limits.  
 
The proposed annexation policy for the City of Belton includes the following components: 
 

• Purpose and Intent 
• Annexation Authority 
• History 
• Strategies 
• Policy Statements 

 
The Strategies section demonstrates how the annexation process can be administered as a 
positive tool for guiding development in a city’s ETJ. The strategies in the proposed 
annexation policy include: Promote Economic Development; Facilitate Long Range 
Planning; Protect Future Development; and Foster Intergovernmental Cooperation. 
 
The Policy Statements comprise the City of Belton Annexation Policy to include evaluation 
of areas for annexation based on existing or planned level of development; service delivery 
needs; need to protect public health, safety, and welfare; intergovernmental regulations; 
fiscal considerations, and considerations for the issuance of non-annexation agreements.  
 
The proposed annexation policy will set the stage for Council analysis and decision-making to 
determine if annexation is the right choice for the City and affected property owners.  



City Council Agenda Item 
June 14, 2016 

Page 2 of 2   
 

Fiscal Impact 
 
N/A 
   
Recommendation 
 
Recommend approval of the Resolution establishing a policy regarding annexation of land 
into the Belton city limits.  
 
Attachments 
 
Annexation Policy 
Resolution 



City of Belton, Texas 

Annexation Policy 
Adopted June 2016 

I. PURPOSE AND INTENT 

The purpose of this Annexation Policy is to provide the guidance and rationale for the 
consideration of areas within the City of Belton extraterritorial jurisdiction (ETJ) for 
annexation. The intent of the Annexation Policy is to implement the Comprehensive 
Plan by providing City Council with specific, objective, and prescriptive guidance for 
making decisions about annexation and other issues within Belton's extraterritorial 
jurisdiction (ETJ). 

II. ANNEXATION AUTHORITY 

The City of Belton has the authority to annex areas within its extraterritorial 
jurisdiction (ETJ) that are contiguous to the City limits, and not already part of an 
agreement with another city. The extraterritorial jurisdiction (ETJ) is a legally 
designated area of land located a specific distance beyond a city's corporate 
boundaries that a city has authority to annex. State statute defines the size of the ETJ 
boundaries according to a city's population. The statute provides a one-mile ETJ for 
cities 5,000 to 24,999 inhabitants. Belton, with a population of 18,216 (per 2010 U.S. 
Census), has an one-mile ETJ. 

The State of Texas requires all cities to adopt an Annexation Plan on or before 
December 31 , 1999 that specifically identifies major annexations that are proposed 
for 2002 and beyond. The City Council adopted the Annexation Plan by resolution in 
1999 (Exhibit A), and established all future annexations in the ETJ would comply 
with allowed exceptions, making us exempt from a three year plan. Areas located 
within the Belton ETJ are exempt from the annexation plan requirements because the 
Plan indicates no future annexation will contain more than 100 residentially 
developed tracts. 

The Annexation Policy applies to any annexation Belton may consider. Belton should 
consider Full Purpose annexation in a manner that is consistent with the Annexation 
Policies contained in this document. Full Purpose annexation requires the City to 
provide City services in accordance with a Municipal Service Plan. Belton should 
also consider Voluntary annexation, upon request from property owners, when the 
request is consistent with this Annexation Policy. 

1 



III. IDSTORY 

The City of Belton was established as a city in 1850. The map below contains City of 
Belton annexation history dating from the 1960's to current (Exhibit B). The current 
City limits contain 20.06 square miles. 

IV. STRATEGIES 

Belton can demonstrate how the annexation process can be administered as a positive 
tool for guiding development in its ETJ and implementing its Comprehensive Plan. 
The strategies listed below should help the City achieve its strategic goal of 
promoting orderly and sustainable growth. 

A. PROMOTE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

Belton should use annexation, where appropriate, as a tool to facilitate public
private partnerships intended to stimulate local and regional economic growth and 
implement sound capital improvement programming. 

1. The City should use its ETJ as a planning resource by anticipating candidate 
areas for annexation. Such areas would primarily consist of raw land, be 
accessible to public utilities and services provided by Belton. 

2. Prior to annexation, the City should coordinate with the property owners in 
developing a service plan. 

B. FACILITATE LONG RANGE PLANNING 

Belton should use annexation to manage development on the fringe of the City in 
accordance with the Comprehensive Plan. 

1. As unincorporated areas become more densely developed, the Comprehensive 
Plan should identify additional growth centers in the ETJ which should be 
considered for annexation. 

2. The Comprehensive Plan should address linkages to future growth centers in 
the ETJ. Consideration should be given to existing and planned thoroughfares 
and their impact on new development patterns as they extend into the ETJ. 

3. Annexation provides for the more efficient provision of public services and 
infrastructure necessary to develop land. 

2 



C. PROTECT FUTURE DEVELOPMENT 

Belton should use annexation as a means of extending the City's land use 
standards and building codes to protect future development from inadequate 
design and construction that may proliferate in unincorporated areas. 

1. Planning, zoning, building inspections, code compliance, and other 
enforcement jurisdictions of the City of Belton are extended to annexed 
territories on the effective date of the annexation ordinance. 

2. Through subsequent application of City zoning standards, annexation prevents 
the establishment of incompatible development patterns, while protecting 
existing and future land uses. Annexation, therefore, can be used as a growth 
management tool by promoting orderly development patterns which serve to 
maintain and possibly enhance property values. 

3. As part of any annexation, the Planning Department should provide a copy of 
the Comprehensive Plan to affected property owners. 

D. FOSTER INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATION 

Belton should use annexation as an approach for alleviating jurisdictional 
conflicts with abutting municipal and county governments, and for coordinating 
service delivery arrangements with emergency response providers. 

Belton should consider boundary adjustments with adjacent municipalities where 
an exchange of ETJ could occur between the cities in the mutual interest of both 
cities and the citizens served by each jurisdiction. The requesting municipality 
should have adequate land use standards to maintain development standards 
equivalent to those of the City of Belton. 

V. POLICY STATEMENTS 

The following policy statements comprise the City of Belton Annexation Policy. Both 
City-initiated and Property Owner-initiated annexations are subject to these policy 
statements. 

A. EVALUATION OF AREAS FOR ANNEXATION BASED ON EXISTING OR 
PLANNED LEVEL OF DEVELOPMENT 

The City of Belton should consider annexation of: 

1. Undeveloped areas. 
2. Areas for which dense development activity is anticipated. 
3. Areas planned or designated in the Comprehensive Plan as Mixed Use or 

Regional Growth Centers. 

3 



4. Areas that have become developed. 

B. EVALUATION OF AREAS FOR ANNEXATION BASED ON SERVICE 
DELIVERY NEEDS 

The City of Belton should consider annexation to provide municipal services to: 

1. Residential, commercial and industrial land uses that would benefit from a 
level of service anticipated for a city rather than an unincorporated area. 

2. Territories that do not adversely impact services to areas already within the 
City limits. 

3. Territories that establish contiguity required for strategic expansion of the City 
and its services. 

C. EVALUATION OF AREAS FOR ANNEXATION BASED ON NEED TO 
PROTECT PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY, AND WELFARE 

The City of Belton should consider annexation to: 

1. Provide zoning, land use, building codes, and other municipal development 
standards to promote and maintain safe living and working conditions and 
sustainable development. 

2. Extend municipal standards before development occurs, on undeveloped land, 
where growth is anticipated. 

3. Areas that, without such standards, could have an adverse impact on adjacent 
areas within the City. 

4. Areas where unregulated development could have an adverse environmental 
impact. 

5. Areas where unregulated development could have an adverse impact on 
Military missions/operations. 

D. EVALUATION OF AREAS FOR ANNEXATION BASED ON 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS 

The City of Belton should: 

1. Protect its ability to expand its City limits. 

2. Consider annexation to preclude the creation of other competing political 
jurisdictions. 

4 



3. Consider the impact on the City's ability to expand in the future, and potential 
economic competition, when evaluating requests for incorporations of new 
cities or expansion of existing cities within Belton' s ETJ. 

4. Consider the impact on the City-owned utilities when evaluating requests for 
Utility Districts or other Special Districts in the ETJ. 

5. Seek to ensure that Special Districts in the ETJ do not establish regulations 
that would be contrary to the best interests of the City. 

6. Consider the following factors prior to releasing any portion of its corporate 
limits or ETJ to another jurisdiction, or accepting territory from another 
jurisdiction: 

a. Adequate land use standards are in place in the other municipality (as 
determined by the City) to protect the subject property and surrounding 
area; 

b. The existence of clear and logical planning boundaries are in place that 
define the current or proposed City limits and ETJ; 

c. Significant negative fiscal impacts on the City's budget will not result if an 
area is released or accepted; 

d. The need for City protection of environmental or other resources has been 
addressed; 

e. The long-term effects of cumulative ETJ releases to other jurisdictions 
have been reviewed. 

E. EVALUATION OF AREAS FOR ANNEXATION BASED ON FISCAL 
CONSIDERATIONS 

The City of Belton should consider: 

1. Annexation to ensure that areas benefitting from proximity to a urban City are 
contributing revenue to offset the cost of providing services within an urban 
environment. 

2. Opportunities for agreements with other municipalities or regional/area 
service providers to assist with provision of services. 

3. Fiscal impact to extend police, frre, street maintenance, city code enforcement, 
building inspection. 

4. Transportation impacts on major roads - IH 35, IH 14/US 190, FM 93, SH 
439, TX 317, FM 436, Lake to Lake Road, Loop 121 - on Regional 
Thoroughfare Plans and the City' s Thoroughfare Plan. 

5 



F. CONSIDERATIONS FOR THE ISSUANCE OF NON-ANNEXATION 
AGREEMENTS 

Non-Annexation Agreements: 

1. Shall be offered to property owners, within a proposed Municipal Annexation 
Plan, that have Agricultural Exemptions, in accordance with state law. 

2. Issued for Special Districts shall include a statement that the property owner 
consents to future voluntary annexation and a negotiated annexation schedule 
shall be included. 

3. Should consider services in lieu of annexation to extend City regulations and 
requirements in anticipation of annexation at some point in the future. 

4. Should consider revenue sharing options in exchange for the agreement, in 
areas that have taxing authority. 

5. Shall be reviewed by the Planning Department for adherence to these policies. 

6 



Exhibit "A" 

RE OLUTIO 0. 99-20 

RE OL TIO ADOPT G NNE TIO PL FOR THE ITY OF BELTOr · AND 
PROVIDING r EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHERE the 76th Texa Legi lature 1999, adopted .B. 9 e ten i ely amending the Te as 
Annexation Act, hapter 43 Local Go ernment ode; and 

WHERE ection l 7(b of .B. 9, 76th Texas Legislature, 1999, requires that each city 
adopt an annexation plan on orb for December 31, 1999, that includ s territory the city plan to annex 
three years from the date the territory is placed in the plan in accordance with S ction 43.052 Local 
Government ode· and 

WHEREAS, there are a number of exception that authorize anne ation of territory without the 
territory having been placed in an annexation plan and for the fore eeabl future annexations of territory 
contemplated by the city fit into one of these exceptions. 

OW THEREFORE B IT RE OLVED BY THE ITY 0 
BELTO THAT: 

SECTIO 1. 

IL OF THE ITY OF 

For the purpose of ection l 7(b) of S.B. 9, adopted by the 76th Te ·as Legislature, 1999, and 
ection 43.052 Local Government Code, the ity Council adopts the following annexation plan: 

ITYOFBELTO 
ANNEXA TIO PLAN 

The City ounci l ha r viewed the future expan ion needs of the ity and the pro pects of 
development \l ithin the City 's e traterritoria l juri diction. After studying the effects of amendments to 
the Texas Anne ation Act ena ted by .B. 89, 76th Te as Legislature, 1999 the City Council has 
determined that at thi time the ity does not intend to annex any territory that in order to be anne ed 
required to b in an annexation plan . 

The City Council re erve the right to amend thi annexation plan in the future to add territory for 
annexation should circumstance hange. 

SECTIO 2. 

This re olution shall take effect from and after its pa age, and it i accordingly so resolved. 

Pa ed thi the 23rd day of ovember, 1999 by the City Coun ii of Belton, Texa . 

ATTEST: 

b~ 
Connie Torre , City Clerk 



Annexatlon_Hlstory CJ _ '"
~._--. El'rldlw_o... 

CJ Wnl79-21Cll't:w•n CJ ..,.... 11~ 
CJ CJ -1-.1·~~ 

•1~1 ... .-- --

CJ -,·~ 

CJ -'~ 

Exhibit "B" 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-22-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS, ADOPTING 
AN ANNEXATION POLICY TO GUIDE THE PLANNING AND PROCEDURES FOR THE 
ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY INTO THE CITY LIMITS AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETING CLAUSE. 
 
 
 WHEREAS, this resolution is established to provide guidance and rationale for the 
consideration of areas within the City of Belton extraterritorial jurisdiction (ETJ) for 
annexation; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Belton, Texas, is committed to preserving and enhancing the 
quality of life and unique character of Belton, preserving the rich heritage and natural 
resources, promoting well-planned development, and protecting its citizens, the environment 
and all other assets; and  

 
WHEREAS, Belton’s land uses support economic, cultural and social activities for all 

residents, businesses and organizations; and 
 

WHEREAS, Belton’s prehistoric, historic and cultural resources need to be preserved, 
protected and promoted; and 
 

WHEREAS, the positive, identifiable image of Belton needs to be enhanced and 
protected; and 
 

WHEREAS, Belton’s utility systems must continue to promote the economic health of 
the community; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: The City Council declares that the statements contained in the preamble of this 
resolution are true and correct, and are adopted as finding of fact, in accordance with the 
resolution establishing the annexation policy, attached as Exhibit A, to guide the planning and 
procedures for the annexation of territory into the City limits. 
 
 Part 2:  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 



 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 14th day of June, 2016. 
 

 
THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS 

 
 

____________________________ 
Marion Grayson, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:                                                       
 
 
____________________________ 
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk  
  



City Council Agenda Item 
June 14, 2016 

Page 1 of 2   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
Agenda Item #12 
 
Consider a resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute an Advance Funding 
Agreement with the Texas Department of Transportation for Phase II of the Chisholm 
Trail Hike and Bike Facility funded through the Transportation Alternative Program, and 
authorize a local funding share. 
 
Originating Department 
 
Administration – Aaron Harris, Grants/Special Projects Coordinator 
 
Summary Information 
 
As the Council will recall, the Texas Department of Transportation allocated $2,136,492 
in federal funding to Belton for this project at its December 17, 2015, Commission 
meeting. A resolution is required prior to execution of the agreement with TxDOT. This 
project will extend the City’s hike and bike network, and provide pedestrians a vital link 
north and south, by creating a safe railroad underpass that connects University Drive at 
Crusader Way with Sparta Road at Commerce Street.  
 
The next step will be to procure an engineering firm to initiate the design, environmental, 
and right-of-way processes. The planning process is estimated to be 24 months with the 
construction beginning in approximately the summer of 2018.    
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
For Phase II of the Chisholm Trail Hike and Bike Facility, the Transportation Alternative 
Program will provide $2,136,492 in federal funds, and the City’s match is $534,123. In 
May 2015, the original City match was increased from $333,000 to $534,123 due to 
BNSF’s position indicating it would not permit an “at-grade” crossing but would support 
an “underpass” crossing. This revision increased the total project cost by $1,185,615.  
 
City Match Summary Estimate 
 

• In-Kind Contribution (Engineering)    $ 405,000 

• Direct Construction Cost Match     $   70,020 

• TxDOT Administrative Cost Match (20%)   $   59,103 
        Total  $ 534,123* 

*A generous private contribution of $100,000 has been pledged to this project and will be 
applied to off-set the City Match.   



City Council Agenda Item 
June 14, 2016 

Page 2 of 2   
 

No action on a budget amendment is needed at this time. City staff continues to work 
with community partners to secure pledges to assist with the funding of this project. An 
amendment to dedicate the City’s portion of the actual local match will be brought to 
Council later in the fiscal year.  
 
Recommendation 
 
Recommend authorizing the City Manager to execute the Advance Funding Agreement 
with Texas Department of Transportation for Phase II of the Chisholm Trail Hike and Bike 
Facility – funded through the Transportation Alternative Program - and authorizing local 
funding share. 
 
Attachments 
Advance Funding Agreement 
Resolution 
Project Location Map 



                                                                  CSJ: 0909-36-157  
                                                                        District #: Waco (09) 
                                                                            Code Chart 64#: 03700 
                  Project: Chisholm Trail Corridor Hike and Bike Facility Phase II 
                                                                                                       CFDA Title: Highway Planning and Construction 
                                                                           FHWA CFDA #: 20.205 

                 Not Research and Development 
 

AFA-LPAFA_TAP Page 1 of 13 Revised 2016-03-23 

STATE OF TEXAS § 

COUNTY OF TRAVIS § 
LOCAL PROJECT ADVANCE FUNDING AGREEMENT 

FOR A TRANSPORTATION ALTERNATIVES PROGRAM PROJECT 
State-Selected Off-System 

This Local Project Advance Funding Agreement (“LPAFA”) is made between the State of Texas (“State”), acting through 
the Texas Department of Transportation, and City  of Belton (“Local Government”), acting through its duly authorized 
officials. 

BACKGROUND 

Local Government and State have adopted a Master Agreement that states the general terms and conditions for 
transportation projects developed through this LPAFA. 

Local Government prepared and submitted to State or Metropolitan Planning Organization (“MPO”) a nomination form 
for consideration under the Transportation Alternatives Program (“TAP”) for the project, which is briefly described as 
Chisholm Trail Corridor Hike and Bike Facility Phase II (“Project”). 

Federal law establishes federally funded programs for transportation improvements to implement its public purposes. 

Federal law, 23 USC § 134 and 49 USC § 5303, requires that State and MPOs develop transportation plans and programs 
for urbanized areas of Texas. 

Tex. Transp. Code §§ 201.103 and 222.052 establish that State shall design, construct, and operate a system of highways 
in cooperation with local governments. 

Federal and state laws require local governments to meet certain contract standards relating to the management and 
administration of State and federal funds. 

The Texas Transportation Commission (“Commission”) passed Minute Order Number 114446 (“MO”) dated December 
17, 2015 awarding funding for projects in the 2015 TAP Program Call of the State, including Project. 

The rules and procedures for TAP are established in 23 USC § 213, and 43 Tex. Admin. Code Subchapter 11.F.  

The governing body of Local Government has approved entering into this Agreement by resolution or ordinance dated 
June 14, 2016, which is attached to and made a part of this Agreement as Attachment A. 

Therefore, State and Local Government agree as follows: 

 
  



                                                                  CSJ: 0909-36-157  
                                                                        District #: Waco (09) 
                                                                            Code Chart 64#: 03700 
                  Project: Chisholm Trail Corridor Hike and Bike Facility Phase II 
                                                                                                       CFDA Title: Highway Planning and Construction 
                                                                           FHWA CFDA #: 20.205 

                 Not Research and Development 
 

AFA-LPAFA_TAP Page 2 of 13 Revised 2016-03-23 

AGREEMENT 

1. Period of Agreement and Performance 

1.1. Period of Agreement. The period of this LPAFA is as stated in the Master Agreement, without exception. 

1.2. Period of Performance. 

1. The Performance Period for each phase of work begins on the date specified in the 
Federal Project Authorization Agreement (“FPAA”) for that phase of work. Local 
Government may not begin work until issued the State Letter of Authority (“SLOA”) for 
that phase of work. 

2. The Performance Period for each phase of work ends on the date specified in the FPAA 
for that phase of work. 

2. Termination of the Agreement 

2.1. This Agreement may be terminated by any of the following conditions: 

a. By mutual written consent and agreement of all parties; 

b. By any party with 90 days written notice; or 

c. By either party, upon the failure of the other party to fulfill the obligations as set forth in this 
Agreement. Any cost incurred due to such breach of contract shall be paid by the breaching 
party. 

2.2. If the potential termination of this Agreement is due to the failure of Local Government to fulfill its 
contractual obligations, State will notify Local Government that possible breach of contract has occurred. 
Local Government should make every effort to remedy the breach within a period mutually agreed upon 
by both parties. 

2.3. If Local Government withdraws from Project after this Agreement is executed, Local Government shall be 
responsible for all direct and indirect Project costs as identified by the State’s cost accounting system and 
with 2 CFR Part 200 recapture requirements. 

2.4. A project may be eliminated from the program as outlined below. If Project is eliminated for any of these 
reasons, this Agreement will be appropriately terminated. A project may be eliminated from the 
program, and this Agreement terminated, if: 

a. Local Government fails to satisfy any requirements of the program rules cited in 
43 Tex. Admin. Code Subchapter 11.F. 

b. The implementation of Project would involve significant deviation from the activities proposed 
in the nomination form and approved by the Texas Transportation Commission or MPO in 
consultation with State. 

c. Local Government withdraws from participation in Project. 

d. State determines that federal funding may be lost due to Project not being implemented and 
completed. 



                                                                  CSJ: 0909-36-157  
                                                                        District #: Waco (09) 
                                                                            Code Chart 64#: 03700 
                  Project: Chisholm Trail Corridor Hike and Bike Facility Phase II 
                                                                                                       CFDA Title: Highway Planning and Construction 
                                                                           FHWA CFDA #: 20.205 

                 Not Research and Development 
 

AFA-LPAFA_TAP Page 3 of 13 Revised 2016-03-23 

e. Funds are not appropriated, in which case this Agreement shall be terminated immediately with 
no liability to either party. Payment under this Agreement beyond the current fiscal biennium is 
subject to availability of appropriated funds. 

f. The associated FPAA is not issued by the end of the third federal fiscal year following the federal 
fiscal year for which the funds are authorized. Federal fiscal years run October 1 through 
September 30. 

g. Local Government fails to attend progress meetings at least twice yearly, as scheduled by State. 

2.5. State, at its sole discretion, may terminate this Agreement if State does not receive project invoice within 
270 days of FPAA. 

3. Amendments 

Amendments to this LPAFA shall be made as described in the Master Agreement, without exception. 

4. Scope of Work, Use of Project, and Project Location 

4.1. The scope of work for Project (located as shown in Attachment B, Project Location Map) consists of: 
constructing 6-foot-wide ADA compliant sidewalks adjacent to University Boulevard using 6” reinforced 
concrete between Martin Luther King Jr. Boulevard and BHSF Railroad. University Boulevard sidewalks 
will transition to a shared use path at the BNSF railroad, where a minimum 14-foot-wide pedestrian 
underpass with a minimum 10’ clearance will be constructed. A 10-foot-wide shared use path using 6 
inch reinforced concrete will be constructed adjacent to Commerce Drive beginning at the BNSF railroad 
pedestrian underpass and traveling north to Sparta Road. In addition to standard construction activities, 
this project includes ADA compliant ramps, crosswalks, pavement markings, signage, pedestrian lighting, 
incidental utility improvements and a pedestrian bridge (14’ wide X 20’ in length) as outlined in the City’s 
2015 TAP nomination package. These improvements will provide safer accommodations for pedestrians 
and bicyclists traveling in the vicinity of the University of Mary-Hardin Baylor and Belton’s ISD campus. 

4.2. Any project changes proposed must be submitted in writing by Local Government to State. Changes may 
also require an amendment to this Agreement and the approval of the FHWA, State, MPO, or the 
Commission. Any changes undertaken without written approval and amendment of this Agreement may 
jeopardize not only the federal funding for the changes, but the federal funding of the entire Project. 

5. Right of Way and Real Property Acquisition 

5.1. Right of way and real property acquisition shall be the responsibility of Local Government. Title to right of 
way and other related real property must be acceptable to State before funds may be expended for the 
improvement of the right of way or real property. If Local Government is the owner of any part of Project 
site under this Agreement, Local Government shall permit State or its authorized representative access to 
occupy the site to perform all activities required to execute the work. 

5.2. Local Government will comply with and assume the costs for compliance with all the requirements of 
Title II and Title III of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 
1970, 42 USC § 4601 et seq., including those provisions relating to incidental expenses incurred by the 
property owners in conveying the real property to Local Government, and benefits applicable to the 
relocation of any displaced person as defined in 49 CFR § 24.2(g). Documentation to support such 
compliance must be maintained and made available to State and its representatives for review and 
inspection.  



                                                                  CSJ: 0909-36-157  
                                                                        District #: Waco (09) 
                                                                            Code Chart 64#: 03700 
                  Project: Chisholm Trail Corridor Hike and Bike Facility Phase II 
                                                                                                       CFDA Title: Highway Planning and Construction 
                                                                           FHWA CFDA #: 20.205 

                 Not Research and Development 
 

AFA-LPAFA_TAP Page 4 of 13 Revised 2016-03-23 

5.3. Local Government shall assume all costs and perform all work necessary to obtain needed evidence of 
title or right of use to the real property required for development of Project. Evidence of title or right of 
use shall be acquired in the name of (1) State, if the real property is to be made part of the State Highway 
System, and (2) Local Government, otherwise. The evidence of title or rights shall be acceptable to State, 
and be free and clear of all encroachments. Local Government shall secure and provide easements and 
any needed rights of entry over any other land needed to develop Project according to the approved 
Project plans. Local Government shall be responsible for securing any additional real property required 
for completion of Project. 

5.4. Local Government shall prepare real property maps, property descriptions, and other data as needed to 
properly describe the real property and submit them to State for approval prior to Local Government 
acquiring the real property. Tracings of the maps shall be retained by Local Government for a permanent 
record. 

5.5. Local Government shall determine property values for each real property parcel to be purchased with 
federal funds using methods acceptable to State and shall submit to State a tabulation of the values so 
determined, signed by the appropriate Local Government representative. The tabulations must list the 
parcel numbers, ownership, acreage, and recommended compensation. The tabulation must be 
accompanied by an explanation to support the estimated values, together with a copy of the 
documentation and reports used in calculating each parcel’s value. Expenses incurred by Local 
Government in performing this work may be eligible for reimbursement after Local Government has 
received written authorization by State to proceed with determination of real property values. State will 
review the data submitted and will base its reimbursement for parcel acquisitions on these in 
determining the fair market values. 

5.6. For State-selected projects, Local Government shall not use eminent domain or condemnation to acquire 
real property for this TAP Project. 

5.7. Reimbursement for real property costs will be made to Local Government for real property purchased in 
an amount not to exceed 80 percent of the cost of the real property purchased in accordance with the 
terms and provisions of this Agreement. Reimbursement will be in an amount not to exceed 80 percent 
of State’s predetermined fair market value of each parcel, or the net cost thereof, whichever is less. In 
addition, reimbursement will be made to Local Government for necessary payments to appraisers for 
expenses incurred in order to assure good title. 

5.8. Local Government and current property owner are responsible for any costs associated with the 
relocation of displaced persons and personal property as well as incidental expenses incurred in acquiring 
property to implement Project. State will not pay any of these costs. 

5.9. If Project requires the use of real property to which Local Government will not hold title, a separate 
agreement between the owners of the real property and Local Government must be executed prior to 
execution of this Agreement. The separate agreement between Local Government and the current 
property owner must establish that Project will be dedicated for public use for a period of time not less 
than ten years after project completion and commensurate with the federal investment as outlined in 
43 Tex. Admin. Code § 11.317. The separate agreement must define the responsibilities of the parties as 
to the use of the real property and operation and maintenance of Project after completion. The separate 
agreement must be approved by State prior to its execution and a copy of the executed separate 
agreement shall be provided to State. 



                                                                  CSJ: 0909-36-157  
                                                                        District #: Waco (09) 
                                                                            Code Chart 64#: 03700 
                  Project: Chisholm Trail Corridor Hike and Bike Facility Phase II 
                                                                                                       CFDA Title: Highway Planning and Construction 
                                                                           FHWA CFDA #: 20.205 

                 Not Research and Development 
 

AFA-LPAFA_TAP Page 5 of 13 Revised 2016-03-23 

5.10. Local Government shall execute individually or produce a legal document as necessary to provide for 
Project’s continued use from the date of completion, and agrees to cause the same to be recorded in the 
land records of the appropriate jurisdiction. 

5.11. Local governments receiving federal funds must comply with 23 CFR Part 710 and 49 CFR Part 24, and 
with the procedures provided in Chapter 6 of the State’s Local Government Project Policy Manual. Local 
Government agrees to monitor Project to ensure: (1) continued use of the property for approved 
activities, and (2) the repayment of the Federal funds, as appropriate. Local Government agrees to the 
review of their Project accounts and site visits by State during the development of Project at any time. 
Upon Project completion, State will continue to perform periodic visits to confirm Project’s continued use 
and upkeep. 

5.12. Before the advertisement for bids, Local Government shall provide a certification to State that all real 
property has been acquired. 

6. Utilities 

Local Government shall be responsible for the adjustment, removal, or relocation of utility facilities in 
accordance with applicable State laws, regulations, rules, policies, and procedures, including any cost to State of 
a delay resulting from Local Government’s failure to ensure that utility facilities are adjusted, removed, or 
relocated before the scheduled beginning of construction. Unless specified in (1) the nomination form approved 
by State or MPO in consultation with State and (2) this agreement, Local Government will not be reimbursed 
with federal or state funds for the cost of required utility work. Local Government must obtain advance approval 
for any variance from established procedures. Before a construction contract is let, Local Government shall 
provide, at State’s request, a certification stating that Local Government has completed the adjustment of all 
utilities that must be adjusted before construction begins. Additional utility work may be required due to 
unknown conditions discovered during construction. These costs may be eligible for TAP participation if: (1) the 
activity is required to complete Project; (2) the cost is incidental to Project; and (3) TAP funding is available. Any 
change orders must be approved by State prior to incurring any cost for which reimbursement is sought. 

7. Environmental Assessment and Mitigation 

Development of Project must comply with the National Environmental Policy Act and the National Historic 
Preservation Act of 1966, which require environmental clearance of federal-aid projects. 

7.1. Local Government is responsible for the identification and assessment of any environmental problems 
associated with the development of Project. 

7.2. Local Government is responsible for the cost of any environmental problem’s mitigation and 
remediation. These costs will not be reimbursed or credited towards Local Government’s financial share 
of Project unless specified in the nomination form and approved by State or MPO in consultation with 
State. 

7.3. Local Government is responsible for providing any public meetings or public hearings required for 
development of the environmental assessment. 

7.4. Before the advertisement for bids, Local Government shall provide to State written documentation from 
the appropriate regulatory agency or agencies that all environmental clearances have been obtained. 

  



                                                                  CSJ: 0909-36-157  
                                                                        District #: Waco (09) 
                                                                            Code Chart 64#: 03700 
                  Project: Chisholm Trail Corridor Hike and Bike Facility Phase II 
                                                                                                       CFDA Title: Highway Planning and Construction 
                                                                           FHWA CFDA #: 20.205 

                 Not Research and Development 
 

AFA-LPAFA_TAP Page 6 of 13 Revised 2016-03-23 

8. Architectural and Engineering Services 

Architectural and engineering services for preliminary engineering will be provided by Local Government. In 
procuring professional services, the parties to this Agreement must comply with federal requirements cited in 
23 CFR Part 172 if Project is federally funded and Local Government will be seeking reimbursement for these 
services; and with Tex. Gov’t Code Subchapter 2254.A., in all cases. Professional services contracts for federally 
funded projects must conform to federal requirements. For State-selected projects, architectural and 
engineering services are not eligible for TAP reimbursement. 

8.1. The architectural contract documents shall be developed in accordance with the standards of the 
American Institute of Architects, the U.S. Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Historic Preservation 
Projects, Standards and Guidelines for Archeology and Historic Preservation, the National Register 
Bulletin Number 36: Guidelines for Evaluating and Registering Historical Archeological Sites and in 
consultation with the State Historic Preservation Officer, as applicable. The engineering plans shall be 
developed in accordance with State’s applicable Standard Specifications for Construction and 
Maintenance of Highways, Streets and Bridges and the two American Association of State Highway and 
Transportation Officials’ (“AASHTO”) publications, “A Policy on Geometric Design of Highways and 
Streets” and “Guide for the Development of Bicycle Facilities,” as applicable. All contract procurement 
procedures and documents must adhere to the applicable requirements established in the Standard 
Specifications for Construction and Maintenance of Highways, Streets and Bridges. The use of other 
systems of specifications shall be approved by State in writing in advance. 

8.2. When architectural and engineering services are provided by or through Local Government, Local 
Government shall submit any plans it has completed to State for review and approval. Local Government 
may also submit the plans to State for review any time prior to completion. Local Government shall make 
the necessary revisions determined by State. Local Government will not let the construction contract 
until all required plans have received State approval. 

8.3. When architectural and engineering services are provided by or through State, then the following applies: 

State is responsible for the delivery and performance of any required architectural or preliminary 
engineering work. Local Government may review and comment on the work as required to accomplish 
Project purposes. State will cooperate with Local Government in accomplishing these Project purposes 
to the degree permitted by state and federal law. 

9. Construction Responsibilities 

9.1. Local Government shall advertise for construction bids, issue bid proposals, receive and tabulate the bids, 
and award and administer the contract for construction of Project. Administration of the contract 
includes the responsibility for construction engineering and for issuance of any change orders, 
supplemental agreements, amendments, or additional work orders that may become necessary 
subsequent to the award of the construction contract. In order to ensure federal funding eligibility, 
projects must be authorized by State prior to advertising for construction. 

9.2. All contract letting and award procedures must be approved by State prior to letting and award of the 
construction contract, whether the construction contract is awarded by State or by Local Government. 

9.3. All contract change order review and approval procedures must be approved by State prior to start of 
construction. 



                                                                  CSJ: 0909-36-157  
                                                                        District #: Waco (09) 
                                                                            Code Chart 64#: 03700 
                  Project: Chisholm Trail Corridor Hike and Bike Facility Phase II 
                                                                                                       CFDA Title: Highway Planning and Construction 
                                                                           FHWA CFDA #: 20.205 

                 Not Research and Development 
 

AFA-LPAFA_TAP Page 7 of 13 Revised 2016-03-23 

9.4. Upon completion of Project, the party constructing Project will issue and sign a “Notification of 
Completion” acknowledging Project’s construction completion. 

9.5. For federally funded contracts, the parties to this Agreement will comply with federal construction 
requirements provided in 23 CFR Parts 633 and 635, and shall include the latest version of Form “FHWA-
1273” in the contract bidding documents. If force account work will be performed, a finding of cost 
effectiveness shall be made in compliance with 23 CFR Subpart 635.B. 

9.6. Any field changes, supplemental agreements, or revisions to the design plans that may occur after the 
construction contract is awarded will be mutually agreed to by State and Local Government prior to 
authorizing the contractor to perform the work. Prior to completion of Project, the party responsible for 
construction will notify the other party to this Agreement of the anticipated completion date. All parties 
will be afforded the opportunity to assist in the final review of the construction services performed by the 
contractor. 

10. Project Maintenance 

10.1. Upon completion of Project, Local Government will be responsible for maintaining the completed facility 
for public use. The property shall be maintained and operated for the purpose for which it was approved 
and funded for a period of time commensurate with the federal investment or State rules, whichever is 
greater. Should Local Government at any time after Project completion decide it can no longer maintain 
and operate Project for its intended purpose, Local Government shall consult with State and the FHWA as 
to the disposal or alternate uses, consistent with Project’s original intent. State may require Local 
Government to return the federal funds in accordance with 2 CFR Part 200 federal recapture 
requirements. Should Local Government consider conveying the property, State and FHWA must be 
notified prior to the sale, transfer, or disposal of any property that received federal funds. Written 
concurrence of approval for the transaction, detailing any required recapture, must be obtained from 
FHWA prior to the transaction. Advance notice from Local Government of their intended action must be 
submitted to State for an FHWA review a minimum of 90 days prior to any action being taken by Local 
Government. Local Government shall be held responsible for reimbursement of all federal funds used or 
a portion of those funds based on a pro-rata amount, considering the original percentage of federal funds 
provided and the time elapsed from Project completion date. This same percentage of reimbursement 
also applies to any amount of profit that may be derived from the conveyance of the property, as 
applicable. 

10.2. Any manufacturer warranties extended to Local Government as a result of Project shall remain in the 
name of Local Government. State shall not be responsible for honoring any warranties under this 
Agreement. 

10.3. Should Local Government derive any income from the development and operation of Project, a portion 
of the proceeds sufficient for the maintenance and upkeep of the property shall be set aside for future 
maintenance. A project income report shall be submitted to State on a quarterly basis. Monies set aside 
according to this provision shall be expended using accounting procedures and with the property 
management standards established in 2 CFR Part 200. 

10.4. Should any historic properties be included in or affected by this federally funded Project, the historic 
integrity of the property and any contributing features must continue to be preserved regardless of any 
approved changes that may occur throughout the life of Project. 

  



                                                                  CSJ: 0909-36-157  
                                                                        District #: Waco (09) 
                                                                            Code Chart 64#: 03700 
                  Project: Chisholm Trail Corridor Hike and Bike Facility Phase II 
                                                                                                       CFDA Title: Highway Planning and Construction 
                                                                           FHWA CFDA #: 20.205 

                 Not Research and Development 
 

AFA-LPAFA_TAP Page 8 of 13 Revised 2016-03-23 

11. Local Project Sources and Uses of Funds 

11.1. A Project Budget Estimate and Source of Funds is provided as Attachment C, showing the total estimated 
development cost of Project. This estimate shows the itemized cost of real property, utilities, 
environmental assessments, construction, and other construction related costs. To be eligible for 
reimbursement or as in-kind contribution, costs must have been included in the nomination form 
approved by the Texas Transportation Commission or MPO in consultation with State. State and the 
Federal Government will not reimburse Local Government for any work performed outside the 
Performance Period. After federal funds have been obligated, State will send to Local Government a copy 
of the formal documentation showing the obligation of funds including federal award information. Local 
Government is responsible for 100 percent of the cost of any work performed under its direction or 
control before the federal spending authority is formally obligated. 

11.2. If Local Government will perform any work under this Agreement for which reimbursement will be 
provided by or through State, Local Government must complete training in Local Government Procedures 
Qualification for the Texas Department of Transportation before federal spending authority is obligated. 
Training is complete when at least one individual who is working actively and directly on Project 
successfully completes and receives a certificate for the course. Local Government shall provide the 
certificate of qualification to State. The individual who receives the training certificate may be an 
employee of Local Government or an employee of a firm that has been contracted by Local Government 
to perform oversight of Project. State in its discretion may deny reimbursement if Local Government has 
not designated a qualified individual to oversee Project. 

11.3. The Project budget and source of funds estimate based on the budget provided in the nomination form is 
included as Attachment C. Attachment C shows the percentage and estimated dollar amounts to be 
contributed to Project by state and local sources, as well as the maximum amount in federal 
Transportation Alternative Program funds assigned by the Commission or MPO in consultation with State 
to Project. This Agreement may be amended from time to time as required to meet the funding 
commitments based on revisions to the Transportation Improvement Program, Federal Project 
Authorization and Agreement (“FPAA”), or other federal documents. 

11.4. Local Government will be responsible for all non-federal participation costs associated with Project, 
including any overruns in excess of Project’s estimated budget and any operating or maintenance 
expenses. 

11.5. State will be responsible for securing the federal share of funding required for the development and 
construction of Project, in an amount not to exceed 80 percent of the actual cost of the work up to the 
amount of funds approved for Project by the Texas Transportation Commission or MPO in consultation 
with State. Federal funds will be reimbursed on a cost basis. Project costs incurred prior to issuance of 
the SLOA are not eligible for reimbursement. 

11.6. Following execution of this Agreement, but prior to the performance of any plan review work by State, 
Local Government will pay to State the amount specified in Attachment C for plan review. At least 60 
days prior to the date set for receipt of the construction bids, Local Government shall remit its remaining 
local match as specified in Attachment C for State’s estimated construction oversight and construction 
cost. 

  



                                                                  CSJ: 0909-36-157  
                                                                        District #: Waco (09) 
                                                                            Code Chart 64#: 03700 
                  Project: Chisholm Trail Corridor Hike and Bike Facility Phase II 
                                                                                                       CFDA Title: Highway Planning and Construction 
                                                                           FHWA CFDA #: 20.205 

                 Not Research and Development 
 

AFA-LPAFA_TAP Page 9 of 13 Revised 2016-03-23 

11.7. In the event State determines that additional funding is required by Local Government at any time during 
Project, State will notify Local Government in writing. Local Government is responsible for the percentage 
of the authorized Project cost shown in Attachment C and 100 percent of any overruns above the 
federally authorized amount. Local Government will make payment to State within 30 days from receipt 
of State’s written notification. 

11.8. Whenever funds are paid by Local Government to State under this Agreement, Local Government will 
remit a warrant made payable to the “Texas Department of Transportation.” The warrant will be 
deposited by State and managed by State. Funds may only be applied by State to Project. 

11.9. Upon completion of Project, State will perform an audit of Project costs. Any funds due to Local 
Government, State, or the Federal Government will be promptly paid by the owing party. If after final 
Project accounting, any excess funds remain, those funds may be applied by State to Local Government’s 
contractual obligations to State under another advance funding agreement with approval by appropriate 
personnel of Local Government. 

11.10. In the event Project is not completed, State may seek reimbursement from Local Government of the 
expended federal funds. Local Government will remit the required funds to State within 60 days from 
receipt of State’s notification. 

11.11. If any existing or future local ordinances, commissioners court orders, rules, policies, or other directives, 
including but not limited to outdoor advertising billboards and storm water drainage facility 
requirements, are more restrictive than state or federal regulations, or if any other locally proposed 
changes, including but not limited to plats or re-plats, result in increased costs, then any increased costs 
associated with the ordinances or changes will be paid by Local Government. The cost of providing right 
of way acquired by State shall mean the total expenses in acquiring the property interests through 
negotiations, including, but not limited to, expenses related to relocation, removal, and adjustment of 
eligible utilities. 

11.12. The state auditor may conduct an audit or investigation of any entity receiving funds from the State 
directly under the Agreement or indirectly through a contract or subcontract under the Agreement. 
Acceptance of funds directly under the Agreement or indirectly through a contract or subcontract under 
this Agreement acts as acceptance of the authority of the state auditor, under the direction of the 
legislative audit committee, to conduct an audit or investigation in connection with those funds. An entity 
that is the subject of an audit or investigation must provide the state auditor with access to any 
information the state auditor considers relevant to the investigation or audit. 

11.13. State will not pay interest on any funds provided by Local Government. 

11.14. State will not execute the contract for the construction of Project until the required funding has been 
made available by Local Government in accordance with this Agreement. 

11.15. Local Government is authorized to submit requests for reimbursement by submitting the original of an 
itemized invoice in a form and containing all items required by State no more frequently than monthly, 
and no later than 90 days after costs are incurred. If Local Government submits invoices more than 90 
days after the costs are incurred, and if federal funding is reduced as a result, State shall have no 
responsibility to reimburse Local Government for those costs. 

11.16. If Local government is an Economically Disadvantaged County (“EDC”) and if State has approved 
adjustments to the standard financing arrangement, this agreement reflects those adjustments. 



                                                                  CSJ: 0909-36-157  
                                                                        District #: Waco (09) 
                                                                            Code Chart 64#: 03700 
                  Project: Chisholm Trail Corridor Hike and Bike Facility Phase II 
                                                                                                       CFDA Title: Highway Planning and Construction 
                                                                           FHWA CFDA #: 20.205 

                 Not Research and Development 
 

AFA-LPAFA_TAP Page 10 of 13 Revised 2016-03-23 

12. Document and Information Exchange 

Local Government agrees to electronically deliver to State all general notes, specifications, contract provision 
requirements, and related documentation in a Microsoft Word or similar format. If requested by State, Local 
Government will use State's document template. Local Government shall also provide a detailed construction 
time estimate, including types of activities and month in which the activity will be completed, in the format 
required by State. This requirement applies whether Local Government creates the documents with its own 
forces or by hiring a consultant or professional provider. At the request of State, Local Government shall submit 
any information required by State in the format directed by State. 

13. Incorporation of Master Agreement Provisions  

This LPAFA incorporates all of the governing provisions of the Master Agreement in effect on the date of final 
execution of this LPAFA, unless an exception has been made in this agreement. 

14. Compliance with Laws 

The parties shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations, and 
the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or tribunals in any manner affecting the 
performance of this LPAFA. When required, Local Government shall furnish State with satisfactory proof of this 
compliance. 

15. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program Requirements 

15.1. The parties shall comply with the Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (“DBE”) Program requirements 
established in 49 CFR Part 26. 

15.2. Local Government shall adopt, in its totality, State’s federally approved DBE program. 

15.3. Local Government shall set an appropriate DBE goal consistent with State’s DBE guidelines and in 
consideration of Local market, project size, and nature of the goods or services to be acquired. Local 
Government shall have final decision-making authority regarding the DBE goal and shall be responsible 
for documenting its actions. 

15.4. Local Government shall follow all other parts of State’s DBE program referenced in TxDOT Form 2395, 
Memorandum of Understanding Regarding the Adoption of the Texas Department of Transportation’s 
Federally-Approved Disadvantaged Business Enterprise by Entity, and attachments found at web 
address: http://ftp.dot.state.tx.us/pub/txdot-info/bop/dbe/mou/mou_attachments.pdf. 

15.5. Local Government shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the award 
and performance of any DOT-assisted contract or in the administration of its DBE program or the 
requirements of 49 CFR Part 26. Local Government shall take all necessary and reasonable steps under 
49 CFR Part 26 to ensure non-discrimination in award and administration of DOT-assisted contracts. 
State’s DBE program, as required by 49 CFR Part 26 and as approved by DOT, is incorporated by reference 
in this Agreement. Implementation of this program is a legal obligation and failure to carry out its terms 
shall be treated as a violation of this Agreement. Upon notification to Local Government of its failure to 
carry out its approved program, State may impose sanctions as provided for under 49 CFR Part 26 and 
may, in appropriate cases, refer the matter for enforcement under 18 USC 1001 and the Program Fraud 
Civil Remedies Act of 1986 (31 USC § 3801 et seq.). 

http://ftp.dot.state.tx.us/pub/txdot-info/bop/dbe/mou/mou_attachments.pdf


                                                                  CSJ: 0909-36-157  
                                                                        District #: Waco (09) 
                                                                            Code Chart 64#: 03700 
                  Project: Chisholm Trail Corridor Hike and Bike Facility Phase II 
                                                                                                       CFDA Title: Highway Planning and Construction 
                                                                           FHWA CFDA #: 20.205 

                 Not Research and Development 
 

AFA-LPAFA_TAP Page 11 of 13 Revised 2016-03-23 

15.6. Each contract Local Government signs with a contractor (and each subcontract the prime contractor signs 
with a subcontractor) must include the following assurance: 

The contractor, sub-recipient, or sub-contractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national 
origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. The contractor shall carry out applicable requirements 
of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award and administration of DOT-assisted contracts. Failure by the contractor to 
carry out these requirements is a material breach of this agreement, which may result in the termination 
of this agreement or such other remedy as the recipient deems appropriate. 

 

16. Debarment Certifications 

The parties are prohibited from making any award at any tier to any party that is debarred or suspended or 
otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in Federal Assistance Programs under Executive Order 
12549, “Debarment and Suspension.” By executing this Agreement, Local Government certifies that it and its 
principals are not currently debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in 
Federal Assistance Programs under Executive Order 12549, and further certifies that it will not do business with 
any party, to include principals, that is currently debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded from or ineligible 
for participation in Federal Assistance Programs under Executive Order 12549. The parties to this Agreement 
shall require any party to a contract, subcontract, or purchase order awarded under this Agreement to certify its 
eligibility to receive federal funds and, when requested by State, to furnish a copy of the certification. 

17. Lobbying Certification 

In executing this Agreement, each signatory certifies to the best of that signatory’s knowledge and belief, that: 

17.1. No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the parties to any person 
for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any federal agency, a Member of 
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection 
with the awarding of any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of any federal 
loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, 
amendment, or modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

17.2. If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for 
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an 
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with federal 
contracts, grants, loans, or cooperative agreements, the signatory for Local Government shall complete 
and submit the federal Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its 
instructions. 

17.3. The parties shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all 
sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and 
cooperative agreements) and all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. Submission of this 
certification is a prerequisite imposed by 31 USC § 1352 for making or entering into this transaction. Any 
person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than 
$10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure. 

  



                                                                  CSJ: 0909-36-157  
                                                                        District #: Waco (09) 
                                                                            Code Chart 64#: 03700 
                  Project: Chisholm Trail Corridor Hike and Bike Facility Phase II 
                                                                                                       CFDA Title: Highway Planning and Construction 
                                                                           FHWA CFDA #: 20.205 

                 Not Research and Development 
 

AFA-LPAFA_TAP Page 12 of 13 Revised 2016-03-23 

18. Insurance 

18.1. Should this Agreement authorize Local Government or its contractor to perform any work on State right 
of way, before beginning work, the entity performing the work shall provide State with a fully executed 
copy of State's Form 1560 Certificate of Insurance verifying the existence of coverage in the amounts and 
types specified on the Certificate of Insurance for all persons and entities working on State right of way. 
This coverage shall be maintained until all work on State right of way is complete. If coverage is not 
maintained, all work on State right of way shall cease immediately, and State may recover damages and 
all costs of completing the work. 

18.2. For projects including buildings, Local Government agrees to insure the building according to Department 
specifications and further agrees to name the Federal Government as a “Loss Payee” should the building 
be destroyed. 

19. Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act Requirements 

19.1. Any recipient of funds under this agreement agrees to comply with the Federal Funding Accountability 
and Transparency Act (“FFATA”) and implementing regulations at 2 CFR Part 170, including Appendix A. 
This agreement is subject to the following award terms: 

http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/FR-2010-09-14/pdf/2010-22705.pdf and 

http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/FR-2010-09-14/pdf/2010-22706.pdf. 

19.2. Local Government agrees that it shall: 

a. Obtain and provide to State a System for Award Management (“SAM”) number (Federal 
Acquisition Regulation (“FAR”) Subpart 4.11) if this award provides more than $25,000 in 
Federal funding. The SAM number may be obtained by visiting the SAM website whose address 
is https://www.sam.gov/portal/public/SAM/ 

b. Obtain and provide to State a Data Universal Numbering System (“DUNS”) number, a unique 
nine-character number that allows the federal government to track the distribution of federal 
money. The DUNS number may be requested free of charge for all businesses and entities 
required to do so by visiting the Dun & Bradstreet on-line registration 
website http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform; and 

c. Report the total compensation and names of its top five executives to State if:  

1. More than 80 percent of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and 
those revenues are greater than $25,000,000; and 

2. The compensation information is not already available through reporting to the U.S. 
Securities and Exchange Commission. 

20. Single Audit Report 

20.1. The parties shall comply with the requirements of the Single Audit Act of 1984, P.L. 98-502, ensuring that 
the single audit report includes the coverage stipulated in 2 CFR Part 200. 

  

http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/FR-2010-09-14/pdf/2010-22705.pdf
http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/FR-2010-09-14/pdf/2010-22706.pdf
https://www.sam.gov/portal/public/SAM/
http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform


                                                                  CSJ: 0909-36-157  
                                                                        District #: Waco (09) 
                                                                            Code Chart 64#: 03700 
                  Project: Chisholm Trail Corridor Hike and Bike Facility Phase II 
                                                                                                       CFDA Title: Highway Planning and Construction 
                                                                           FHWA CFDA #: 20.205 

                 Not Research and Development 
 

AFA-LPAFA_TAP Page 13 of 13 Revised 2016-03-23 

20.2. If threshold expenditures of $750,000 or more are met during the fiscal year, the Local Government must 
submit a Single Audit Report and Management Letter (if applicable) to TxDOT's Audit Office, 125 East 
11th Street, Austin, TX  78701 or contact TxDOT’s Audit Office at http://www.txdot.gov/inside-
txdot/office/audit/contact.html. If expenditures are less than the threshold during Local Government's 
fiscal year, Local Government must submit a statement to TxDOT's Audit Office as follows: 

We did not meet the $______ expenditure threshold and therefore, are not required to have a single 
audit performed for FY ______. 

20.3. For each year Project remains open for federal funding expenditures, Local Government will be 
responsible for filing a report or statement as described above. The required annual filing shall extend 
throughout the life of the agreement, unless otherwise amended or Project has been formally closed out 
and no charges have been incurred within the current fiscal year. 

 

 

21. Signatory Warranty 

Each signatory warrants that the signatory has necessary authority to execute this agreement on behalf of the 
entity represented. 

Each party is signing this agreement on the date stated opposite that party’s signature. 

City of Belton 

Date:  By: 
Sam Listi 
City Manager 
City of Belton, Texas 

THE STATE OF TEXAS 

Date:  By: 
Kenneth Stewart 
Director of Contract Services 
Texas Department of Transportation 

 



                                                                  CSJ: 0909-36-157  
                                                                        District #: Waco (09) 
                                                                            Code Chart 64#: 03700 
                  Project: Chisholm Trail Corridor Hike and Bike Facility Phase II 
                                                                                                       CFDA Title: Highway Planning and Construction 
                                                                           FHWA CFDA #: 20.205 

                 Not Research and Development 
 

AFA-LPAFA_TAP Page 1 of 2 Attachment A 

ATTACHMENT A 
RESOLUTION OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT 

 
 
 



                                                                  CSJ: 0909-36-157  
                                                                        District #: Waco (09) 
                                                                            Code Chart 64#: 03700 
                  Project: Chisholm Trail Corridor Hike and Bike Facility Phase II 
                                                                                                       CFDA Title: Highway Planning and Construction 
                                                                           FHWA CFDA #: 20.205 

                 Not Research and Development 
 

AFA-LPAFA_TAP Page 2 of 2 Attachment A 

 



                                                                  CSJ: 0909-36-157  
                                                                        District #: Waco (09) 
                                                                            Code Chart 64#: 03700 
                  Project: Chisholm Trail Corridor Hike and Bike Facility Phase II 
                                                                                                       CFDA Title: Highway Planning and Construction 
                                                                           FHWA CFDA #: 20.205 

                 Not Research and Development 
 

AFA-LPAFA_TAP Page 1 of 1 Attachment B 

ATTACHMENT B 
PROJECT LOCATION MAP 

 



                                                                        CSJ: 0909-36-157  
                                                                        District #: Waco (09) 
                                                                                                                                                              Code Chart 64#: 03700 
                                                                        Project: Chisholm Trail Corridor Hike and Bike Facility Phase II 
                                                                                                                                                              CFDA Title: Highway Planning and Construction 
                                                                                                                                                              FHWA CFDA #: 20.205 

                                                                       Not Research and Development 
 

AFA-LPAFA_TAP Page 1 of 2 Attachment C 

ATTACHMENT C 
PROJECT ESTIMATE AND SOURCE OF FUNDS 

LG Performs PE Work or Hires Consultant / LG Lets Project to Construction  
 

Work Performed by Local Government (“LG”) 

Description of 
Project Costs to be Incurred 

Total Project Cost 
Estimate 

Federal Participation 
 

Includes additional percentage 
for TDC apportionment where applicable 

State Participation 
Local Government (LG) 

Participation 
Includes any EDC reduction 

where applicable 

% Cost % Cost % Cost 
Planning/Maps/Education/Non-CST $0 0% $0 0% $0 0% $0 
Preliminary Engineering $0 0% $0 0% $0 0% $0 
Environmental Cost  $0 0% $0 0% $0 0% $0 
Right of Way $0 0% $0 0% $0 0% $0 
Utilities $0 0% $0 0% $0 0% $0 
Construction $2,375,100 80% $1,900,080 0% $0 20% $475,000 
Work by LG Subtotal $2,375,100 $1,900,080 $0 $475,000 
In-kind donation Value  
(Add to Total Project Cost - 20% Maximum value) 

$405,000 0% $0 0% $0 0% $405,000 * 

Work Performed by the State (Local Participation paid up front by LG to TxDOT) 
Preliminary Engineering1 $0 0% $0 0% $0 0% $0 
Environmental Cost1 $0 0% $0 0% $0 0% $0 
Right of Way3 $0 0% $0 0% $0 0% $0 
Utilities2 $0 0% $0 0% $0 0% $0 
Construction2 $0 0% $0 0% $0 0% $0 
Work by State Subtotal $0 $0 $0 $0 

  



                                                                        CSJ: 0909-36-157  
                                                                        District #: Waco (09) 
                                                                                                                                                              Code Chart 64#: 03700 
                                                                        Project: Chisholm Trail Corridor Hike and Bike Facility Phase II 
                                                                                                                                                              CFDA Title: Highway Planning and Construction 
                                                                                                                                                              FHWA CFDA #: 20.205 

                                                                       Not Research and Development 
 

AFA-LPAFA_TAP Page 2 of 2 Attachment C 

Direct and Indirect State Costs Incurred for Review, Inspection, Administration & Oversight 

Description of 
Project Costs to be Incurred 

Total Project Cost 
Estimate 

Federal Participation 
 

Includes additional percentage 
for TDC apportionment where applicable 

State Participation 
Local Government (LG) 

Participation 
Includes any EDC reduction 

where applicable 

% Cost % Cost % Cost 
Preliminary Engineering1 $44,327 80% $35,461 0% $0 20% $8,866 
Environmental Cost1 $29,552 80% $23,642 0% $0 20% $5,910 
Right of Way1 $8,865 80% $7,092 0% $0 20% $1,773 
Utilities1 $5,910 80% $4,728 0% $0 20% $1,182 
Construction2 $206,861 80% $165,489 0% $0 20% $41,372 
Direct State Costs Subtotal $295,515 80% $236,412 0% $0 20% $59,103 
Indirect State Costs $170,385 $0 $170,385 $0 
TOTAL PARTICIPATION $2,841,000 $2,136,492 $170,385 $534,123 
In-kind Contribution Credit Applied    0% $405,000 
TOTAL REMAINING PARTICIPATION 
AFTER IN-KIND CONTRIBUTION    $129,123 

 
The estimated total participation by Local Government is $534,123, plus 100% of overruns. 
Total estimated payment by Local Government to State is $59,103. 
1Local Government’s first payment of $17,731 is due to State within 30 days from execution of this contract. 
2 Local Government’s second payment of $41,372 is due to State within 60 days prior to the Construction contract being advertised for bids. 
3If ROW is to be acquired by State, Local Government’s share of property cost will be due prior to acquisition. 
The eligible percent of required local match is stated in the nomination and must be 20% or greater, unless In-Kind, EDC adjustments or TDCs are applied. 
This is an estimate, the final amount of Local Government participation will be based on actual costs. 

Maximum federal TAP funds available for Project are $2,136,492. 
* The In-kind Donation Value has been added to the Total Project Cost Estimate for Construction. 



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-21-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
SIGN AN AGREEMENT WITH THE TEXAS DEPARTMENT 
OF TRANSPORTATION, FOR PHASE II OF THE CHISHOLM 
TRAIL HIKE AND BIKE FACILITY, FUNDED THROUGH THE 
TRANSPORTATION ALTERNATIVES PROGRAM 

              
 

Whereas, the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT), Transportation 
Alternatives Program has allocated $2,136,492 in federal funding for Phase II of the 
Chisholm Trail Hike and Bike Facility; 
 

Whereas, the project reflects the Parks and Recreation Strategic Master Plan’s 
number one priority for hike/bike trails, and will provide a vision for multi-modal 
transportation (bicycle and pedestrian); 
  

Whereas, the program requires a minimum 20% local funding, and the City 
commits to its local share of $405,000 in-kind contribution, $59,103 state cost share, 
and $70,020 construction match for this project, with a total City match of $534,123;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF BELTON, TEXAS, THAT: 

 
 That the City Council directs and designates the City Manager as the City’s 

Authorized Representative to act in all matters in connection with this agreement 
and the City's participation.  

 The City of Belton commits to its local share of $534,123 and 100% of all non-
federally fundable items and overruns exceeding the federal allocation. 

 The City hereby approves a budget amendment to formally commit and fund the 
local share of $534,123.   

 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 14th day of June, 2016. 
 
       THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    Marion Grayson, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:       
 
             
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 



Project Information 
 

• Approximately 0.8 mile 
• Connects existing hike and bike trail/sidewalk sections in vicinity of UMHB and extends to 

Commerce/Sparta 
• Provides linkage to many community facilities and resources 
• Railroad underpass required for safe pedestrian access to both north and south  

 



Railroad Underpass Location – University/Crusader Way 
 

 

 

 

Sample Railroad Underpass 

 



City Council Agenda Item 
June 14, 2016 

Page 1 of 2   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
Agenda Item #13 
 
Consider award of bid and authorizing the City Manager to execute a construction contract 
for the River Fair Road Widening Project, and any change orders associated with the 
contract, not to exceed the amount authorized under state law. 
 
Originating Department 
 
Engineering – Angellia Points, Director of Internal Services/City Engineer 
 
Background 
 
The River Fair Road Widening Project has been on the TIRZ project list for some time, and 
funding is available in fiscal year 2016. The lane widths of River Fair Drive between 
SH317/N Main Street and Oakmark Drive are too narrow for a collector street, and a 
drainage issue exists in the middle of the roadway at the concrete median where water 
ponds with any measurable precipitation.  
 
On March 26, 2015, Staff authorized Clark and Fuller, PLLC to design and provide 
construction administration services to widen the lanes, correct the drainage issue, and 
improve the aesthetics of the median. The project includes removing the entire width of the 
roadway and existing concrete median, pouring new curb and gutter closer to the right-of-
way line, constructing new roadway using 15 inches of crushed limestone base and 2 
inches of asphalt, installing a new 6-foot wide concrete median, and placing required 
pavement markings and striping. The lanes will be widened from 11 feet to 13 feet in the 
westbound lane and to two 12.5 feet wide eastbound lanes. The overall width of the 
roadway between curb and gutter will increase by approximately 10 feet without the need 
for additional right-of-way.  
 
Sidewalks were also designed by Clark and Fuller, but were bid as additive alternates to 
give Staff the option to recommend if the sidewalks should be built within this contract. As 
the properties adjacent to River Fair Road develop, sidewalks will be required to be installed 
by the Developer according to the Subdivision Ordinance. At this time, the sidewalks were 
not chosen to be recommended in the City’s proposed contract with Holy Contractors.  
 
In order to install the concrete median and area drainage inlet, the roadway will be required 
to be completely closed. In the same manner, for timely construction and worker safety, the 
roadway is allowed to be closed for the duration of the project up to the contracted time. The 
project’s contract documents were developed to provide the project notice to proceed on 
August 22, 2016, and for work to be completed within 90 calendar days (by November 20, 
2016). The delayed Notice to Proceed was intentional to coincide with the start of school, 
since traffic volumes to restaurants and businesses in the area will be less after the summer 
break.  



City Council Agenda Item 
June 14, 2016 

Page 2 of 2   
 

A traffic control plan is required to be submitted by the Contractor using TxDOT’s design 
standards or a deviation from TxDOT’s, recommended and specified by a Texas-registered 
professional engineer, based on the street intersection with SH317.  
 
The project was designed, and advertisement for bids began on May 19, 2016. Bids were 
opened on June 7, 2016 at 2:00 p.m. Five (5) qualified bids were received:  
 

Bidder Total Base Bid Amount 
Holy Contractors, Hewitt, TX $136,288.87 
TTG Utilities, Gatesville, TX $142,111.74 
Lone Star Paving, Austin, TX $157,288.86 
McLean Construction, Killeen, TX $194,969.00 
JHL Construction, Gatesville, TX $228,525.00 

 
The Engineer’s Opinion of Probable Cost (EOPC) to construct the Project was $160,000 
with the sidewalk additive alternate. Clark and Fuller and the City Engineer evaluated the 
bids and determined that Holy Contractors, the low bidder, has the capability and 
experience to perform to the requirements of the contract. Although Holy Contractors has 
not worked with the City of Belton in previous projects, Clark and Fuller is familiar with their 
work history of completing quality projects on time and on budget. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
Funding for this project is sourced from the TIRZ Capital Project Funds. The total TIRZ 
funds dedicated to the construction costs for this project was $150,000. The project was 
competitively bid, and the low bids resulted in coming under budget in the TIRZ funding by 
$13,711.13.  
 
Budgeted:   Yes     No  TIRZ Capital Project Funds 
 
If not budgeted:   Budget Transfer     Contingency     Amendment Needed     
 
Recommendation 
 
Award bid and authorize the City Manager to execute a construction contract for the River 
Fair Road Widening Project, and any change orders associated with the contract, not to 
exceed the amount authorized under state law. 
 
Attachments 
Location Map and Site Plan 
Clark and Fuller Recommendation Letter 
Staff Summary Memo to Contractors  
Bid Tabulation 



LIST OF DRAWINGS

SHEET INDEX

Revisions

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 S
TA

TU
S

PROJECT COVER SHEET

SITE LOCATION MAP AND SHEET INDEX

PROJECT CONSTRUCTION NOTES - SHEET 1

PROJECT CONSTRUCTION NOTES - SHEET 2

PROJECT CONSTRUCTION NOTES - SHEET 3

CIVIL SITE PLAN

SITE DEMOLITION PLAN

SITE DRAINAGE AND EROSION CONTROL PLAN

RIVERFAIR BLVD IMPROVEMENTS

PLAN AND PROFILE SHEET

STA: 0+00 - END

SITE STRIPING AND SIGNAGE PLAN

EROSION CONTROL - SHEET 1

EROSION CONTROL - SHEET 2

MISCELLANEOUS DETAILS - SHEET 1

MISCELLANEOUS DETAILS - SHEET 2

MISCELLANEOUS DETAILS - SHEET 3

TXDOT STANDARD DETAILS

TXDOT STANDARD DETAILS 2

TXDOT STANDARD DETAILS 3

TXDOT TRAFFIC CONTROL DETAILS - SHEET 1

TXDOT TRAFFIC CONTROL DETAILS - SHEET 2

TXDOT TRAFFIC CONTROL DETAILS - SHEET 3

TXDOT TRAFFIC CONTROL DETAILS - SHEET 4

TXDOT TRAFFIC CONTROL DETAILS - SHEET 5

TXDOT TRAFFIC CONTROL DETAILS - SHEET 6

TXDOT SIGN DETAILS - SHEET 1

TXDOT SIGN DETAILS - SHEET 2

TXDOT SIGN DETAILS - SHEET 3

TXDOT PAVEMENT MARKINGS

C1.1

C1.2

C2.1

C2.2

C2.3

C3.1

C4.1

C5.1

C6.1

C7.1

C8.1

C8.2

C9.1

C9.2

C9.3

C10.1

C10.2

C10.3

C10.4

C10.5

C10.6

C10.7

C10.8

C10.9

C10.10

C10.11

C10.12

C10.13

SITE LOCATION MAP

N.T.S.

317

SI
TE

 L
O

C
A

TI
O

N
 M

A
P 

A
N

D
 S

H
EE

T 
IN

D
EX

C1.2

B
EL

TO
N

, T
EX

A
S

C
IT

Y
 O

F 
B

EL
TO

N
R

IV
ER

 F
A

IR
R

O
A

D
 W

ID
EN

IN
G

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

BELTON, TX



Revisions

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 S
TA

TU
S

SI
TE

 S
TR

IP
IN

G
 A

N
D

 S
IG

N
A

G
E 

PL
A

N

C7.1

B
EL

TO
N

, T
EX

A
S

C
IT

Y
 O

F 
B

EL
TO

N
R

IV
ER

 F
A

IR
R

O
A

D
 W

ID
EN

IN
G

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

NOTES



River Fair Road Widening Project – Letter of Recommendation Page 1 
 

 
 

 
 

215 North Main Street 
Temple, Texas 76501 

 (254) 899-0899 
Fax (254) 899-0901 

www.clark-fuller.com 
Firm Registration No: F-10384 

 
  

 
June 9, 2016 
 
City of Belton 
Angellia Points 
1502 Holland Rd. 
Belton, TX 76513 
 
Re: River Fair Road Widening Project 
 
Dear Mrs. Points,  
 
On June 7th, we received Five (5) bids for the River Fair Road Widening Project. We have 
reviewed each of the bids for accuracy and completeness. Holy Contractors, LLC submitted a 
Base Bid of $136,288.87 and a Bid Alternate of $23,784.21 for a Total Bid of $ 160,073.08 
making them the apparent low bidder.  The Base Bid includes the demolition and construction of 
the new River Fair Road Widening and also the construction of the New Storm Sewer to 
alleviate existing storm water issues.  The Bid Alternate includes the new sidewalk construction, 
adjacent to River Fair Road.  Please see the enclosed Bid Tabulation Sheet and Bid Schedule 
Breakout for detailed information.   
 
The engineer’s opinion of probable cost for this project is $ 160,000.00.  
 
Our firm has limited experience working with Holy Contractors, LLC. Therefore we contacted 
numerous entities on the list of references provided by Holy Contractors, LLC and everyone had 
positive comments. Several stated that Holy Contractors, LLC responded in a timely fashion to 
construction problems and worked with project personnel to complete the project on time. When 
asked if Holy Contractors, LLC were the low bidder on their next project all would recommend 
them. 
 
At present time, the City Staff has stated that the Bid Alternate is not to be constructed.  
Therefore, we are recommending that you award the Base Bid ($136,288.87) contract to Holy 
Contractors, LLC.  We believe, through documentation and personal verbal contact with the 
contractor's list of provided references, that Holy Contractors, LLC is qualified and is capable of 
providing the River Fair Road Widening as required in this project.   
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
 
Monty Clark, P.E., CPESC 
 

http://www.clark-fuller.com/�


City of Belton 
~ Public Works ~ 

 
 

P.O. Box 120  Belton, Texas 76513  Phone (254) 933-5823  
 
 

 
River Fair Road Widening Project 

 
The River Fair Road Widening Project will be set to advertise on Thursday, May 19th and Thursday, 
May 26th to be bid on Tuesday, June 7th. The River Fair Project consists of widening River Fair at 
SH317/Main Street. See attached map for project location (Sheet C1.2). The lane widths are currently 
too narrow, and a drainage issue exists in the middle of the roadway at the concrete median. The re-
design was performed by Clark & Fuller to widen the westbound lane to 13 feet and the two 
eastbound lanes to 12.5 feet. A 6-foot concrete median will replace the existing narrow median. The 
most significant improvement is the drainage inlet and pipe to eliminate the ponding that currently 
exists. The attached Sheet C7.1 shows the proposed improvements.  
 
Sidewalks are shown on the plans, but they will be bid as an additive alternate. The construction of 
the sidewalks will be determined by the bid amounts. Regardless, sidewalks are required along River 
Fair and will be required when the adjacent properties develop. 
 
The project is expected to cost around $160,000. The contract documents are developed to give a 
90-day construction window. River Fair at Main Street will likely be closed for approximately eight (8) 
weeks during construction to allow for timely construction and worker safety. The roadway is required 
to close completely to install the inlet drain and pipe and center median. Keeping the road open in 
one direction will lengthen construction and construction costs. However, standard signs will be 
installed to direct motorists to use Oakmark Drive during this time. Staff will work closely with the 
Contractor to adhere to the schedule and traffic control plans.  
 
The final traffic control plan will be determined by a Texas-registered professional engineer or by 
using TxDOT’s standards. The following map is an example or guide of the detour to be used during 
construction.  
 



City of Belton 
~ Public Works ~ 

 
 

P.O. Box 120  Belton, Texas 76513  Phone (254) 933-5823  
 
 

 
 
However, to accommodate summer traffic to the businesses near this intersection, the Notice to 
Proceed will not be issued until August 22, 2016. Therefore, the following schedule is proposed: 
 

• Bid Opening     Tuesday, June 7th 
• City Council Review    Tuesday, June 14th 
• Notice to Proceed    Monday, August 22nd 
• Construction Begins/River Fair Closes Monday, August 22nd 
• Construction Ends    Sunday, November, 20th  

 
 
 



Base Bid
No. Item Description Est. Quan. UOM Unit Price Total Cost Unit Price Total Cost Unit Price Total Cost Unit Price Total Cost Unit Price Total Cost

Base Bid
1 Preparation of Right of Way and Site Clearing 100% LS 26,620.00$             26,620.00$             5,000.00$               5,000.00$               18,124.00$             18,124.00$             5,250.00$               5,250.00$               2,500.00$               2,500.00$               
2 Mobilization, Bonds, Permits, & Insurance 100% LS 8,666.00$               8,666.00$               12,250.00$             12,250.00$             10,524.00$             10,524.00$             8,000.00$               8,000.00$               12,500.00$             12,500.00$             
3 Demolish and Remove Existing Pavement, Concrete Framework, Curb and Gutter, ect. 100% LS 41,153.00$             41,153.00$             8,300.00$               8,300.00$               16,506.00$             16,506.00$             20,000.00$             20,000.00$             25,000.00$             25,000.00$             
4 Traffic Control Plan 100% LS 5,743.00$               5,743.00$               5,500.00$               5,500.00$               8,980.00$               8,980.00$               1,500.00$               1,500.00$               5,000.00$               5,000.00$               
5 Storm Water Prevention Pollution Plan 100% LS 5,723.00$               5,723.00$               1,650.00$               1,650.00$               5,050.00$               5,050.00$               400.00$                  400.00$                  11,000.00$             11,000.00$             
6 Connection to Existing Roadway 3 EA 1,960.00$               5,880.00$               200.00$                  600.00$                  453.35$                  1,360.05$               300.00$                  900.00$                  650.00$                  1,950.00$               
7 Provide 2" HMAC Pavement 1258 SY 17.00$                    21,386.00$             18.03$                    22,681.74$             16.50$                    20,757.00$             18.28$                    22,996.24$             18.50$                    23,273.00$             
8 Provide 15" Crushed Limestone Base 1306 SY 19.00$                    24,814.00$             19.50$                    25,467.00$             14.61$                    19,080.66$             16.08$                    21,000.48$             38.00$                    49,628.00$             
9 Provide 11" Crushed Limestone Base 727 SY 14.50$                    10,541.50$             18.00$                    13,086.00$             12.63$                    9,182.01$               16.50$                    11,995.50$             18.00$                    13,086.00$             
10 Provide Subgrade Preperation 2033 SY 1.50$                      3,049.50$               4.00$                      8,132.00$               1.26$                      2,561.58$               4.45$                      9,046.85$               6.00$                      12,198.00$             
11 Provide Standard Curb and Gutter 1190 LF 15.00$                   17,850.00$            16.50$                   19,635.00$            12.11$                   14,410.90$             12.00$                    14,280.00$            36.00$                   42,840.00$            

Etcon, Inc. dba JHL ConstructionHoly Contractors, LLC

Bid Tabulation Sheet
City of Belton - River Fair Road Widening Project

Bid Date: June 7th, 2016

McLean Construction, Inc. TTG Utilities, LP Lone Star Grading & Materials, LLC

12 New Handicap Curb Ramp with Detectable Warning 2 EA 1,965.00$               3,930.00$               1,100.00$               2,200.00$               1,502.35$               3,004.70$               1,500.00$               3,000.00$               850.00$                  1,700.00$               
13 Provide Sawtooth Curb Opening 5 LF 38.60$                    193.00$                  32.00$                    160.00$                  54.63$                    273.15$                  24.00$                    120.00$                  30.00$                    150.00$                  
14 Provide Reinforced Concrete Sidewalk 40 SY 59.10$                    2,364.00$               52.00$                    2,080.00$               186.53$                  7,461.20$               45.00$                    1,800.00$               115.00$                  4,600.00$               
15 Provide New Pedestrian and Traffic Stripping and Signage 100% LS 6,498.00$               6,498.00$               6,400.00$               6,400.00$               5,830.00$               5,830.00$               3,500.00$               3,500.00$               7,700.00$               7,700.00$               
16 Provide Connection to Existing Storm Sewer 1 EA 2,598.00$               2,598.00$               1,250.00$               1,250.00$               796.04$                  796.04$                  1,500.00$               1,500.00$               1,500.00$               1,500.00$               
17 Provide 3'x3' Precast Concrete Sump Inlet and Heavy Duty Cast Iron Grate 1 EA 2,848.00$               2,848.00$               2,800.00$               2,800.00$               4,572.37$               4,572.37$               6,000.00$               6,000.00$               4,300.00$               4,300.00$               
18 Provide 18" RCP Storm Sewer Main 60 LF 85.20$                    5,112.00$               82.00$                    4,920.00$               146.92$                  8,815.20$               83.33$                    4,999.80$               160.00$                  9,600.00$               

194,969.00$        142,111.74$        157,288.86$        136,288.87$        228,525.00$        
Bid Alternate (1)

19 Provide New Handicap Ramp 5 EA 1,965.00$               9,825.00$               1,100.00$               5,500.00$               1,502.46$               7,512.30$               1,535.00$               7,675.00$               850.00$                  4,250.00$               
20 Provide Nreinforced Concrete Sidewalk 303 SY 59.50$                    18,028.50$             45.00$                    13,635.00$             75.79$                    22,964.37$             46.07$                    13,959.21$             100.00$                  30,300.00$             
21 Provide New Pedestrian Striping 100% LS 509.00$                  509.00$                  550.00$                  550.00$                  495.00$                  495.00$                  2,150.00$               2,150.00$               900.00$                  900.00$                  

28,362.50$          19,685.00$          30,971.67$          23,784.21$          35,450.00$          

223,331.50$        161,796.74$        188,260.53$        160,073.08$        263,975.00$        

Notes:

Total Bid Including Alternates 1

Total Bid Add Alternate (1)

Total Base Bid



City Council Agenda Item 
June 14, 2016 

Page 1 of 5   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
Agenda Item # 14 
 
Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute an amended professional services 
agreement to design Phase I and Phase II improvements to the Temple-Belton Wastewater 
Treatment Plant. 
 
Originating Department 
 
Engineering – Angellia Points, Director of Internal Services/City Engineer 
 
Background 
 
The Temple-Belton Wastewater Treatment Plant (TBWWTP), located on FM 93/E 6th Ave 
between IH-35 and the Leon River, is owned by the Cities of Temple and Belton and is 
permitted to treat 10 million gallons per day (MGD) of wastewater. Temple and Belton share 
capital improvement costs at 75% and 25%, respectively. Both cities have contracted with 
the Brazos River Authority to operate the facility. The plant was constructed in 1975, 
expanded in 1990, and currently treats wastewater from approximately 70% of Temple and 
all of Belton. 
 
TCEQ requires wastewater plants to complete steps toward expansion at specific inflow 
thresholds. In 2010, influent flow was at least 75% of the permitted capacity for three 
consecutive months, triggering a TCEQ requirement to perform preliminary engineering for 
expansion. On August 23, 2011, Council authorized Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP 
(KPA) to prepare a preliminary engineering report (PER) for the TBWWTP to determine 
what steps were required for the plant expansion. 
 
On October 15, 2015, Council authorized an agreement with KPA in the amount of 
$1,341,555 (25% equaling $335,388.75) for professional services to design and bid Phase I 
of the expansion. This original scope of services consisted of three tasks organized as 
follows: 
 

• Task 1: Basis of Design 
o Hydraulic analysis, Orbal aeration design, phosphorus removal, and geotechnical 

• Task 2: Phase I Final Design 
o Headworks, odor control, address Orbal capacity  

• Task 4: Phase I Bidding 
o Bid phase services  

 
NOTE: Tasks 3 and 5: Phase II Plant Expansion Final Design and Phase II Bid 

Services, respectively, were not awarded at that time. 
 



City Council Agenda Item 
June 14, 2016 

Page 2 of 5   
 

o Phase II: 4 MGD integrated fixed film activated sludge train with clarifier, return 
and waste activated sludge pump station, gravity thickener, and all interconnect 
piping and appurtenances 
 

• Also, the contract in 2015 did not include construction phase administrative services 
for construction inspection, post-construction warranty services, and operation and 
maintenance manual preparation.  

 
Contract Amendment Proposal 
 
After further discussions between the Cities of Temple and Belton and KPA, this contract is 
recommended for amendment to modify Task 2 to remove the Orbal improvements and add 
design of an equalization basin, include Task 3 Phase II design, and add Task 5 to bid 
Phase II improvements.  
 
In reference to Task 2, improvements to the Orbal system will be coordinated by the plant 
operators over the next two months by installing three plate air diffusers. These air diffusers 
will improve the air efficiency transfer in the Orbal to properly treat the organics in the 
wastewater. With the summer months approaching, dissolved oxygen levels in the Orbal will 
decrease as the air and water temperatures increase, making the need for the additional 
diffusers crucial to continue to meet the plant’s permitted requirements for organic 
treatment. This improvement is expected to allow the Orbal to continue to operate properly 
through the next two summers. With KPA’s assistance in treatment modeling and air and 
water testing, this method satisfies the improvements needed for the Orbal, and therefore, 
no other engineering services are required for this task.  
 
In addition, the existing aerated grit basins are proposed to be converted to equalization 
(EQ) basins in order for the plant to handle abnormal high peak flows, when necessary. The 
EQ basins will also allow the downsizing of process units downstream of the proposed 
headworks. The EQ basin may also provide plant operators the ability to store partially 
treated wastewater during repairs that require basins to be temporarily taken out of service. 
Odor has been a concern for the EQ basin. However, provisions will be added by KPA to 
address this issue. Aeration will be added to the EQ basin to prevent any stored wastewater 
from becoming septic, minimizing odor-causing compounds. Also, a dewatering mechanism 
will be designed to give operators the ability to wash down the basin after it is used.  
 
As development occurs and more wastewater flow is sent to the plant, the plant will need to 
be expanded to meet the permit requirements and TCEQ regulations. Plant flows are 
exceeding the 75% trigger mark by reaching 85%, or 8.5 MGD of the 10 MGD permitted for 
three consecutive months. Flows are expected to gradually increase, eventually reaching 
the 90% trigger, at which time TCEQ requires the plant to be under construction for 
expansion. Therefore, the proposed amended contract adds Task 3, which is Phase II 
design services, to expand the plant capacity. Task 3 includes design of a 6 MGD, 
instead of a 4 MGD, integrated fixed film activated sludge (IFAS) biological treatment 



City Council Agenda Item 
June 14, 2016 

Page 3 of 5   
 

process unit that will allow the TBWWTP design flow to be expanded from 10 to 12 MGD 
ultimately.  
 
Task 3 also includes the TCEQ coordination and submittals required when expanding the 
rated capacity of the treatment plant. Expanding the plant capacity is considered a ‘major 
permit amendment,’ which will likely be the critical path in the design phase as this is a 
lengthy process. KPA and Staff estimate TCEQ will need 12 months to review the plant’s 
revised permit amendment, consequently the need to begin the next phase of design now 
as flows increase.  
 
See attached proposal from KPA for more details. Task 5 was also added to the amended 
contract to accommodate bidding. 
 
Amended Contract Costs 
 
This contract amendment proposes the following modified costs: 
  

Task Description Original Contract 
Amount 

Amendment No. 1 
Changes 

Total Revised 
Contract 

Task 1 – Basis of Design $244,200 $50,358 $294,558 
Task 2 – Final Design Phase I $1,065,290 $(132,745) $932,545 

 
Task 3 – Final Design Phase II (Additional Services: 

$943,205) 
Move to be authorized: 

$2,086,947+ 
$2,086,947 

Task 4 – Bidding Phase I $32,065 No change $32,065 
Task 5 – Bidding Phase II Not in scope $32,550 $32,550 

TOTAL $1,341,555* 
(25% = $335,388.75) 

+$2,037,110 
(25% = $509,277.50) 

$3,378,665 
(25% = $844,666.25) 

*Total amount does not include Task 3. Total for the Additional Services (Task 3) was not authorized in Original Contract. 
See Page 2 of KPA Contract Dated September 18, 2015. 
+The amount shown is the total amount requested to perform Task 3. Additional funding for the Additional Services amount 
of $943,205 is $1,143,742 to equal $2,086,947. However, Task 3 was not yet authorized in the original contract.  
    
The elements of Phase I and II are illustrated on the attached Construction Phase Site Plan 
Map. Time required for Task 3 design (Phase II) is 360 calendar days, dependent upon 
TCEQ approval.  
 
Estimated Construction Costs 
 
The engineer’s estimate of construction costs for Task 3 is in the preliminary stages and will 
be dependent upon the requirements TCEQ will state with the plant expansion. A new 
requirement – a total phosphorus limit – is expected with the plant expansion, which may 
require filters, the addition of a chemical feed system, and alteration of the disinfection 
process. Upon completion of Task 3 design, funding will be identified and will be presented 
to Council for approval before proceeding to bid. The engineer’s revised opinions of 
probable construction cost are the following: 
 



City Council Agenda Item 
June 14, 2016 

Page 4 of 5   
 

• Phase I – Headworks, Odor Control, and EQ Basin Conversion 
o Original Contract Estimated $13,450,000 (25% = $3,362,500) 
o Revised Contract Scope Estimates $7,290,000 (25% = $1,822,500) 
o A reduction of $6,160,000 (25% = $1,540,000) 

• Phase II – 6 MGD IFAS Train, Clarifier, Filters, Chemical Feed, Tertiary Treatment, 
etc. 

o Original Contract Estimated $9,200,000 (25% = $2,300,000) 
o Revised Contract Scope Estimates $29,060,000 (25% = $7,265,000) 
o An increase of $19,860,000 (25% = $4,965,000) 
o This increase is a conservative estimate due to the uncertainty of TCEQ 

requirements when the plant is proposed to be expanded. 
 

KPA’s original contract and amended contract do not include services related to 
construction administration, on-site representation, warranty services, or operations and 
maintenance manual preparation for either Phase I or Phase II improvements. The City of 
Belton would recommend KPA perform these services as the engineer of record for the 
project. These services for Phase I would be approximately $485,000 (25% = $121,250 for 
Belton’s portion). Construction phase services for Phase II will be estimated once the final 
scope of the project is determined by TCEQ.  
 
Financial Summary 
 
The proposed changes to the KPA contract allow for decreases in the cost for Phase I 
design services and estimated construction costs. However, Phase II of design services is 
proposed to be awarded at an increased cost from the estimated cost presented in the 
September 18, 2015, contract. Depending on the requirements from TCEQ when Phase II is 
proposed, construction costs will also likely be higher than estimated in the original contract. 
 
Phase II in the amended contract is conservative, and when compared to the 2011 PER, 
Phase II combines later phases that were planned or projected five years ago. The following 
lists the proposed changes and resulting net increase in costs for design services and 
projected construction costs.  
 
Funding/Expenditure Amount 
2015 CO Issue – TBWWTP Portion $2,760,000 
Phase I & II Engineering ($844,666) 
Phase I Construction Estimate ($1,822,500) 
Phase I Construction Administration Estimate ($121,250) 
Projected Shortfall ($28,416) 
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
The fiscal impact of the action today is $509,277, which represents Belton’s share of the 
increase in the professional services contract with KPA from its current amount of $335,389 
to $844,666. 



City Council Agenda Item 
June 14, 2016 

Page 5 of 5   
 

The funding available from the 2015 CO issue is $28,416 short of covering Phase I 
engineering and construction and Phase II engineering based on current estimates. 
However, as Phase I construction costs are estimates, no budget action is proposed at this 
time. City Staff will return to Council with a recommendation on funding the shortfall once 
bids for construction have been received, and the final amount of the shortfall is known.  
 
Budgeted:   Yes     No  Capital Project Funds 
 
If not budgeted:   Budget Transfer     Contingency     Amendment Needed     
 
Recommendation 
 
Authorize the City Manager to execute an amended professional services agreement to 
design Phase I and Phase II improvements to the Temple-Belton Wastewater Treatment 
Plant. 
 
Attachments 
Approved KPA Contract dated September 18, 2015 
Supplemental Agreement to Phase I including addition of Phase II Improvements dated 
June 3, 2016 
Construction Phase Site Plan Map  



SHORT FORM OF AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN OWNER AND ENGINEER 


FOR 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 


THIS IS AN AGREEMENT effective as of November 15, 2015 between The City of Belton 
("Owner") and Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP. ("Engineer"). 

Owner's Project, of which Engineer's services under this Agreement are a part, is generally 
identified as follows: 

Temple-Belton Wastewater Treatment Plant, Phase I - New Headworks and Biological 
Treatment Improvements Proposal ("Project"). 

Engineer's Services under this Agreement area generally identified as follows: 

As described in Exhibit A, Proposal from Engineer, dated September 18, 2015. 
[Deserihe soope a/ services, or r-cler te (;ffl attachment. See Exhihit A, EJCDC E 500, for (;ffl 

example a/alml scepe ejel'l:gineering services.} 

Owner and Engineer further agree as follows: 

1.01 Basic Agreement and Period ofService 

A. Engineer shall provide, or cause to be provided, the services set forth in this Agreement. 
If authorized by Owner, or if required because of changes in the Project, Engineer shall 
furnish services in addition to those set forth above. Owner shall pay Engineer for its 
services as set forth in Paragraph 7.01 and 7.02. 

B. 	Engineer shall complete its services within a reasonable time, or within the following 
specific time period: 1 year from date ofthis contract. 

C. 	 If the Project includes construction-related professional services, then Engineer's time for 
completion of services is conditioned on the time for Owner and its contractors to 
complete construction not exceeding 14 months. If the actual time to complete 
construction exceeds the number of months indicated, then Engineer's period of service 
and its total compensation shall be appropriately adjusted. 

EJCDC E-S20 Short Fonn ofAgreement Between Owner and Engioeer for Professional Services. 

Copyright©2009 National Society ofProfessional Engineers for EJCDC, All rights reserved. 


Page 1 




2.01 Payment Procedures 

A. 	 Invoices: Engineer shall prepare invoices in accordance with its standard invoicing practices and 
submit the invoices to Owner on a monthly basis. Invoices are due and payable within ~ 45 days of 
receipt. If Owner fails to make any payment due Engineer for services and expenses within ~ 45 
days after receipt of Engineer's invoice, then the amounts due Engineer will be increased at the rate 
of 1.0% per month (or the maximum rate of interest permitted by law, if less) from said thirtieth day 
fourty-fifty day. In addition, Engineer may, after giving seven days written notice to Owner, 
suspend services under this Agreement until Engineer has been paid in full all amounts due for 
services, expenses, and other related charges. Owner waives any and all claims against Engineer for 
any such suspension. Payments will be credited first to interest and then to principal. 

3.01 Termination 

A. 	 The obligation to continue performance under this Agreement may be terminated: 

1. 	 For cause, 

a. 	 By either party upon 30 days written notice in the event of substantial failure by the 
other party to perform in accordance with the Agreement's terms through no fault of the 
terminating party. Failure to pay Engineer for its services is a substantial failure to 
perform and a basis for termination. 

b. 	 By Engineer: 

1) 	 upon seven days written notice if Owner demands that Engineer furnish or perform 
services contrary to Engineer's responsibilities as a licensed professional; or 

2) upon seven days written notice if the Engineer's services for the Project are delayed 
for more than 90 days for reasons beyond Engineer's control. 

Engineer shall have no liability to Owner on account ofa termination by Engineer under 
Paragraph 3.01.A.1.b. 

c. 	 Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Agreement will not terminate as a result of a 
substantial failure under Paragraph 3.01.A.l.a if the party receiving such notice begins, 
within seven days of receipt of such notice, to correct its substantial failure to perform 
and proceeds diligently to cure such failure within no more than 30 days of receipt of 
notice; provided, however, that if and to the extent such substantial failure cannot be 
reasonably cured within such 30 day period, and ifsuch party has diligently attempted to 
cure the same and thereafter continues diligently to cure the same, then the cure period 
provided for herein shall extend up to, but in no case more than, 60 days after the date of 
receipt of the notice. 

2. 	 For convenience, by Owner effective upon Engineer's receipt ofwritten notice from Owner. 

EJCDC E-520 Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright ©2009 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved. 

2 



B. 	 The tenninating party under Paragraph 3.01.A may set the effective date oftennination at a time up 
to 30 days later than otherwise provided to allow Engineer to complete tasks whose value would 
otherwise be lost, to prepare notes as to the status of completed and uncompleted tasks, and to 
assemble Project materials in orderly files. 

c. 	 In the event of any termination under Paragraph 3.01, Engineer will be entitled to invoice Owner 
and to receive full payment for all services performed or furnished in accordance with this 
Agreement and all reimbursable expenses incurred through the effective date oftennination. 

4.01 Successors, Assigns, and Beneficiaries 

A. 	 Owner and Engineer are hereby bound and the successors, executors, administrators, and legal 
representatives of Owner and Engineer (and to the extent permitted by Paragraph 4.01.B the assigns 
of Owner and Engineer) are hereby bound to the other party to this Agreement and to the 
successors, executors, administrators, and legal representatives (and said assigns) of such other 
party, in respect ofall covenants, agreements, and obligations of this Agreement. 

B. 	 Neither Owner nor Engineer may assign, sublet, or transfer any rights under or interest (including, 
but without limitation, moneys that are due or may become due) in this Agreement without the 
written consent of the other, except to the extent that any assignment, subletting, or transfer is 
mandated or restricted by law. Unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an 
assignment, no assignment will release or discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility 
under this Agreement. 

C. 	 Unless expressly provided otherwise, nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create, 
impose, or give rise to any duty owed by Owner or Engineer to any contractor, subcontractor, 
supplier, other individual or entity, or to any surety for or employee of any of them. All duties and 
responsibilities undertaken pursuant to this Agreement will be for the sole and exclusive benefit of 
Owner and Engineer and not for the benefit ofany other party. 

5.01 General Considerations 

A. 	 The standard of care for all professional engineering and related services performed or furnished by 
Engineer under this Agreement will be the care and skill ordinarily used by members ofthe subject 
profession practicing under similar circumstances at the same time and in the same locality. 
Engineer makes no warranties, express or implied, under this Agreement or otherwise, in 
connection with Engineer's services. Subject to the foregoing standard of care, Engineer and its 
consultants may use or rely upon design elements and information ordinarily or customarily 
furnished by others, including, but not limited to, specialty contractors, manufacturers, suppliers, 
and the publishers of technical standards. 

B. 	 Engineer shall not at any time supervise, direct, control, or have authority over any contractor's 
work, nor shall Engineer have authority over or be responsible for the means, methods, techniques, 
sequences, or procedures of construction selected or used by any contractor, or the safety 
precautions and programs incident thereto, for security or safety at the Project site, nor for any 
failure of a contractor to comply with laws and regulations applicable to such contractor's 
furnishing and performing ofits work. 

EJCDC E-S20 Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright ©2009 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved. 


Page 3 




G: 	 This Agreement is to be governed by the law of the state or jurisdiction in whish the Project is 
located. County of Bell, State of Texas. 

D. 	 Engineer neither guarantees the perfonnance of any contractor nor assumes responsibility for any 
contractor's failure to furnish and perfonn its work in accordance with the contract between Owner 
and such contractor. Engineer is not responsible for variations between actual construction bids or 
costs and Engineer's opinions or estimates regarding construction costs. 

E. 	 Engineer shall not be responsible for the acts or omissions of any contractor, subcontractor, or 
supplier, or of any of their agents or employees or of any other persons (except Engineer's own 
employees) at the Project site or otherwise furnishing or performing any construction work; or for 
any decision made regarding the construction contract requirements, or any application, 
interpretation, or clarification ofthe construction contract other than those made by Engineer. 

F. 	 The general conditions fer any construction contract doeuments prepared hereunder are to be the 
"8tandard General Conditions of the Construction Contract" as prepared by the Engineers Joint 
Contract Documents Committee (EJCDC C 700, 2007 Edition) unless the parties agree otherwise. 

G. 	 All documents prepared or furnished by Engineer are instruments of service, and Engineer retains 
an ovmership and property interest (including the copyright and the right of reuse) in sush 
documents, whether or not the Project is completed. Ovmer shall have a limited license to use the 
documents on the Project, extensions of the Project, and fer related uses of the Owner, subject to 
receipt by Engineer of full payment for all services relating to preparation of the doeuments and 
subject to the follO'vving limitations: (1) O\vner acknov,rJ.edges that such documents are not intended 
or represented to be suitable fer use on the Project unless completed by Engineer, or fer use or reuse 
by OVlner or others on extensions of the Project, on any other project, or for any other use or 
purpose, without vnitten verification or adaptation by Engineer; (2) any such use or reuse, or any 
modification of the documents, without vnitten verification, completion, or adaptation by Engineer, 
as appropriate for the specific purpose intended, '""ill be at Ovmer's sole risk and without liability or 
legal exposure to Engineer or to its officers, directors, members, partners, agents, employees, and 
consultants; (3) Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless Engineer and its officers, directors, 
members, partners, agents, employees, and consultants from all claims, damages, losses, and 
expenses, including attorneys' fees, arising out of or resulting from any use, reuse, or modification 
of the doeuments without written verification, completion, or adaptation by Engineer; and (4) such 
limited license to Owner shall not create any rights in third parties. All reports, tables, figures, 
drawings, specifications, boring logs, field data, field notes, laboratory test data, calculations, 
estimates and other documents prepared by the Engineer as instruments of service shall be 
property of the Owner. The Owner shall be entitled to copies or reproducible sets of any of 
the aforesaid. 

H. 	 To the fullest extent permitted by law, Owner and Engineer (1) waive against each other, and the 
other's employees, officers, directors, agents, insurers, partners, and consultants, any and all claims 
for or entitlement to special, incidental, indirect, or consequential damages arising out of, resulting 
from, or in any way related to the Project, and (2) agree that Engineer's total liability to Owner 
under this Agreement shall be limited to $50,000 or the total amount of compensation received by 
Engineer, whichever is greater, except in the case of negligence on the part of the Engineer. 

EJCDC E-S20 Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright ©2009 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved. 


Page 4 




I. 	 The parties acknowledge that Engineer's scope of services does not include any services related to a 
Hazardous Environmental Condition (the presence of asbestos, PCBs, petroleum, hazardous 
substances or waste as defined by the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and 
Liability Act, 42 U.S.C. §§9601 et seq., or radioactive materials). If Engineer or any other party 
encounters a Hazardous Environmental Condition, Engineer may, at its option and without liability 
for consequential or any other damages, suspend performance of services on the portion of the 
Project affected thereby until Owner: (1) retains appropriate specialist consultants or contractors to 
identify and, as appropriate, abate, remediate, or remove the Hazardous Environmental Condition; 
and (2) warrants that the Site is in full compliance with applicable Laws and Regulations. 

J. 	 Owner and Engineer agree to negotiate each dispute between them in good faith during the 30 days 
after notice of dispute. If negotiations are unsuccessful in resolving the dispute, then the dispute 
shall be mediated. Ifmediation is unsuccessful, then the parties may exercise their rights at law. 

6.01 Total Agreement 

A. 	 This Agreement (including any expressly incorporated attachments), constitutes the entire 
agreement between Owner and Engineer and supersedes all prior written or oral understandings. 
This Agreement may only be amended, supplemented, modified, or canceled by a duly executed 
written instrument. 

7.01 Basis ofPayment-Lump Sum 

A. 	 Using the procedures set forth in Paragraph 2.01, Owner shall pay Engineer as follows: 

1. A Lump Sum amount of$ 335,388.75 

B. 	 The portion of the compensation amount billed monthly for Engineer's services will be based upon 
Engineer's estimate of the percentage of the total services actually completed during the billing 
period. 

7.01 Basis qfPayment Hourly Rates :Plus Reimbursehle Expenses 

A. 	 Using the procedures set forth in PaI'agraph 2.01, Ov/ner shall pay Engineer as follows: 

1. 	 l\n amount equal to the cumulative hours chaI'ged to the Proj ect by each class ofEngineer's 
employees times standard hourly rates for each applicable billing class for all services 
performed on the Project, pills reimbursable expenses and Engineer's consultants' chaI'ges, 
iHn;7 

2. 	 Engineer's Standard Hourly Rates aI'e attached as Appendix 1. 

3. 	 The total compensation for services and reimbursable expenses is estimated to be $__. 

[or] 

EJCDC E-520 Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright ©2009 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved. 

5 

http:335,388.75


7.01 BtlSis o.f ....%yment Per'Centage a/Construction Cost 

A. Using the procedures set forth in Paragraph 2.01, Owner shall pay Engineer as follows: 

1. 	 An amount equal to __ percent of the cost to construct the v;ork designed or specified by 
the Engineer ("Construction Cost"). This amount includes compensation for Engineer's 
Services and services of Engineer's consultants, if any. The percentage of Construction 
Costs noted herein accounts for labor, overhead, profit, and reimbursable expenses. 

2. 	 As a basis for payment to Engineer, Construction Cost will be based on one or more of the 
follO'Yving determinations 'lAth precedence in the order listed: 

a. 	 For work designed or specified by Engineer and incorporated in the completed Project, 
the actual final cost of the "'lork performed by Contractor. 

b. 	 For work designed or specified by Engineer but not constructed, the lowest bona fide 
bid received from a qualified bidder for such work; or, if the work is not bid, the lowest 
bona fide negotiated proposal or contractor's estimate for such work. 

c. 	 For work designed or specified but not constructed, upon which no bid, proposal, or 
estimate is received, Engineer's most recent opinion ofprobable Construction Cost. 

B. 	 The portion of the compensation amount billed monthly for Engineer's services 'iVill be based upon 
Engineer's estimate of the percentage of the total services actually completed during the billing 
period. 

[or} 

7.01 	 Basis a/Payment-Direct Labor Costs Times Factor, Plus Reimbursables 

A Using the procedures set forth in Paragraph 2.01, Owner shall pay Engineer as follov;s: 2 i.. 

1. 	 An amount equal to Engineer's Direct Labor Costs times a factor of __ for services of 
Engineer's employees engaged on the Project, plus reimbursable expenses, and Engineer's 
consultants' charges, if any. 

2. 	 The total compensation for services and reimbursable expenses is estimated to be $__. 

7.02 	 Additional Services: For additional services of Engineer's employees engaged directly on the 
Project, Owner shall pay Engineer an amount equal to the cumulative hours charged to the Project 
by each class of Engineer's employees times standard hourly rates for each applicable billing class; 
plus reimbursable expenses and Engineer's consultants' charges, if any. Engineer's standard hourly 
rates are attached as Appendix 1 Exhibit A, ATTACHMENT C. 

EJCDC E-520 Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright ©2009 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved. 


Page 6 




7.03 Miscellaneous Provisions: 

The Engineer shall at its own expense maintain in effect during the term of this contract the 
following insurance with limits as shown or greater: 

1. General Liability (including automobile) - combined single limit of $2,000,000.00. 
, The Owner shall be named as an Additional Insured and be given a 30 day notice of 

cancellation, non-renewal, or significant change of coverage. Engineer's insurance 
shall be written on a "primary" basis. 
2. Worker's Compensation - statutory limit. 
3. Professional Liability for protection against claims arising out of performance of 
professional services caused by negligent error, omission, or act in the amount of 
$2,000,000.00. 
4. The Engineer shall provide Certificates of Insurance indicating the aforesaid 
coverage upon request of the Owner. 

EJCDC E-520 Short Form ofAgreement Between Owner and Engineer Cor ProCessional Services. 

Copyright ©2009 National Society oC ProCessional Engineers Cor EJCDC. All rights reserved. 


Page 7 


http:2,000,000.00
http:2,000,000.00


Attachments: Attachment Appendix 1, Engineer's Standard Hourly Rates {Exchtde Appendix 1, 
Engineer's Standard Hourly Rates, only if hourly rates are not to be used for either basic 
compensation (paragraph 7.01) or additional sep/ices (Paragraph 7.02)} 

{Itemize any other attachments that will be part o/the Agreement}. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement, the Effective Date of 
which is indicated on page 1. 

OWNER: 

By: ~.fl. ;i-.vv* 
Title: CJv; I1r 

:~GmE~ 
Title: llL.$ld~4 f: 

Date Signed: _----'-'{1-=-1.........,1..f-..:..:..n-'-.s_____ Date Signed: II/3D/Is'"
• 

Engineer License or Firm's Certificate 
Number: r:... 51 0 

State of: :t;." A: > 

Address for giving notices: 

fa box \20 
Address for giving notices: 

Dot SI'XNf'1, !Yl41~ 

EJCDC E-S20 Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright ©2009 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved. 


PageS 




KASBERG, PATRICK & ASSOCIATES, LP 
CONSULTING ENGINEERS 
Texas Finn F-510 . 

Temple RICK N. KASBERG, P.E. Georgetown . 
One South Main Street R. DAVlDPATRICK, P.E., CFM 1008 South Main Street 
Temple, Texas 76501 THOMAS D. VALLE, P.E. GeorgetOwn, Texas 78626 
(254) 773-3731 GINGER R. TOLBERT, P.E. (512) 819-9478 

ALVlN R. "TRAE" SUTTON, m, P.E., eFM 

September 18, 2015 

Mr. James Billeck, P.E. 
Project Engineer 
3210 E. Avenue H 
Building A 
Temple, Texas 76501 

Re: 	 Cities of Temple and Belton 
Temple-Belton Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Phase I -- New Headworks and Biological Treatment Improvements Proposal 

Dear Mr. Billeck: 

This letter is in response to your requ~st for a proposal to perform civil, mechanical, process, 
electrical, instrumentation and controls, structural and geotechnical engineering services required for 
the construction of a new headworks facility and modifications to the existing Orbal Biological 
Reactor to restore its biological capacity to 10 MGD. The Temple-Belton Wastewater Treatment 
Plant Preliminary Engineering Report dated November 2012 details the population, flow and loading 
projections and associated improvements to allow the treatment facility to meet Year 2040 demands. 
The recommended headworks improvements are included in Section 4 of the referenced report. 

Kasberg, Patrick & Associates was commissioned by the Cities of Temple and Belton in the fall of 
2011 to perform' a preliminary engineering report to define the parameters for and recommend 
improvements to meet the facility's Year 2040 demand. The report includes a phased construction 
plan. Phase I consists of ,constructing a new headworks facility including fme screens and grit 
removal units. Phase I also includes the necessary electrical modifications to allow for the full 
operation of the disc aerators and the additional floating aerators installed over the past several 
summers. The additional aerators were added by the plant operations staff (Brazos River Authority) 
to address biologicalload41gs in excess of the design capacity of the Orbal units. 

This proposal includes the necessary professional services required to perform the following tasks 
which are further detailed in Attachment A, Task Identification: 

1. 	 Task 1 - Basis of Design - Hydraulic Analysis, Orbal Aeration, Phosphorus Removal and 
Geotechnical 

a. 	 Detailed Hydraulic Analysis 
b. 	Preliminary Design of Additional Aeration at Existing Orbal 
c. 	 Preliminary Analysis of Phosphorus Removal 
d. 	 Geotechnical Engineering 

2. 	 Task 2 - Phase I Final Design (Headworks, Odor Control and Address Orbal Capacity): 
a. 	 Headworks facility including septage receipt, rotary drum fine screens, vortex grit 

removal and odor control. The entire structure will be designed with 75% of the fme 
screens and grit removal equipment installed; 



Mr. James Billeck, P.E. 
September 18,2015 
Page Two 

b. Interconnect piping (from headworks to Orbal and extend Shallowford and Friar's 
Creek Force Mains to headworks) 


c, Orbal Biological Treatment Aeration Improvements 

d. Electrical Improvements I Modifications 
e. Structural design 


3,· Task 3 - Phase II Final Design (4 MGD Plant Expansion - IFAS) 

a. IFAS Expansion 
b. Clarifier 
c. Pump Stations (RAS and WAS) 
d. Gravity Thickener 
e. Interconnect piping and appurtenances 

4. Task 4 - Phase I Bid Services to competitively bid Task 2 plans and recommend a contractor .. 

Please note that Tasks I, 2 and 4 are related to the fmal design and bidding of Phase I 
Improvements. Task 3 is related to the fmal design of Phase II. It is not anticipated that Phase II 
will be constructed immediately upon completion of the design portion of this contract. As such, bid 
services related to Phase II have not been included in this proposal. Likewise, this proposal does not 
include any services related to construction administration, on-site representation, warranty services 
or O&M manual preparation for either Phase I or Phase II Improvements. 

In order for us to provide the engineering services required for completion of this project, as noted 
in this proposal and further described in the referenced Temple-Belton Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Expansion Preliminary Engineering Report, the lump sum fees shown below and summarized on 
Attachment B - Proposed Engineering Charges will be applicable. These services will be provided 
during the fmal design and bid phases of the project. 

Basic Services: 

Task 1 - Basis of Design = $ 244,200 

Task 2 - Final Design Phase I = $ 1,065,290 

Task 4 - Bidding Phase 1 = $ 32,065 

Total Basic Services = $ 1,341,555 


Additional Services 

Task 3 - Final Design Phase II = $ 943,205 

Total Additional Services = $ 943,205 


Total Professional Services = $ 2,284,760 

These services are based on the scope and timeline included in this proposal. Attachment C outlines 
the rates which would be used to charge for special or additional services authorized beyond the 
scope described herein. Likewise, reductions in scope will utilize the rates in Attachment C to 
determine associated reductions in fee. Attachment D includes the Opinion of Probable Construction 
Costs for the various components of the project as summarized below. Please note that Items 5, 18 
and 20 within Attachment D were added to the base Headworks OPC to account for interconnect 
piping and electrical modifications to the Orbal. Final OPCs will be prepared once construction 
plans are completed and prior to beginning the bidding phase. 



Mr. James Billeck, P.E. 
September 18, 2015 
Page Three 

Opinion of Probable Construction Costs 

Phase I 
Headworks 	 $ 5,607,788 

Orbed Modifications 	 $ 6,080,000 

Phase I Subtotal $ 11;687,788 

Contingency $ 1,762,212 

Phase I Total $ 13,450,000 

Phase n 
IFAS Treatment Train $ 7,677,900 

Phase II Subtotal $ 7,677,900 

Contingency $ 1,535,580 

Phase n Total $ 9,200,000 

The following schedule details each component of this proposal: 

• 	 Basis of Design = 4 Months 
• 	 Final Design Phase I (Task 2) = 10 Months, beginning 2 months into the Preliminary Design 
• 	 Final Design Phase II (Task 3) = 12 Months, independent of Preliminary Design and Final 

Design of Task 2. Please note that an uncontested major amendment to the discharge permit 
could require up to 15 months from submittal to final permit approval by TCEQ. The 
amended permit is required prior to beginning Phase n Construction and is the critical 
path for expansion of the treatment process. 

• 	 Bidding & Construction A ward = 3-4 Months 
• 	 Construction Phase I Improvements = 10 - 14 Months 
• 	 Construction Phase II Improvements = 15 - 18 Months 

From the schedule outlined above, the fmal design plan sets included in Task 2 will be ready for 
submittal to TCEQ within 12 months from the notice to proceed. 

We appreciate the opportunity to submit this proposal and are available to discuss it in more detail at 
your convenience. 

Thomas D. Valle, P.E. 

TDV, RNKI 

TBWWTP Proposal 



Attachment A 

Cities of Temple and Belton 


Temple-Belton Wastewater Treatment Plant 

Phase I 


New Headworks and Biological Treatment Improvements 


TASK IDENTIFICATION 

For 


ENGINEERING SERVICES 


September 2015 


TASK 1 - BASIS OF DESIGN 

1.1 	 Conduct Detailed Hydraulic Analysis and Develop Hydraulic Profiles for Phased Expansion 
ofWWTP. 

i. 	 Phase I - New Headworks with New Pipe Connection to Existing ORBAL Treatment 
System, Ch Disinfection & Cascade Aeration. 

ii. 	 Phase IT - New Headworks with Phase I Facilities plus New Pipe Connection to New 
IFAS (Train 1) Treatment System, Ch Disinfection & Cascade Aeration. 

iii. 	 Phase ill - Phase I and Phase II Facilities plus New Pipe Connection to New IFAS 
(Train 2) Treatment System, New Disc Filters, New UV Disinfection System, New 
Parshall Flume and New Cascade Aeration. Including necessary sizing and equipment 
investigation of Filters and UV systems. 

IV. 	 Hydraulic Design of Ultimate Plant Layout and individual Phases. 

1.2 	 Preliminary Design of Additional Aeration at Existing Orbal (Restore to 10 MGD a 23,000 
lbs/day Biological Capacity). 

i. 	 Review existing aeration supply capabilities. 

ii. 	 Review existing aeration pilot study historical operational data (conducted during 
Summer 2015). 

iii. 	 Assist BRA to perform DO profile measurements in ORBAL basin and evaluate DO 
profiles 

iv. 	 Recommend additional aeration required to treat 10 MGD of wastewater at PER 
design strength including sizing and exhibits detailing the layout of additional blowers, 
piping and air delivery method. 

v. 	 Recommend electrical service and MCC improvements associated with increased 
power requirements for additional aeration. 

vi. 	 Prepare opinion of probable cost for recommended improvements. 

vii. 	 Advance coordination with TCEQ on requirements for approval of variance on 
ORBAL organic loading 

TBWWTP Phase I Scope Page 1 



1.3 Preliminary Analysis of Phosphorus Removal 

i. 	 Investigate chemical and biological methods for future phosphorus removal for both 
ORBAL and IFAS treatment trains. 

ii. 	 Prepare site layouts and opinions of probable constructio~ costs (OPCs) for each 
method investigated (for each of the treatment processes). 

iii. 	 Prepare technical memorandum detailing phosphorus removal recommendations. 

·1.4 Geotechnical Engineering 

i. 	 Obtain soil borings at the following locations: 

a. 	 Headworks, 1 bore 


b. 	 Biological Reactors, 2 bores 


c. 	 Clarifiers, 2 bores 


d. UV Disinfection Basin, 1 bore 


This scope includes the necessary work to allow .a clear area for bores to be taken. 


ii. 	 Conduct laboratory testing on samples that are representative of materials obtained 
during the field exploration. The tests will be used to evaluate and classify the soils, 
identify subsurface site characteristics, and provide data for analysis. These tests 
include: 

a. 	 Atterberg limits (liquid and plastic limits, 30 tests maximum) 

b. 	 Percent passing No. 200 sieve (50tests maximum) 

c. 	 Unconfined compressive strength (40 tests maximum) 

d. 	 Water Content and Dry Unit Weight 

iii. 	 Engineering Analysis and Report-- An engineering analysis and evaluation of the field 
and laboratory data will be performed for the project, based on available project 
concepts. The report will include: 

a. 	 Plan of borings illustrating the approximate location of each boring and scale to 
which the drawing is made. 

b. 	 A log of each boring indicating the boring number, depth of each stratum, soil 
classification and description, and groundwater information. 

c. 	 Description of the field exploration and laboratory testing. 

d. 	 Summary of laboratory test results. 

e. 	 Discussion of subsurface soil and groundwater conditions. 

f. 	 General discussion of the site geology. 

g. 	 Calculated potential vertical rise (PVR) for structures. 

h. 	 Recommendations for foundation types, depths, and allowable bearing pressures. 

i. 	 Lateral earth pressures for below-grade structures. 

j. 	 Seismic geotechnical criteria 

k. 	 Earthwork recommendationS 

TBWWTP Phase I Scope Page 2 



iv. Structural Engineer's review of Geotechnical Engin~ering Analysis and Report 

TASK 2 - FINAL DESiGN PHASE SERVICES FOR HEADWORKS, ODOR CONTROL 
SYSTEM AND BIOLOGICAL TREATMENT IMPROVEMENTS (pHASE I): 

2.1 	 30% Drawings and Specifications - Engineer shall perform services for the 30% design 
review submittal of Contract Documents for the following: 

i. 	 Headworks (Entire structure, only 75 %of equipment) 

a. Civil and Mechanical Design 

b. Odor Control 

c. Structural 

d. Electrical 

ii. 	 Interconnect Piping 

a. Civil Design 

111. 	 Orbal Aeration (Expand biological treatment capacity to 10 MGD a 23,000 Ibs/day) 

a. Process and Mechanical Design 

1. Air piping calculation and sizing, layout inside Orbal Basin 

2. Blower sizing and coordination with manufacturer 

3. Blower building layout and air piping layout inside blower building 

b. Structural 

c. Electrical 

IV. 	 Rehabilitation of Clarifiers No. 1 and 2 

a. Process and Mechanical Design 

b. Electrical 

c. Miscellaneous Structural ModificationslRepairs 

v. 	 ElectricallMCC Building Structural Design 

VI. 	 Bi-Monthly (twice a month) Design Progress Reports detailing work completed, 
upcoming work, design questions and summarizing responses from previous design 
questions. 

Vll. 	 30% Review Meeting, Minutes Summary and Modifications 

viii. 	 Engineer shall take energy efficiency into account when reviewing and selecting 
equipment. Engineer shall include Owner in meetings with manufacturers and discuss 
advantages/disadvantages with Owner prior to preparing final specifications. 

lX. 	 Prepare 30% OPC. 

2.2 	 60% Drawings and Specifications - Engineer shall perform services for the 60% design 
_ review submittal of Contract Documents for the following: 

TBWWTP Phase I Scope Page 3 



i. Headworks (Entire structure, only 75% of equipment) 

a. Civil and Mechanical Design 

b. Odor Control 

c. Structural 

d. Electrical 

11. 	 Interconnect Piping 

a. Civil Design 

lll. 	 Orbal Aeration (Expand biological treatment capacity to 10 MGD 11 23,000 lbs/day) 

a. Process and Mechanical Design 

1. Air piping calculation and sizing, layout inside Orbal Basin 

2. Blower sizing and coordination with manufacturer 

3. Blower building layout and air piping layout inside blower building 

b. Structural 

c. Electrical 

iv. 	 Rehabilitation of Clarifiers No. 1 and 2 

a. Process and Mechanical Design 

b. Electrical 

c. Miscellaneous Structural ModificationslRepairs 

v. 	 Electrical/MCC Building Structural Design 

vi. 	 Bi-Monthly (twice a month) Design Progress Reports detailing work completed, 
upcoming work, design questions and summarizing responses from previous design 
questions. 

vii. 	 Prepare 60% OPC 

viii. 	 60% Review Meeting, Minutes Summary and Modifications 

2.3 	 90% Drawings and Specifications - KPA and it's sub-consultants will perform services for 
the 90 %design review submittal of Contract Documents consisting of conducting Review 
Meeting, Minutes Summary and Modifications to plans. 

1. Headworks (Entire structure, only 75 %of equipment) 

a. Civil and Mechanical Design 

b. Odor Control 

c. Structural 

d. Electrical 

11. 	 Interconnect Piping 

a. Civil Design 

TBWWTP Phase I Scope Page 4 



lll. 	 Orbal Aeration (Expand biological treatment capacity to 10 MGD 0 23,000 lbs/day) 

a. 	 Process and Mechanical Design 

1. 	 Air piping calculation and sizing, layout inside Orbal Basin 

2. Blower sizing and coordination with manufacturer 

·3. Blower building layout and air piping layout inside blower building 

b.' 	 Structural 

c. 	 Electrical 

iv. 	 Rehabilitation of Clarifiers No. 1 and 2 

a. 	 Process and Mechanical Design 

b. 	 Electrical 

v. ElectricallMCC Building Structural Design 

vi. 	 Bi-Monthly (twice a month) Design Progress Reports detailing work completed, 
upcoming work, design questions and sununarizing responses from previous design 
questions. 

vii. 	 90% Review Meeting, Minutes Sununary and Modifications 

viii. 	 Preparation of Final Opinion of Probable Construction Cost 

2.4 	 Agency and Utility Submittals 

i. Texas Commission on Environmental Quality Submittals and Meetings as necessary. 

a. 	 Follow up revisions / design related to TCEQ or agency review comments as 
they relate to Plan Review submittal. 

ii. 	 Electrical Service Provider. 

TASK 3 - FINAL DESIGN SERVICES FOR PHASE IT EXPANSION (IFAS TREATMENT 
TRAIN - 4MGD EXPANSION) 

3.1 	 TBWWTP IFAS Treatment Train (4 MGD IFAS basin, clarifier and associated pump stations 
and piping) 

3.2 	 30% Drawings and Specifications - Engineer shall perform services for the 30% design 
review submittal of Contract Documents for the following: 

i. IFAS Expansion (4 MGD) 

a. 	 Process and Mechanical Design 

1. 	 IFAS design 

2. 	 Air piping calculation and sizing 

3. 	 Blower sizing 

4. 	 Blower building layout 

b. 	 Structural 

TBWWTP Phase I Scope Page 5 



c. Electrical 

ii. 	 Clarifier Design 

a. Civil and Mechanical Design 

b. Structural 

c. Electrical 

iii. 	 Pump Station Design (RAS and WAS) 

a. Civil and Mechanical Design 

b. Structural 

c. Electrical 

iv. 	 Gravity Thickener 

a. Civil and Mechanical Design 

b. Structural 

c. Electrical 

v. Interconnect Piping 

vi. 	 Bi-Monthly (twice a month) Design Progress Reports detailing work completed, 
upcoming work, design questions and summarizing responses from previous design 
questions. 

vii. 	 Prepare 30% OPC 

viii. 	 30% Review Meeting, Minutes Summary and Modifications 

3.3 	 60% Drawings and Specifications - Engineer shall perform services for the 60% design 
review submittal of Contract Documents for the following: 

i. IFAS Expansion (4 MGD) 

a. Process and Mechanical Design 

1. IFAS design 

2. Air piping calculation and sizing 

3. Blower sizing 

4. Blower building layout 

b. Structural 

c. Electrical 

11. 	 Clarifier Design 

d. Civil arid Mechanical Design 

e. Structural' 

f. Electrical 

iii. 	 Pump Station Design (RAS and WAS) 

d. Civil and Mechanical Design 

TBWWTP Phase I Scope Page 6 



e. Structural 

f. Electrical 

iv. 	 Gravity Thickener 

d. Civil and Mechanical Design 

e. Structural 

f. Electrical 

v. 	 Interconnect Piping 

vi. 	 Bi-Monthly (twice a month) Design Progress Reports detailing work completed, 
upcoming work, design questions and summarizing responses from previous design 
questions. 

vii. 	 Prepare 60%OPC 

viii. 	 60% Review Meeting, Minutes Summary and Modifications 

3.4 	 90% Drawings and Specifications - KPA and its sub-consultants will perform services for the 
90% design review submittal of Contract Documents consisting of conducting Review 
Meeting, Minutes Summary and Modifications to plans. 

i. IFAS Expansion (4 MGD) 

a. Process and Mechanical Design 

1. IFAS design 

2. Air piping calculation and sizing 

3. Blower sizing 

4. Blower building layout 

b. Structural 

c. Electrical 

ii. 	 Clarifier Design 

a. Civil and Mechanical Design 

b. Structural 

c. Electrical 

ill. 	 Pump Station Design (RAS and WAS) 

a. Civil and Mechanical Design 

b. Structural 

c. Electrical 

IV. 	 Gravity Thickener 

a. Civil and Mechanical Design . 

b. Structural 

c. Electrical 

v. 	 Interconnect Piping 

TBWWTP Phase I Scope Page 7 



vi. 	 Bi-Monthly (twice a month) Design Progress Reports detailing work completed, 
upcoming work, design questions and summarizing responses from previous design 
questions. 

vii. 	 90% Review Meeting, Minutes Summary and Modifications 
viii. Preparation of Final Opinion of Probable Construction Cost 

3.5 Agency and Utility Submittals 

i. Prepare and Submit Application for Major Amendment of TPDES Permit 

ii. 	 Preparation of Final Design Report to include information from Preliminary Design. 

111. 	 Preparation of Summary Transmittal Letter 

IV. 	 Texas Commission on Environmental Quality Submittals and Meetings as necessary. 

a. 	 Follow up revisions / design related toTCEQ or agency review comments as 
they relate to Plan Review Submittal. 

v. Electrical Service Provider. 

TASK 4 - BID PHASE SERVICES (For Phase I Design Project, Task 2) 

4.1 TBWWTP Headworks & ORBAL Improvements 

a. 	 Prepare the tabulation of bid items and quantities for insertion into Contract 
Documents and Bid Schedule/Forms.. 

b. 	 Solicit bidders for the project by sending e-mails and web links and calling 
prospective contractors. 

c. 	 Provide necessary bid documents and bid solicitation information for the 
construction project. 

d. 	 Distribute bid documents and maintain a record of bidders to whom documents 
have been issued. ' 

e. 	 Coordinate, attend, and moderate pre-bid conference to be held onsite at 
TBWWTP. 

f. 	 Prepare addenda as appropriate'to interpret, clarify, or expand the bidding 
documents. 

g. 	 Attend bid opening, prepare bid tabulation sheets, and provide the following 
assistance to owner: 

1. 	 Review bids for compliance with.bid documents. Evaluate low bidder 
including workload, references and financial status and other information as 
required to support a recommendation of award. 

2. 	 Submit a written recommendation to owner detailing the bids received and the 
evaluation of the recommended bidder and any other low bidders. 

h. 	 Attend City Council Meeting at which construction contracts are awarded. 

i. 	 Prepare conformed Contract Documents incorporating addenda for owner and 
contractor. 

TBWWTP Phase I Scope Page 8 



J. Modify drawings to incorporate changes by addenda and assemble executed 
Contract Documents, Construction sets of Plans and Specifications. 

TBWWTP Phase I Scope 
Page 9 



Attachment B 

Cities of Temple and Belton 


Temple-Belton Wastewater Treatment Plant 

Phase I -- Headworks and Biological Treatment Improvements 


Proposed Engineering Charges 

September 2015 


BASIC SERVICES: 

Task 1 -- Basis of Design 
Task 2 -- Phase I Final 
Task 4 -- Phase I Bidding 

$ 
$ 
$ 

Total Basic Services $ 

244,200 
1,065,290 

32,065 
1,341,555 

Percent of Construction 9.98% 

ADDITIONAL SERVICES: 

Task 3 -- (I)Phase II Final Design (IFAS) $ 943,205 
~==========;==

Total Special Services $ 943.205 

Total $ 2,284,760 

(I)This scope and fee proposal includes preparation and submittal of the 
application for Major Amendment of the TPDES Pennit. Please note that an 
uncontested permit application could require up to 15 months from submittal 
to final permit approval by TCEQ. The amended pennit is required prior to 
beginning Phase II Construction and is the critical path for e~pansion. 

2011-132 



Attachment C 


Charges for Additional Services 


Temple-Belton Wastewater Treatment Plant 


Phase I - New Headworks and Biological Treatment Improvements 


September 2015 


POSITION 

Principal. 
Project Manager 
Project Engineer 
Engineer-in-Training 
Engineering Technician 
CAD Technician 
Clerical 
Expenses 
Computer 
Survey Crew 
Registered Public Surveyor 
On-Site Representative 

MULTIPLIER 

2.4 
2.4 
2.4 
2.4 
2.4 
2.4 
2.4 
1.1 
1.0 
1.1 
1.0 
2.1 

SALARY COST/RATES 

$ 60.00 - IlD.OO/hour 
50.00 - 70.00/hour 

. 42.00 - 50.00/hour 
32.00 -	 42.00/hour 
22.00 -	 40.00/hour 
18.00 -	 40.00/hour 
13.00 -	 35.00/hour 

actual cost 
15.00/hour· 

. 95.00 -	 120.00/hour 
lIO.OO/hour 

30.00 -	 45.00/hour 



Attachment D-l 

Cities of Temple and Belton 


Temple-Belton Wastewater Treatment Plant 

Phase I - Headworks and Electrical Modifications 


Opinion of Probable Construction Cost 

March 28, 2013 


Temple Belton Wastewater Treatment Plant - Headworks & Electrical ModlOcations 

~Hm_ Unit 

~ 
Unit Labor 

No. Material lIer Cost Labor Cost Subtotal 
51 eWork LS 

300 $ 5 $ 1,500 100~ 
S 25,000 $ 25,000 $ 50,000 

Excavallon CY $ 5 $ 1,500 $ 3,000 

3 Special Fill CY 150 r $ 20 S 3.000 100% $ 20 $ 3,000 $ 6,000 

4 Backfill LS 1 $ 3,000 $ 3,000 100% $ 3,000 $ 3,000 $ 6,000 

5 Landscaping ~ 1 $ 25,000 $ 25,000 100% $ 25,000 $ 25.000 $ 50.000 

MATERIAL SUBTOTAL: S 57.500 LABOR SUBTOTAL: $ 57,500 
SUBTOTAL SITEWORK: $ 115,000 

~ Concrete· 6 Concrete (slab on grade) CY 50 $ 250 $ $ 150 $ 7,500 $ 20.000 
7 Concrete (elevated slab) CY .250 $ 250 $ S 250 $ 62,500 $ 125.000 

Concrete (formed walls, 
8 channels etc.) cY 500 $ 250 $ 125,000 90"" S 225 $ 112,500 $ 237,500 

MATERIAL SUBTOTAL: $ 200,000 LABOR SUBTOTAL: S 182,500 
SUBTOTAL CONCRETE: $ 382,500 

Metals 9 Misc. Melals/Handrails LS 1 $ 150,000 1$ 150,000 50% 1$ 75.000 $ 75,000 $ 225,000 
MATERIAL SUBTOTAL: I S 150,000 LABOR SUBTOTAL: S' 75,000 

SUBTOTAL METALS: $ 225,000 

Anishes 10 Epoxy Coating I SF I 14,000 I $ 121 $ 168,000 I 50% 1$ 61$ 84,000 $ 252,000 
MATERIAL SUBTOTAL: $ 168,000 LABOR SUBTOTAL: $ . 84,000 

SUBTOTAL FINISHES: $ 252,000 

I !'Iolary urum Screens I 
384.000Specialties 11 w/Conveyor EA 4 $ 1. % $ 91,000 $ $ 1,404,000 

. [vortex Grit Removal 
12 Systems EA 4 $ 200,000 $ 800,000 50% $ 100,000 $ 400,000 $ 1,200,000 

MATERIAL SUBTOTAL: $ 1,840,000 LABOR SUBTOTAL: $ 764,000 
SUBTOTAL SPECIALTIES: $ 2,604,000 

Mechanical 13 S" Oia. 01 Pipe LF 400 $ 60 $ 24,000 35% $ 21 $ 8,400 $ 32,400 
14 30" ola. Of Pipe LF 100 $ 170 $ 17.000 35% $ 60 $ 5,950 $ 22.950 
15 30' Plug Valve EA 4 $ 15,000 $ 60,000 70% $ 10,500 S 42,000 $ 102,000 
16 Weir Gates 5' x 2.S' EA 5 $ 9,000 $ 45,000 70% $ 6,300 $ 31,500 $ 76,500 

17 Weir Gates 4' x 4' EA 6 $ 7.000 $ 42,000 70% $ 4,900 $ 29.400 $ 71,400 
18 Interconnect Piping LS 1 S 260,000 000 35% $ 91,000 S 91.000 S 351,000 

MATERIAL SUBTOTAL: $ 448,000 LABOR SUBTOTAL: $ 208,250 
SUBTOTAL MECHANICAL: $ 656,250 

Electrical ~&Con 1 1$ 180,000 $ 180,000 70% 1$ 126,000 1$ 126,000 $ 306,000 
&BuU LS 1 $ 500,000 $ 450,000 70% $ ~ 350,000 $ 800,000 

MATERIAL SUBTOTAL: $ 630,000 LABORSUBTO 476,000 
SUBTOTAL ELECTRICAL: $ 1,106,000 

MATERIAL TOTAL: $3,493,500.00 LABOR TOTAL: $1,847,250.00 
Subtotal: $ 5.340,750 

Mobilimtion, Bonds & Insurance (5%): $ 267,038 
Subtotal: $ 5.607,788 

Contingency 15%@PreliminaryOesign: $ 841,168 
Total EstImated Cost: $ 6.448.956 

Items 5.18 and 20 (lotallng $1.381.150 Including contingency) have been added to the TM4.2 OPClo account for Interconnect piping and electrical modifications to 
the Orbal. Including the addition of a generator. 

Phase I Proposal March 28, 2013 



Af~j).dfu"l.el1f" \)-Z 
P-HJl:.se 1: 

TEMPLE BELTON WWTP EXPANSION AND UPGRADE 
PRELIMINARY CONSTRUCTION COST ESTIMATE 

Project: OBRAL System Upgrade AECOM 
AECOM Job No.: 60340989 400 West 15th Street. S!Jite 600 
Date: 3113/15 Austin. Texas 78701 
Prepared By: Behnoush Yeganeh Phone: (512) 472-4519 
Fife Name: Preliminary Fax: (512) 472-7519 

ObJective: 
Summarize theeslimated construction costs for the Temple Belton WWTP Expansion Project. 

TEMPl.E BELTON WWTP EXPANSION AND UPGRADE (Orbal·Bosman) 
Plant Area Material! Complete Costs Labor Cost Total 

Biological Reactors :(800 ope b.2a) $ 2.287,200 $ 1.068,200 $ 3.355,400 

Process Air Btowers (See·ope O-2b) $ 1.456,800 $ 224,500 '$ 1,681,300 

Clarifiers (SooOPC O.2c) $ 223,800 S 72.500 $ 296,300 

Subtotal: $ 5,333,000 

Contractor's Overhead & Profit (12%): $ 640,000 

Bonds & Insurance (2%): $ 107,000 

Subtotal: $ .. 6,080,000 

Continaency 15% @ Preliminary: $ 912.000 

Total Estimated Cost: $ '6,992,000 

http:P-HJl:.se


teMPLE BELTON WWTP EXPANSION AND UPGRADE 
PRELIMINARY CONSTRUCTION COST ESTIMATE 

Project: 
AECOM Job No.: 
Dale: 
Prepared By; 
FUe Name: 

OBRAt System Upgrade 
60340989 
3/13116 
Behnoush Veguneh 
PrelimInary 

AECOM 
400 West 1SIIl Street. Suite 601) 
Austin, Te)(ll5 78701 
Phone: (512) 472-4519 
Fill(: (512) 472-7519 

Qb'oct!w: 
Summarize lIle ostlmaled conslluctlon costs fDr lIle Temple Bellon WWTP Expansion Project 

Tem )18 !ilOllOn ' !VWl1' - 9I'!!l I Reactore (lilosn lanl 
DIvision ':::. Unit Qty. 

COAt 'w. 
Malorlal :last M~:::.r. I U, It Labor Coat LabDreo.t Subtol 

~creCka In t:XtenorVYall IF 200 $ 75 

! 
lI> i,!)!!ru 

I and sealant LS 1 $ 10.000 $ ),IlIJIl 

Install stainless alefll braclna. I walkwav LS 1 $ 10.000 $ 1.000 

MA" RIAL SUB' OTAI. S 35.000 BORSUBT rAL $ -
SUBTOTAl. i 103000): $ 36,000 

,9-FlnISlleS I PlDe Paint LS $ 1$ 10,!lll\' $ 10.001) $ $ 'U.OQ~ $ lU.UUU is 20.000 

I 
J J J 

MATel t!A1. SUBTOTAl. $ 10,000 LA! DR $ 10.000 
SUST\: rALFI NISHI:S 1011000': S 20.000 

I IAeratlon panels EA 797 $ 2,010J $ 1.601.970 35%1 $ 704R1Hll' 
2.162,660 

J IFlow MeW!'1Dr air I EAI 3 1$ 

~ 
30.000 35%1 $ 3.500.DU $ 

I rotary dlscs LS 1 $ 20.000 50%1 is 10.000,00 $ $ 

,SUBTOTAL:I $ 1.651.970 :.ABORSUB" rAL IS .ts 
IAl1' Piping· 55"h PIpIng cost of • IlnlFAS LS 1 $ 523.726 $ 523.126 $ 476.9961 IS 476.996 $ I,QOO.72l! 

• SUBTC rAL:1 $ 523.126 ~476'996 
. (160001: IS 

IElecltical lana 1/(: atOlbal ,LS :5 1I1I.l>U!.l1 :5 611.:;UUI $ -I $ $ $ 66.500 

OIAl:1 $ 66.500 :.ABOR SUB' OTAL $ -
,EL (160001: $ 6D,WO 

I 
...,. J ..,,""'. TOTAL: $ 2,2111,196 LA60K TOT~!-: $ 1.068.185 

I TOTAL ORBAL • :5 a.365.aU" 



TEMPLE BELTON WWTP EXPANSIONAHO UPGRADE 
PAELlMINARY CONSTRUCllON COST E5nMATE 

Projctl, OBML S,_lom UPO""!. AECOM 
AECOM lob No.: 60340888 400 W ••1151h SlnIol suns 600 
Cole: 311:1115 Au""'" To..G 78701 
Prepared By: BohnOlllh Veg"neb PhcII.: (512)472-4519 
FHeName: ProIlmlnarv FOlIl (5121472,7$19 

~lIIel"'" 
Dlvl.l"" JI~: I O••crlpdon 

ICo_to - ~5'laIT 

UnlI 

;y 61 S 450 $ 27.500 
Sub'ft'" 

~I S ,I S $ 27.500 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~s~27.SQO 

I 
I 

12" 

SF 

tI 
EA 

!.:> 

!.:> 

/20 l> 

1.100 IS 

:; 

15.201 II 

~.90 $ 

1].00 S 
4.'5 II 

S 

6,000 $ 

MATERIAl. SUST' TACI S 

211,1441 

5,300 

14.300 
4,185 

6,000 

6.000 

~II, II 

4 II 85.000 $ 340.0001 
S 12~ 

$ 352.354 

II 1,3UU ,II 1.~1 

MAJl!RlAl S ,31!8 

1 S 87:,.3001 II 

S SlUDa 

MATERIAL TOTAL $ IJlliU.770 

:.15'101 li !j.~21 .$ 9,1501 $ 

~TAI.SI05OOll1:1 $ 

.0'101 $ 

0%1 s 

.ANC MOIS11 

6,000 1$ 

s 
:; 

$ 
:; 

6.000 1$ 

I.A/lOR: $ 6.000.00 1 
S 

\IT8l,;1 :; 
,TOTAL S 

35'101 $ 211.150 II 119.100 II 
7Q'liol II II .$ 

S 127.848 
SUBTOTAL $ 

II SI.!l4ol II 57.IJ4QI II 

~ 57,8401 

$ - II so 

LABOR s 

LAIIOR TOTAL S 224,50l 
TOTAL IIWweR aUIWING: S 

35,2~ 

14.300 
4.765 

24.475 

12.000 

24.200 

~ 
480.002 

16~.i!!!~ 

8, !,300 

l.tiSl.Z1J 



TEMPLE BELTON WwrP EXPANSION AND UPGRADE 
PREUMINARY CONSTRUCTION COST ESl1MATE 

Project: oaRAL Syslem Upgrade AECOM 
AECOM Job No.: 60340989 400 West 15th Streel, Suite 600 
Dale: 3/2115 Auslln, Texas 78701 
Prepared By: Bebnouah Yeganeb Phone: (512)472-4519 
Design Slagll: Preliminary Fax: (512)472-7519 

Oblectlye; 
Summarize Ihe esllmated construction costs for the Temple Belton WWTP Expal1$lon Project, to upgrade exisUng ORBAL system to Iraal10 MGD of plenllnfiuanl, based on VE recommendaUons. 

Temple Belton WWTP • RaahblUlatlon of existing Clarifier No.1 or 2 
DivisIon litem I Description I Unit Qll'. UnIt Malerlal 

~ 
No. Cost Material Cost nit labor Cost Labor Cost Subtotal 

~Concrele I IEpoxy Coating· EldsUng Clariller No.1 or 2 I SF 3523 $ 12 $ 42270 $ - $ S 4227 

MATERIAL SUBTOTAL: $ 42270 AL: $ . 
$ 42270 

5-Mela!s Stairs. ladders, hamlralls LS ~ 1 $ 10.000 $ 10,OOOJ 50%1 $ 5.000 $ 50qg $ 15,00 
I J J J 

MATERIAL SUBTOTAL: $ 10,000 I LABOR SUBTOTAL:I $ 5000 
SUBTOTAL METALS 1060001: $ 15000 

9-Finiahes Pill8coatlno LS 1 S 10.000 $ 10.000 100% $ 10.000 $ 10,000 $ 20,000 
J J 1 

MATERIALSUBTOTAL:J $ 10,000 LAB~ 10000 
ES 090001: $ 2000 

1O-Specialties effiuenllrough weirs, scum baflles spay sySlm LS 1 is 25000 S 25,000 50% S 12,500 $ 12,500 $ 3750il 

MATERIAL SUBTOTAL: $ 25,000 LABOR SUBTOTAL: $ 12500 
SUBTOTAL SPECIALl1ES 1100001: $ 37500 

11·eq\llpment Clarifiers 65' OIa. Ea 1 is 100.000 is 100,000 35% S 35000 $ 35.000 $ 135,000 

MATERIAL SUBTOTAL: is 100.000 LABOR SUBTOTAL: $ ~ 
SUBTOTAL EQUIPMENTJ1 136,000 

15·Machanlcal I l:fdlUaRal Mecl!anlcaillems (fit1lngs, piping, wall 
,!pes, supports etc.) I LS 1 $ 20,000 $ . 20,000 50% Is 10000 $ 10000 $ 30.000 

MATERIAL SUBTOTAL: $ 20000 LABOR S 10,000 
SUBTOTAL 1..115000 : $ 3000 

16-Eleclrlcal Electdcal Equlpment- 10% of Equimont LS 1 $ 16,500.00 $ 16,500 0% $ - $ - S 16,500 
$ - ~s 

$ 
MATERIAL SUBTOTAL: S 16500 

TRICAL 16000: $ 16.60 
I 

MATeRIAL TOTAL: $ 223,770.13 LABOR TOTAL: $ 72,500.00 
I TOTAL CLARIFIERS: $ 296.270 



A~~.y ~-3 


~AfB1L 


TEMPLE BELTON WWTP EXPANSION AND UPGRADE 
ENGINEER'S PREUMINARY OPINION OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST. COMPARISON 

Project: TBWWTP EXPANSION AND UPGRADE AECOM 
AECOM Job No.: 60340969 400 West 15th Street, Suile 500 
Date: 4/8/2015 Austin, Texas 78701 
Prepared By: Behnoush Yeganeh Phone: (512) 472-4519 
FileName: TM 5 Phased IFAS_rev040115.xlsx Fax: (512) 472·7519 
Design Stage: PreliminarY Engineering 

Objective: 
SummariZe the estimated comparative costs for the Temple Belton VWVTP Expansion Project· Singl,e IFAS Train 4 MGD 

Option l' Without EO basin 

Biological Reactors 

Plant Area 
TEMPLE BELTON WWTP EXPANSION AND UPGRADE (lFAS) 

Material Cost Labor Cost 

$ 2,250,000 S 550,000 S 

Total 

2,800,000 

Process Air Blowers S 540,000 $ 160,000 $ 1.440,000 

Clarifier ·125' Diameter $ 1.420,000 $ 220,000 $ 1,640,000 i 

Additional Cost for a larger 149' Clarifier to eliminate EO Basin S 260.000 $ 30,000 S 290,000 

RASN>lAS Pump Station $' 500,000 

Orbal Repair $ 55,000 S 10.000 $ 65,000 

Subtotal: S 6,735,000 

Con/raclors Overhead &Profit (12%1: $ 808.200 

Bonds &Insurance (2%): $ 134,700 

Subtotal: S 7.677,900 

Conlinoency 15% (For comparison to ViZ RaDOlf review only) $ 1:151.665 

Total Estimated Cost: $ 8,830,000 

Option 2'.With EO basin 
TEMPLE BELTON WWTP EXPANSION AND UPGRADE IFAS 

PlantAres Material Cost Labor Cost Total 

Biological Reactors 5 2,250,000 S 550,000 S 2,800,000 

Process Air Blowers S 540,000 $ 160,000 $ 1,440,000 

Clarifier. 125' Diameter $ 1.420.000 5 220,000 S 1,640.000 

RASN>lAS Pump Station S 500.000 

Orbal Repair S 55,000 S 10,000 5 65,000 

Subtotal: $ 6,445,000 

Contraclol's Overhead &Profit (12%): S 773,400 

Bonds & Insurance (2%): $ 128,900 

Subtotal: S 7,347,300 

Continaency 15% (For comparison 10 IlE'ReDOit review on/v) S 1,102,095 

Total Estimated Cost: $ 8,450,000 

Notes: 

1) Electrical cost is increased from PER based on Electrical Engineer's estimate prepared for review ofVE report recommE;!ndaHons. 

.2) Includes cost of enclosed CMU blower building (outdoor/shed roof blower facility was assumed in PER). 

3) Estimated cost of .Flow EquaUz:ation basin is not included (approximately 5500,000 excluding OHP. Bonds/Insurance and Contingency). 

4) Estimated cost of upsizing UV and Filters for eliminating Flow Eq. Basins is not included (Estimated 51.000,000 to 51,500,000). 

51IJse of 15% contingency is for comparison'to VE report only. Conlingency of 30% should be used for budget purposes at prenminary 'ev!!', 



Attachment E 

Cities of Temple and Belton 


Temple-Belton Wastewater Treatment Plant 

Phase I -- Headworks and Biological Treatment Improvements 


Proposed Schedule 

September 2015 


2015 I 2016 2017 
Oct INov IDec lJan I Feb IMarl Apr IMayl Jun I Jul IAug I Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Au~ Sep Oct 

Basis of Design I I I I I I I I 
I I Phase I FiriaI Desb!:n, 

":.,~,,,,,,,~,~,,,...<.,,,,,,,,,1":~, "llIlase 11 f:ma1'DeSigli" 
I I I I I I I I I I I qJ;lb{JiBi'(j:~1: , "~ ~<..,.\ A 

I I I I I I I I I I I - " , ,PhaSe I construction 

Nov Dec Jan ~r.-~ 

-

2011·132 





























City Council Agenda Item 
June 14, 2016 

Page 1 of 1   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
Agenda Item #15 
    
First Reading – Set Public Hearing - Consider ordinances granting a one year extension 
with two additional one-year automatic extensions, unless rescinded by City, of a franchise 
to operate and maintain a non-emergency ambulance transfer service within the public 
streets and highways of the City of Belton: 
 
A. Acadian EMS 
B. Scott & White EMS 
C. Serenity EMS, LLC, dba Ameristat Ambulance 

 
Originating Department 
 
Fire Department - Bruce Pritchard, Fire Chief  
 
Summary Information 
 
Currently, there are four non-emergency ambulance services operating in our City with a 
franchise agreement. They are Skyline EMS, Acadian EMS, Scott & White EMS and 
Serenity EMS. To simplify the management of these franchises, Staff requested all agencies 
renew their franchise agreements at the same time. Additionally, we have extended the term 
of the agreements from one year to one year with two automatic one-year extensions unless 
the City rescinds the franchise. Skyline and Serenity EMS have not made runs in Temple in 
the past year; however, Serenity has requested another franchise in order to keep the 
option available to them. Skyline did not return our multiple calls regarding renewal. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
  
5% franchise fee on gross billings will be required for all calls by the applicant. 
 
Budgeted:   Yes      No 
 
Funding Source(s):  EMS Franchises 
 
Recommendation 
 
Recommend approval of franchise agreements on first reading and set public hearings with 
Acadian EMS, Scott & White EMS and Serenity EMS, for non-emergency transfers in our 
city, with a 5% fee of all billed transports. 
 
Attachments 
Proposed Franchise Ordinances 



1 
  

ORDINANCE NO.  2016-19 
 
AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A FRANCHISE TO ACADIAN EMS TO OPERATE AND 
MAINTAIN A NON-EMERGENCY AMBULANCE TRANSFER SERVICE WITHIN THE 
PUBLIC STREETS AND HIGHWAYS OF CITY OF BELTON. 
  
 

WHEREAS, Acadian EMS, (the “Company”), operates a non-emergency ambulance 
transfer service for municipalities; and  
 
 WHEREAS,  the Company seeks to provide a non-emergency ambulance transfer 
services to or from a medical facility, a nursing home, or a residence under circumstances 
which do not constitute an emergency to citizens within the City of Belton (the “City”); and  
 

WHEREAS, it is in the interest of the City and its citizens to offer the Company a non-
emergency ambulance transfer services under the terms and conditions as will provide the 
City with the controls and options necessary to provide for the public good; and  

 
 WHEREAS, the Company non-emergency ambulance transfer service franchise holder 
shall, during the life of said franchise, pay to the City of Belton at the Office of the Director of 
Finance in lawful money of the United States, the Franchise Fee as described in the Municipal 
Franchise for Public Services, Non-Emergency Ambulance Transfer Agreement attached 
hereto. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

BELTON, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Agreement. 
 
 The City of Belton hereby grants a franchise to Acadian EMS in accordance with the 
Municipal Franchise for Public Services, Non-Emergency Ambulance Transfer Agreement 
attached hereto as Exhibit “A”. 
 
Section 2.  Term. 
 

The term of this agreement shall be for a period of one (1) year beginning on the 
effective date of this agreement and may be renewed automatically for two additional one-
year periods unless franchise is rescinded by the City. 

 
Section 3.  Acceptance by Company.   
 

Within fifteen (15) days after the passage of this Franchise, the Company shall file with 
the City its acceptance of the terms and provisions of this Franchise. The acceptance shall be 
in writing on the Company’s letterhead and provide as follows: 
 



2 
  

City of Belton 
ATTN:  City Clerk 
333 Water Street 
P.O. Box 120 
Belton, Texas 76513-0120 

 
Acadian EMS (the “Company”), acting by and through the undersigned officer who is 

acting within his official capacity and authority, hereby accepts the franchise to operate a non-
emergency ambulance transfer service within the City as said franchise is set forth and 
provided in Ordinance No. 2016-19 (the “Ordinance”).  The Company agrees to be bound and 
governed by each term, provision and condition of the Ordinance, to accept and to give the 
benefits provided by the Ordinance and to perform each service and duty set forth and 
provided for in the Ordinance in a businesslike and reasonable manner and in compliance 
with the Franchise. 

 
Company:  _________________________________  

 
By: _______________________________________ 

 
Printed Name: ______________________________   

 
Title: ______________________________________ 
  
Email/Phone:________________________________ 

 
 
Section 3.  Open Meetings. 
 

It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this ordinance 
was passed was open to the public, and public notice of the time, place and purpose of said 
meeting was given, as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551, Texas Government 
Code. 
 
Section 4.  Endorsements and Records. 
 

The City Clerk is directed to make endorsements as appropriate over her/his official 
hand and the seal of the City on the form provided at the conclusion of this Franchise, for the 
public record and convenience of the citizens, of the date upon which this Franchise is finally 
passed and adopted and, if the Company accepts the Franchise, the date of such 
acceptance. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED ON THE FIRST READING THIS THE 14th DAY OF JUNE, 

2016. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED ON THE SECOND READING THIS THE 28TH DAY OF 

JUNE, 2016. 
 

 



3 
  

CITY OF BELTON 
 
 

_____________________________ 
Marion Grayson, Mayor  

ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND CONTENT: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
John Messer, City Attorney 
 

The foregoing Ordinance was passed and adopted by the City Council of the 
City of Belton, Texas, on the ______ day of _______________, 2016 by a vote 
of ____ votes for the Ordinance and ____ votes against the Ordinance. 

 
 
 ______________________________ 

Notary Public in and for the 
State of Texas 
 
 

 
_____________________________ accepted the foregoing Franchise by 
written instrument filed on the ______ day of _____________________, 2016. 

 
 
 ______________________________ 

Notary Public in and for the 
State of Texas       



1 
  

ORDINANCE NO.  2016-20 
 
AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A FRANCHISE TO SCOTT & WHITE EMS TO OPERATE 
AND MAINTAIN A NON-EMERGENCY AMBULANCE TRANSFER SERVICE WITHIN THE 
PUBLIC STREETS AND HIGHWAYS OF CITY OF BELTON. 
  
 

WHEREAS, Scott & White EMS, (the “Company”), operates a non-emergency 
ambulance transfer service for municipalities; and  
 
 WHEREAS,  the Company seeks to provide a non-emergency ambulance transfer 
services to or from a medical facility, a nursing home, or a residence under circumstances 
which do not constitute an emergency to citizens within the City of Belton (the “City”); and  
 

WHEREAS, it is in the interest of the City and its citizens to offer the Company a non-
emergency ambulance transfer services under the terms and conditions as will provide the 
City with the controls and options necessary to provide for the public good; and  

 
 WHEREAS, the Company non-emergency ambulance transfer service franchise holder 
shall, during the life of said franchise, pay to the City of Belton at the Office of the Director of 
Finance in lawful money of the United States, the Franchise Fee as described in the Municipal 
Franchise for Public Services, Non-Emergency Ambulance Transfer Agreement attached 
hereto. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

BELTON, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Agreement. 
 
 The City of Belton hereby grants a franchise to Scott & White EMS in accordance with 
the Municipal Franchise for Public Services, Non-Emergency Ambulance Transfer Agreement 
attached hereto as Exhibit “A”. 
 
Section 2.  Term. 
 

The term of this agreement shall be for a period of one (1) year beginning on the 
effective date of this agreement and may be renewed automatically for two additional one-
year periods unless franchise is rescinded by the City. 

 
Section 3.  Acceptance by Company.   
 

Within fifteen (15) days after the passage of this Franchise, the Company shall file with 
the City its acceptance of the terms and provisions of this Franchise. The acceptance shall be 
in writing on the Company’s letterhead and provide as follows: 
 



2 
  

City of Belton 
ATTN:  City Clerk 
333 Water Street 
P.O. Box 120 
Belton, Texas 76513-0120 

 
Scott & White EMS (the “Company”), acting by and through the undersigned officer 

who is acting within his official capacity and authority, hereby accepts the franchise to operate 
a non-emergency ambulance transfer service within the City as said franchise is set forth and 
provided in Ordinance No. 2016-20 (the “Ordinance”).  The Company agrees to be bound and 
governed by each term, provision and condition of the Ordinance, to accept and to give the 
benefits provided by the Ordinance and to perform each service and duty set forth and 
provided for in the Ordinance in a businesslike and reasonable manner and in compliance 
with the Franchise. 

 
Company:  _________________________________  

 
By: _______________________________________ 

 
Printed Name: ______________________________   

 
Title: ______________________________________ 
  
Email/Phone:________________________________ 

 
 
Section 3.  Open Meetings. 
 

It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this ordinance 
was passed was open to the public, and public notice of the time, place and purpose of said 
meeting was given, as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551, Texas Government 
Code. 
 
Section 4.  Endorsements and Records. 
 

The City Clerk is directed to make endorsements as appropriate over her/his official 
hand and the seal of the City on the form provided at the conclusion of this Franchise, for the 
public record and convenience of the citizens, of the date upon which this Franchise is finally 
passed and adopted and, if the Company accepts the Franchise, the date of such 
acceptance. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED ON THE FIRST READING THIS THE 14th DAY OF JUNE, 

2016. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED ON THE SECOND READING THIS THE 28TH DAY OF 

JUNE, 2016. 
 

 



3 
  

CITY OF BELTON 
 
 

_____________________________ 
Marion Grayson, Mayor  

ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND CONTENT: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
John Messer, City Attorney 
 

The foregoing Ordinance was passed and adopted by the City Council of the 
City of Belton, Texas, on the ______ day of _______________, 2016 by a vote 
of ____ votes for the Ordinance and ____ votes against the Ordinance. 

 
 
 ______________________________ 

Notary Public in and for the 
State of Texas 
 
 

 
_____________________________ accepted the foregoing Franchise by 
written instrument filed on the ______ day of _____________________, 2016. 

 
 
 ______________________________ 

Notary Public in and for the 
State of Texas       



1 
  

ORDINANCE NO.  2016-21 
 
AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A FRANCHISE TO SERENITY EMS, LLC, DBA AMERISTAT 
AMBULANCE TO OPERATE AND MAINTAIN A NON-EMERGENCY AMBULANCE 
TRANSFER SERVICE WITHIN THE PUBLIC STREETS AND HIGHWAYS OF CITY OF 
BELTON. 
  
 

WHEREAS, Serenity EMS, LLC, DBA Ameristat Ambulance, (the “Company”), 
operates a non-emergency ambulance transfer service for municipalities; and  
 
 WHEREAS,  the Company seeks to provide a non-emergency ambulance transfer 
services to or from a medical facility, a nursing home, or a residence under circumstances 
which do not constitute an emergency to citizens within the City of Belton (the “City”); and  
 

WHEREAS, it is in the interest of the City and its citizens to offer the Company a non-
emergency ambulance transfer services under the terms and conditions as will provide the 
City with the controls and options necessary to provide for the public good; and  

 
 WHEREAS, the Company non-emergency ambulance transfer service franchise holder 
shall, during the life of said franchise, pay to the City of Belton at the Office of the Director of 
Finance in lawful money of the United States, the Franchise Fee as described in the Municipal 
Franchise for Public Services, Non-Emergency Ambulance Transfer Agreement attached 
hereto. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

BELTON, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Agreement. 
 
 The City of Belton hereby grants a franchise to Serenity EMS, LLC, DBA Ameristat 
Ambulance in accordance with the Municipal Franchise for Public Services, Non-Emergency 
Ambulance Transfer Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit “A”. 
 
Section 2.  Term. 
 

The term of this agreement shall be for a period of one (1) year beginning on the 
effective date of this agreement and may be renewed automatically for two additional one-
year periods unless franchise is rescinded by the City. 

 
Section 3.  Acceptance by Company.   
 

Within fifteen (15) days after the passage of this Franchise, the Company shall file with 
the City its acceptance of the terms and provisions of this Franchise. The acceptance shall be 
in writing on the Company’s letterhead and provide as follows: 
 



2 
  

City of Belton 
ATTN:  City Clerk 
333 Water Street 
P.O. Box 120 
Belton, Texas 76513-0120 

 
Serenity EMS, LLC, DBA Ameristat Ambulance (the “Company”), acting by and through 

the undersigned officer who is acting within his official capacity and authority, hereby accepts 
the franchise to operate a non-emergency ambulance transfer service within the City as said 
franchise is set forth and provided in Ordinance No. 2016-21 (the “Ordinance”).  The 
Company agrees to be bound and governed by each term, provision and condition of the 
Ordinance, to accept and to give the benefits provided by the Ordinance and to perform each 
service and duty set forth and provided for in the Ordinance in a businesslike and reasonable 
manner and in compliance with the Franchise. 

 
Company:  _________________________________  

 
By: _______________________________________ 

 
Printed Name: ______________________________   

 
Title: ______________________________________ 
  
Email/Phone:________________________________ 

 
 
Section 3.  Open Meetings. 
 

It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this ordinance 
was passed was open to the public, and public notice of the time, place and purpose of said 
meeting was given, as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551, Texas Government 
Code. 
 
Section 4.  Endorsements and Records. 
 

The City Clerk is directed to make endorsements as appropriate over her/his official 
hand and the seal of the City on the form provided at the conclusion of this Franchise, for the 
public record and convenience of the citizens, of the date upon which this Franchise is finally 
passed and adopted and, if the Company accepts the Franchise, the date of such 
acceptance. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED ON THE FIRST READING THIS THE 14th DAY OF JUNE, 

2016. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED ON THE SECOND READING THIS THE 28TH DAY OF 

JUNE, 2016. 
 

 



3 
  

CITY OF BELTON 
 
 

_____________________________ 
Marion Grayson, Mayor  

ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND CONTENT: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
John Messer, City Attorney 
 

The foregoing Ordinance was passed and adopted by the City Council of the 
City of Belton, Texas, on the ______ day of _______________, 2016 by a vote 
of ____ votes for the Ordinance and ____ votes against the Ordinance. 

 
 
 ______________________________ 

Notary Public in and for the 
State of Texas 
 
 

 
_____________________________ accepted the foregoing Franchise by 
written instrument filed on the ______ day of _____________________, 2016. 

 
 
 ______________________________ 

Notary Public in and for the 
State of Texas       


	Workshop Agenda
	#WS2 - South Belton Sewer System
	#WS3 - Historic Preservation Tax Exemption
	#WS4 - Fire CORPs

	Regular Meeting Agenda
	City Manager's Memo
	#5 - Minutes of 052416
	#6 - Staff Report - Board Appointments
	#7 - Staff Report - Cameron Property Purchase
	#7 - Attachments

	#8 - Staff Report - Cameron Hills II Plat
	#8 - Attachments

	#9 - Staff Report - FIG - Liberty Church
	#9 - Attachments

	#10 - Staff Report - FIG - Cedon Realty
	#10 - Attachments

	#11 - Staff Report - Annexation Policy
	#11 - Attachments

	#12 - Staff Report - TAP Grant Funding Agreement
	#12 - Attachments

	#13 - Staff Report - River Fair Construction Contract
	#13 - Attachments

	#14 - Staff Report - TBWWTP Amendment
	#14 - Attachments

	#15 - Staff Report - Non-Emergency Ambulance Franchises
	#15 - Attachments




